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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results Zi5

For the year ended 31 December

BETZAZ+-HLEEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
E-)\% “EtF ZENE “E-1% -
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Operating income EEMA 1,067,585 901,041 875,197 817,970 844,469
Operating profi EEAE 140,975 86,3324 103,192 76,2164 69,9694
Profit before taxation MESE 137,473 86,5614 124,080 83,0024 72,5914
Net profit for the year FHE 137,336 86,4254 122,8884 82,4784 73,4304
Attributable to; B :
Equity shareholders of AYNGIliEES
the Company 137,336 86,4254 122,8884 82,4784 73,4304
Non-controlling interests PERE = = = = =
Basic earnings per share SRELEN RMBARMO0.384T RMBAXW02387T4 RMBAKM0.3287* RMBARHO02147* RMBAXE0.18374
- Note: The assessment and deduction of input VAT is applicable to Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Yongji Andre

Juice Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Group since January 2014 and December 2014, respectively. For the purchases
of agricultural raw materials which applied the assessment and deduction of input VAT as approved by the local tax
authorities, when the agricultural products are purchased, the value of the raw materials recorded in the accounts are
inclusive of tax. When the assessed input VAT deduction amount is approved by the tax authorities and before 1 January
2018, the Group calculated and allocated the inventory cost based on raw material costs for which the approved input
VAT amount was excluded. This accounting treatment would have an impact on the operating cost f++or the relevant
years and inventory at the end of the relevant reporting period. From 1 January 2018 onwards, in order to simplify the
cost calculation, the Group directly deducted the approved deductible input VAT amount from the operating costs for
the current period.

. st : AEBEZMAMB AR AKE ﬁﬁ%h#ﬁ@lﬂﬂ%%?%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ DRIE-Z—ME—AM_F—
E¢+:H@ﬁ%§%?EM£EM%VEE% AR E S BURS M BL fE BR 1O AR 0 51T R e R T B4R
me - EBARERR @ ZRSHSBEREME AREE - BUSHEHEE L EEBRRIZE W%ﬁﬁ&&ff NEF
*H*EZW'%ﬁ@im%%ﬁm%m%@%%ﬁ&%Mﬂ&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ% CE_E-NF-A—HZ
&ﬁﬁ%m&¢+” AN B TR R AR RS SRR - AR &ﬁm%%%ﬁﬁmﬁ@

ERETTRBURBR T -—NEFE"T—+FXEREERAE -

H'

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
# AR RF
(AE#HFT)
(RMB’000)
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets EEBE

Total liabilties RfEEE

Total equity attributable to ARAfEE
equity shareholders of Einikm
the Company

Non-controlling interests DHRE

A

A

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

BERAR

2018
IE-\E
RMB'000
IN:1

1,921,459

142,455

1,779,004

Financial Highlights
MBRE

As at 31 December

2017
“E-+F
RMB'000
ARETT
1981,8034

304,335

1,677,468%

R+=A=t+-H

2016 2015

Sy “E-RE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTL
2,156,3874 2,242 250

506,159 655,658
1,651,008 1,586,5004

2014
-

RMB'000
ARETT

2,172,669*

617,982

1,554,6874

FATIRREGED

(AR%TFT)

(RMB’000)

1,800,000 = = = === == === = === = — = — — — —

1,660,000~ =~~~ 7 7 7 7 7 7 - -

1,500,000~ — — -~

1,350,000~ = — -~

1,200,000~ — — -~

1,060,000~ — — -~

900,000 [~ — — -~

750,000 — — -~

600,000 - — — -~

450,000 - — — -~

300,000 [~ — — - -

150,000~ — — -~

0 2014

2015

Adjusted. Details please see explanation note on page 4.
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2016
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB1,067,585,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to
approximately RMB901,041,000 last year, representing an increase
of approximately 18%. The gross profit margin was approximately
27% for the year ended 31 December 2018 while the gross
profit margin for the previous year was approximately 31%4.
The profit attributable to equity Shareholders was approximately
RMB137,336,000 for the year under review, representing an
increase of approximately RMB50,911,000 over the previous year
of approximately RMB86,425,0004. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB0.384.

The significant increase in turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to the further boost in sales volume over last year,
caused by the mixed effects of the increase in our Group’s market
development effort and advance purchases by US customers for
the avoidance of risks associated with custom duty. Slight increase
in the selling price was also noted compared with last year.

Under the trend of depreciation of Renminbi against US Dollar
and the condition of gradual decrease in gearing ratio of the
Group, the Group has continued to enhance its cooperation
with domestic and oversea renowned financial institutions. This
reduced the Group’s exchange rate risk and finance costs, and can
better facilitate its business development. In relation to expanding
the market sales, the Group continued to maintain close and
stable business relationships with certain renowned beverage
manufacturers in China and overseas and has developed new
good customers with broadened sales channels. The market
share of the Company in terms of sales volume in the African and
North American markets also increased significantly. In respect
of research and development, the Company had developed a

4 Adjusted. Details please see explanation note on page 4.
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new beverage: cloudy peach juice concentrate; determined a
series of juice beverage formulations based on cloudy apple
juice; conducted key technology study on colour stability of clear
apple juice concentrate, energy saving and emission reduction
in the processing of juice concentrate and reduced the content
of insoluble matters; applied two national invention patents; filed
three company standards; awarded with the “Chinese Patent
Gold Award” for “A Low-temperature Aseptic Storage Method
for Clear Apple Juice Concentrate in Large-Capacity Tanks
Z1.200910229390.9” ; and as the president unit, completed the
2018 innovation mission of the “National Fruit Deep Processing
Technology Innovation Alliance”.

Analysis of the Industry and Our Market Share

In 2018, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 558,200 tonnes, representing a
decrease of 15% as compared to approximately 654,700 tonnes
in 2017. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of the last
century, the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed
a global market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to
the abundant apple supplies in China. Excluding China, Europe
is the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in
the world. Hence, the export volume and price of China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by the global economy,
but also the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in
Europe. Starting from 2014, due to the increasing competition of
producers of apple juice concentrate in Europe and low growth
pace of the global economy, the international market price of
apple juice concentrate started to decrease until 2017. In 2018,
attributable to the decrease in production of juice concentrate
in China, the export volume of apple juice concentrate in China
decrease significantly during the year. The international market
price thereby stabilized and recovered in 2018.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food is bound to bring more room for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growths. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area for future
apple juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure natural
juice will become more and more popular.

Being a leader in China’s apple juice concentrate industry and
through our proactive and visionary leadership, we will make use
of the benefit of the capital and administrative expertise of the
Company, to gradually expand its domestic market share and
stabilize its leading export position in the industry simultaneously
for more rapid and better development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable
to the agricultural industry under the PRC government’s
macroeconomic policies as well as the gradual improvement
of various relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group will
enjoy better development and financing opportunities. Aiming at
enlarging its business scale, the Group will strive to further enlarge
its market, enhance productivity, diversify products, expand sales,
disperse markets and to develop financing channels, etc.
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry, to rationally
adjust the Group’s existing production capacities according to
changes in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research
on different types of juice concentrate and production capacity.
On research and development, in 2019, the Group will continue
to develop fruit beverages; conduct related research topics of the
National Fruit Deep Processing Technology Innovation Alliance;
and conduct the optimization of juice processing technique.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company (“Directors”) and | have full confidence in the Group’s
future development. Our employees will continue to support the
Group and to contribute to the Group’s continuous and steady
development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.10
per share for the financial year 2018 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, the international market price of
apple juice concentrate started to stabilize and recover. Under
the condition of the growth in sales volume, the gross profit has
shown an obvious growth. Together with the effects of increase in
exchange gain due to the appreciation of USD and the occasional
significant provision for impairment of assets in last year, both the
net profit and net profit margin of the Company have increased. The
Directors strongly believe that the Company will have even more
development opportunities in 2019, given that some small and
medium domestic enterprises have been forced out of the market
and the international market is gradually recovering. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all the
investors, loyal customers and suppliers for their appreciation and
unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

22 March 2019

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s turnover
increased to approximately RMB1,067,585,000 as compared to
approximately RMB901,041,000 in 2017, representing an increase
of approximately RMB166,544,000 or 18%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the sale of juice
concentrate was approximately 98% of the total sales of the Group
(2017: approximately 94%), of which apple juice concentrate was
approximately 89% (2017: approximately 85%). The increase in
turnover was mainly due to the increase in sales volume of the
apple juice concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB290,991,000 and the gross profit margin
was approximately 27%. For the corresponding period in 2017,
the gross profit was approximately RMB281,720,0004 and gross
profit margin was approximately 31%#4. The increase in gross
profit was mainly attributable to the increase in sales volume. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly caused by the rise in
average cost of raw apples.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company) increased to approximately RMB137,336,000
as compared to approximately RMB86,425,0004 for the
corresponding period in 2017, representing an increase of
approximately RMB50,911,000 or 59%. The increase in net profit
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales volume, increase
in exchange gain from the appreciation of USD and the lack of
occasional significant provision for diminution in fixed assets.

4 Adjusted. Details please see explanation note on page 4.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRD M

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB91,212,000, as compared
to approximately RMB69,877,000 in 2017, representing an
increase of approximately RMB21,335,000 or 31%. The Group’s
distribution costs mainly included transport, import and export
service charge, export inspection and marketing expenses. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in sales volume and
transportation fees.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB61,468,000 as
compared to approximately RMB53,084,000 in 2017, representing
an increase of approximately RMB8,384,000 or 16%. Such
increase was mostly attributable to the reduction in apple supply
in the major plants in China during the year. The production of juice
concentrate in the whole industry was forced to stop in advance.
The Group thereby recorded an increase in production cessation
fee of approximately RMB6,094,000.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded net
finance revenue of approximately RMB15,638,000 whereas for the
year ended 31 December 2017, net finance costs of approximately
RMB20,937,000 was recorded. The change from finance costs to
finance revenue was primarily attributable to the depreciation of
RMB to USD in 2018 as opposed to appreciation in 2017, thereby
led to an exchange gain in 2018.

Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other operating expenses
of the Group was approximately RMB3,510,000. As compared
to approximately RMB286,000 in 2017, representing an increase
of approximately RMB3,224,000. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in donation and loss from writing-off
some coal boilers by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss on Diminution of Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2018, loss on diminution of assets
of the Group was approximately RMB2,413,000. Compared to
approximately RMB36,916,000 in 2017, decreased approximately
RMB34,503,000. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the idle
production capacity in Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, caused by high lemon
supply cost in 2017. As the relevant assets were idle, a one-
off provision for diminution in fixed assets of approximately
RMB31,938,000 was recorded.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continuously recognized as primary processing
of agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2018, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging on
its advanced production technology, superb product quality and
comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained steady
growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts, the
Group has already expanded its sales network to major countries
and regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania
and African countries and China domestic market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
cooperation relationships with certain renowned beverage
processors and manufacturers in China and has developed new
good customers with broadened sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and enlarging its market shares,
the Group also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to
optimise its profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the
customer base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.

Research and Development

The Group has developed a new beverage: cloudy peach juice
concentrate; determined a series of juice beverage formulations
based on cloudy apple juice; conducted key technology study
on colour stability of clear apple juice concentrate, energy saving
and emission reduction in the processing of juice concentrate and
reduced the content of insoluble matters; applied two national
invention patents; filed three company standards; awarded the
Chinese Patent Gold Award from “A Low-temperature Aseptic
Storage Method for Clear Apple Juice Concentrate in Large-
Capacity Tanks ZL.200910229390.9”; and as the president unit,
completed the 2018 innovation mission of the “National Fruit Deep
Processing Technology Innovation Alliance”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets
of apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania and African countries and Japan. Save as stabilizing the
existing market penetration and customers groups, the Company
will put more efforts in the development of various emerging
markets in the forthcoming year, with a view to breaking through
these markets. In addition, the Company has in recent years been
committed to the exploration of the market opportunities for its
new products and niche products as well as the development of
new customer groups. The Company will also further expand the
types of niche products. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of diversified
product expansion.

Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the forthcoming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page
in our domestic market sales.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against the US Dollars and adjust the proportion of Renminbi
and US Dollars deposits and loans. The Group will continue to
actively engage in cooperation with domestic and international
financial institutions to diversify its financing channels and increase
the variety of financing products, in order to reduce the Group’s
exchange rate risk and finance cost, improve capital structure,
enhance risk resistant capability and facilitate better business
development.

Research and Development

On research and development, in 2019, the Group will continue
to develop fruit beverages; conduct related research topics of the
National Fruit Deep Processing Technology Innovation Alliance;
and conduct the optimization of juice processing techniques.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

Charge of Assets

The Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2018.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
Dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US Dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note
XIl.1 to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure

The H Shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19 January
2011, the H Shares were transferred and listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) and de-listed from
GEM. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
(comprising domestic shares (the “Domestic Shares”), domestic
non-circulating foreign shares (the “Domestic Non-Circulating
Foreign Shares”) and H Shares). Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in Note V.19 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and bank loans. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had total outstanding bank loans
of approximately RMB50,000,000, all of which were short-term
bank loan. The short-term bank loans bore interest at fixed rates
ranging from 4.35% to 4.44% per annum. In the year 2018, the
Group repaid on time the loans that were due for repayment. The
Directors consider that the Group has sufficient financial resources
to meet its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB378,687,000 The Group’s gearing ratio as at
31 December 2018 was approximately 7% (2017: approximately
15%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of approximately RMB142,455,000 (2017: RMB304,335,000) by
the Group’s total assets of approximately RMB1,921,459,000
(2017: RMB1,981,803,0004).

Environmental Policies

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in the 2018
Environmental Social and Governance Report to be issued by the
Company in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

A Adjusted. Details please see explanation note on page 4.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 56, is chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26 June
2001. Mr. Wang is a well known private entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (5t &% Z &5 E A), an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (ILEREAEFTELEHTE
FERFEERAE), a Top Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (IIEREEX%E
¥ ZRAFENTRELAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’ of
Reform and Opening in Yantai (&S ERM=TF [FLZE]),
an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai to
Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (425 B 60T E R ESRE
%), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time Among
the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of Socialism
in Yantai of Shandong Province (LU (MR&) L& E&HER /S HEE
A Z HELERZEZAY), and is a representative of Shandong
Province to the National People’s Congress (A AR EK). Mr. Wang
graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central Communist
Party (AR ER KT ERT) in June 1994. He was the general
manager of Yangma Resort (& 5 & /&) for four years before
joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social services
appointments: member of China Business Advisory Council
(PRIEIEESIEE), member of the 1st Session of the Council
of Yantai Charity Federation ((AEMAZRTERIEELIES).
Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LB ZEF|EE
BRAR]) (“Andre Group”), which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has
since been involved in the concentrated apple juice production
industry. Mr. Wang is responsible for the overall management of
the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Hui (55#%), aged 46, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a Director
since 26 June 2001. He was the deputy general manager of
Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (B2 FRRIEAS
fR/A7]) and Yantai Muping Xinping Land Development Material
Company Limited* (HamAEFEHF I HRAZEYWEFRAR)
before joining the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in
December 1998 and has been involving in the concentrated juice
production industry since then. Mr. Zhang has been supervisor of
the production department, general manager of a subsidiary of
the Company and the executive president of the Company. Mr.
Zhang has received the following awards: Outstanding Member
of the Communist Party (B tLE#8) of Muping District, The
9th Session Top Ten Outstanding Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai
city (BNEMAEM T AEHTFLER) and the “May 1st Labor
Award” of Yantai city. In March 2007, he was appointed as a
member of the standing committee of the fruit and vegetable
processing division (REIIN L5 ) of the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology. During his tenure as general manager
of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd* (AKZEMETAERAA), he
was appointed as a representative of the Communist Party in
Weinan city (FHEmMENEK) and was a standing member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of Baishui
County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr. Wang An in the overall
management of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated from Shandong
Agriculture University with a bachelor’s degree in economics and
management (majoring in corporate management) in July 1997.
Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%t3%), aged 42, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (& ZESSILHTAH
JE). Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the financial
controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*

For identification purpose only

EE ESkeaREEE

RIBRAE - 468K - RARBHITESRRT
WBEE - REAEEB-ZZFZE-—FRAZTRK
FEEEES - RINBAREER - B
TEFREIXARAALAETME TR
P LA ENERRARMNBIBERE -
REER—ANANFTZAMAKRRT] -
WELBERERRTEESE  EREE
AERMIME  HBLRAKLE QAR
TTHRER - RELRRETERSE TR
[(EFHERE |  FAEMASTTARE
BELER] HamlE— |59 REES
F  CETALE-AREZERTERS
MERMEERANIIGERESE - K
TEEBRKZEANRFETERQRETR
REHE - BEEPABETERRNA
KBERBEER - BRIREEWMB TR L
BEREENERER - REAR NN
TFLABLREERBEE  WRFE
BEBRETEM(EEEEER) - RELE
E—BIIEA -

FUESL A - 425% c BZE—ZF A
T EEREBWNITES - TLERARES
F - RPEEMEmm o  EEEBERA
ESESARBEESHEE: — T —
FZAMARRB EBEES - ZRIEB
RAEEDE C BIERE  KEBESE Tk
ENRALENBRALERETTNE -

Y ERBSY

—Z—\FFH Annual Report 2018

19



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EESkeREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (BI5RH), aged 52, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the business integration
division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He joined Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed
as the head of its investment analysis section. In 2000, he was
transferred to President International Development Corporation,
and was responsible for its investments. He has also been the
manager of the treasury division of Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. since 2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taipei Exchange. Mr. Liu has over 20 years
of experience in banking, corporate finance, M&A, private equity,
and business strategy. Before joining Uni-President Enterprises
Corp., he was the head of the credit and loan unit of the Taipei
branch of Cosmos Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor
of laws degree (majoring in economics) from National Chengchi
University in 1989, and a master of business administration degree
from National Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Hong Qi (ZE#%), aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Jiang is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. Mr. Jiang obtained a master degree
in economics from Hangzhou Institution of Electronic Technology in
March 1997. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC. From
March 1997 to December 2002, Mr. Jiang served as a business
manager and a senior manager of Shandong International Trust
and Investment Corporation. Mr. Jiang joined the Company in 2003
and served as the chief financial officer of the Company from May
20083 to May 2010. From May 2007 to June 2010, he served as
an executive Director and from July 2010 to June 2012 he served
as a non-executive Director. Since May 2010, he serves as the
vice president of the Creat Group Co., Ltd..

20  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IFZEFRARHDERATE

FHITES

BISRERE 525% 0 BIERITES - §
EEBZZETENFANA T HREMEIE
HITES - JAERBEEBESFR AL
MARG—ERBERARACEES W
B BEER—AARNFEAMAH —©
ERBBERRAT @ ZHRERITAREDN
RBR -R_ZTZTTF  REEATH—
BEERAZERNHERAR AEZARZE
& o m-TENFR - BIRENETH—
TEROERAT S RERIBLRE - 24
ERIIRFE—LERDER A RIEERK
BARMBKRE,/BEF  HABELDFET
BHPBERATAGEEFEEEEFRLHN
FERR - BILERIRIT « B - FHt
Wi  AEESRCERBEFAEER
20FEF - RIMAG—ERMDBRAT
Al B E R EAERRERITEIESTT
PEREEBMEBHEAR - BEER AN
NEEBEEBARSEBLBM(EBL
EE)  WR— NN FESEERETH
EEE B o

BAFHTES
ERFEE 52  BZE—FAHA
TTRHRABIMIERITESE - ZLER
RHES  c ZAAER—NANEFE= AEM
MEFITEBRGBEBETEM o BAF
BFfMestm 8 —hhhtF=ZAz=F
ToF+ A EEEERTILUREABEERSE
ARERRIEBEERSRERE - Eh4E
RZZBEZ=FMAARRA  RZTT=F
FAZE_E—ZEFAAETARBYTKR
B2 N_EEL+FRAZT T -—FF XA
BERTES IR ZFtAE=
T FRNABEFRERTEE BT —
TFERAR  BEIRIREEESRARN
Blsay -



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Li Wei &J&), aged 64, is an independent non-executive
Director since 25 May 2016. Mr. Li has approximately 15 years of
working experience in corporate management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beijing Institute for Foreign Trade in July 1980. From July
1986 to October 1989, Mr. Li served as the general manager of
the import department at China North Industries Corporation.
From October 1989 to October 1995, he served as the managing
director of Silverkey Development Ltd. From October 1995 to
October 1999, he served as the managing director of Silvercity
International Development Ltd., and also served as a director of
Raymond Industrial Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Since February 2002, Mr. Li has successively been a commentator
or host at several broadcasting stations and television stations
in Hong Kong, Beijing and Shenzhen. Since August 2007, he
serves as an independent non-executive director of VST Holdings
Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, since
May 2016, he serves as an independent non-executive director
of Qianhai Health Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Last but not least, he serves as an independent non-
executive director of Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since July 2017.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z[R28), aged 60, is an independent non- executive
Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of the Communist
Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working experience. Mr.
Li obtained a college degree in economic management from
Party School of the Shandong Provincial Committee of C.P.C.
in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping Foreign Trade Bureau
from December 1978 to April 1992. He worked as the manager
of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical Packaging Import and Export
Company from April 1992 to April 1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy
general manager of Muping Foreign Trade Company from April
1994 to June 2005. He is the chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd.
since June 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EESkeREEE

Supervisors

Ms. Dai Liying (&%), aged 54, is a staff representative
Supervisor since 16 March 2016. She is a member of the
Communist Party of the PRC. She obtained a bachelor degree
from Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1988, majoring in
pre-school education. From July 1988 to July 1997, she served
as the principal of the Third Kindergarten of Inner Mongolia First
Machinery Manufacturing Factory. From July 1997 to June 1998,
she worked at Yantai Commercial and Trading Company Limited.
She joined the Company in July 1998, and held various positions
at the Company successively, including the deputy supervisor
of administration department, the supervisor of administration
department and the supervisor of human resources department
of the Company. Since 2014, she serves as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company and the supervisor of the general
management department of the Company.

Mr. Wang Zhiwu (£7R), aged 48, is a Shareholder-approved
supervisor since 25 May 2016. He is a member of the Communist
Party of the PRC with a high school qualification. From May 1990
to June 1997, he worked at Muping District Aquatic Products
Supplying and Marketing Company. He joined the Company in
July 1997. From January 2002 to February 2012, he held various
positions at the Company successively, including the deputy
supervisor of the production department of the Company, the
supervisor of production department of the Company, the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company and the vice
president of the Company. From March 2012 to March 2017, he
was the general manager of Binzhou Andre. Since April 2017, he is
the general manager of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Kun (E #), aged 38, is an independent representative in
the supervisory committee of the Company since 26 June 2018.
Mr. Wang is a member of the Communist Party of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Wang Kun held high school diploma. Mr.
Wang Kun joined the Company in August 2000. From July 2005 to
July 2015, Mr. Wang Kun served successively as the vice director
of the production department of a subsidiary of the Company, the
director of the production department, assistant to the chairman
of the Company and then as the vice general manager of a
subsidiary of the Company. From March 2015 to March 2017,
Mr. Wang Kun served as the general manager of Baishui Andre
Juice Co., Ltd* (AKLZEFRETHRAT), a subsidiary of the
Company. Since April 2017, he has been serving as the general
manager of Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd* (2 RIERBHFABBEA
7)), a subsidiary of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (E£%), aged 56, is chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (55##), aged 46, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (£ %:3%), aged 42, is an executive Director,
financial controller and secretary to the Board. Please refer to his
biography under the sub- section headed “Directors”.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 53, is a vice president of the Company.
Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’s University of
International Business and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in foreign business management in July 1990. She worked
in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign Economics
and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992 to February
1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co., Ltd. from
1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president responsible
for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August 2003; and
Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September 2003 to
December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in January
2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and overseas
sales of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EESkeREEE

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (i 4), aged 50, a university graduate with a
bachelor’s degree in agriculture, is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997
to engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality
control and on-going supervision of production activities. He was
the twice winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science Advancement
of Shandong Province (ILIFRERHE#EF=%512) , the winner of the
First Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (&
HERHE#E 2 —%42) and the winner of the Third Class Award of
Science Advancement in Yantai City (AEMRIE#ES=548) .
Currently, he is responsible for the technology, research and
development of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee ({E&14), aged 47, is the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business
administration in 1994. She is a fellow certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviation:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Board believes that with the current
risk management and internal control systems and the close
supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of being sued
or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors is
relatively low. Benefits to be derived from taking out insurance
may not outweigh the cost. As such, the Company currently does
not have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for formulating the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees of
the Group and Directors; and
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TRELA®RE

(v) To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure requirements in the corporate governance
report.

The Board

The Company is managed by its Board, which has the responsibility
for providing leadership and control of the Company. Through the
Board, the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total
of seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang An (chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (chief executive officer)
and Mr. Wang Yan Hui (financial controller); one non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei and
Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2019.
All Directors are appointed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18
to 21 of this annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening general meetings and reporting on their work
at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at general meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting
off of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger or dissolution
of the Company;

S formulating the internal management structure of the
Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of
the Company, appointing or dismissing the deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management at the recommendation of the chief executive
officer of the Company and determining matters relating to
their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;
S formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of

association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);
and
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- carrying out other powers conferred by general meetings.

The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible
for preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-
to-day management of the Company’s business is delegated to
the chief executive officer and the management. The functions
of the Board and the powers delegated to the chief executive
officer are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer.
The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman
is responsible for convening and holding general meetings and
Board meetings, tracking the progress of implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board, signing the securities issued
by the Company and carrying out other powers conferred by
the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chief executive officer and the management are
responsible for the production, operation and management of
the Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board, implementation of annual business plans and investment
proposals, formulation of the internal management structure, the
basic management system and the specific governance of the
Company. In particular the chief executive officer is responsible
for proposing to the Board for appointment or dismissal of vice
president, chief financial officer and other senior management of
the Company, appointment or dismissal of other management
staff whose appointment and dismissal does not require approval
from the Board and carrying out other powers conferred by the
Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Upon appointment to the Board, each newly-appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
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Corporate Governance Report

to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies and independent auditors so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in performing their duties. During the year under review, the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen, has
completed over 15 hours professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year under review:

Executive Directors BITESE

Wang An Tz

Zhang Hui o b

Wang Yan Hui T 4%
Non-executive Directors FEMITESE

Liu Tsung-Yi 2RE
Independent non-executive Directors HILFHITEE
Jiang Hong Qi A

Li Wei PR

Li Tong Ning A=
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for Board meetings and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related Board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a Board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting key people at head office and in
the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary of the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.

The Board held 5 meetings during 2018. The chief financial officer
of the Company also attended all of the Board meetings to advise
on corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
mergers and acquisitions and accounting and financial matters. The
attendance (other than attending by authorised representatives)
of individual Directors at the Board meetings, the meetings of
major committees and the general meetings in 2018 is set out in
the table below:

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (BB %) EJ: ] WA ZH
28/03/2018 WA v v
26/06/2018 WA v v
29/08/2018 WA v v
28/11/2018 WA v v
13/12/2018 WA v v

Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person
B¥ (BB %) E 1 4 WA ZH

26/06/2018 WA v v
Audit and Review Committee Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B8 (BB %) £
22/03/2018 JHQ
25/05/2018 JHQ
28/08/2018 JHQ
13/12/2018 JHQ
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N\ =5 N ==

TEERHRS

Nomination Committee Meeting REZEETR
Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (B R %) £ WA
26/03/2018 JHQ v
14/08/2018 JHQ v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FRERERE TR
Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B#Y (BB %) ES: ZH
26/03/2018 JHQ v
Note: Ea

WA  Wang An F&

ZH Zhang Hui gRIE

WYH  Wang Yan Hui T

LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2RE

JHQ  Jiang Hong Qi =t

LW Li Wei 3

LTN  Li Tong Ning PR

Symbols: 5%

“/” means attended the meeting [VIRKREFEEH

“~” means not attended the meeting [-IRKRRFE=R
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a Director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction
in which a Director has a conflict of interest, the Director has
to declare his interest and is required to abstain from voting
and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate. The Company
seeks confirmation from the Directors annually in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related
to Directors or their associates pursuant to the guideline.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2018.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2018.
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Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members of which
two are recommended by Shareholders and one is an employee
representative elected by the employees. The Supervisory
Committee is responsible for supervision of the Board, members
of the Board and senior management, to prevent authority abuse,
Shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect legitimate
interests of the Company and its employees. During 2018, the
Supervisory Committee held four meetings, during which the
members of the Supervisory Committee reviewed the Company’s
financial position, legal compliance of the Company’s operations
and diligence of the senior management.

Internal Control

Internal Control System

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement errors, losses or fraud. Procedures for
the Company’s internal, control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Regarding to the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “Inside Information
Provisions”), and any information required to be disclosed under
Rule 13.09 of the Listing Rules or any inside information required
to be disclosed under the Inside Information Provisions should be
announced immediately.

A review of the Company’s internal control system covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management is
conducted annually. In particular, the Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place
to identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these
risks are monitored by the Board with the support of various
committees and senior management. For the year under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and the Company had complied with the Code
Provisions on internal control under the CG Code.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department of the Company provides an
independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system. The department is headed by a manager
who is familiar with the Company’s operation. Its scope of work
mainly includes auditing of financial and operational systems,
reviewing the observance of relevant policies and regulations,
regular and special auditing, auditing of production effectiveness,
etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk assessment
methodology, is discussed and agreed on every year by the Audit
and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual schedule
of work, the internal audit department of the Company conducts
other special reviews as required.
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The primary reporting procedure of the internal audit department of
the Company is to report to the chairman of the Board but there
is also direct access to the Audit and Review Committee. Internal
audit reports are sent to the chief executive officer, the chief
financial officer, the external auditors and the relevant management
of the departments under audit. A summary of major audit findings
is reported to and discussed with the Audit and Review Committee.
The Board and the Audit and Review Committee actively monitor
the number and seriousness of findings raised by the internal audit
department of the Company and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.

Detailed control guidelines have been formulated and made
available to all employees of the Company regarding handling
and dissemination of corporate data which is price sensitive.

Risk Management

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

The risk management of the Company is conducted by the
Audit and Review Committee and it assists the Board to fulfill its
oversight role over the Company and its subsidiaries in, among
others, the following areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the risk management process, system and internal control,
including whether the development of the Company’s
business is prudent and in compliance with the legal
requirements.
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The Company has a sound organisation system of internal control.
The Board is responsible for the establishment, improvement and
effective implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems. A semi-annual review of the effectiveness of the
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk managements and internal
control systems during the year has been conducted. Guided by
the Board and the Audit and Review Committee, the internal audit
department carries out inspection, supervision and evaluation for
internal controls of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect
of important control functions such as financial control, operation
control, compliance control and risk management, supervises and
timely rectifies internal control deficiencies and effectively controls
operating risks.

The objectives of internal control of the Company include ensuring
a legal and compliance management, asset safety, accuracy and
completeness of financial reports and related information in a
reasonable manner, enhancing its operating efficiency and results,
and promoting the implementation of strategy development. Due to
the intrinsic limitations of internal control system, only reasonable
guarantees can be provided for the abovementioned objectives.
In addition, the effectiveness of its internal control is subject
to change according to the changes of internal and external
environment and operations. Inspection and supervision system
is established for the Company. In case of shortcomings found,
the Company will adopt rectification measures immediately.

Audit and Review Committee

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal
controls and corporate governance issues and making relevant
recommendations to the Board. All of its members are independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, Mr. Li Wei and
Mr. Li Tong Ning) and its current chairman is Mr. Jiang Hong Qi.
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The Audit and Review Committee has adopted revised set of terms
of reference effective from 22 March 2019, which is based on the
guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A copy of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit and Review Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit and Review Committee met four times in 2018. During
2018, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2018 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

External Auditors

In 2018, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 83 to 85 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen LLP for the audit work of the Company for
the financial year 2019. This resolution has been endorsed by the
Board and is subject to final approval and authorisation by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration and Review Committee

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Jiang
Hong Qi, Mr. Li Tong Ning and Mr. Zhang Hui as members with Mr.
Jiang Hong Qi as the current chairman. All of them are independent
non-executive Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as
follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management,
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a Director, Director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, Director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review Committee
which were revised on 30 August 2017 are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2018
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2018. At that meeting, the committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2018.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee to
the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the Shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration package
include basic compensation (comprising of director’s fee) and
discretionary bonus without capping. In determining guidelines for
each compensating element, the Company refers to remuneration
surveys conducted by independent external consultants on
companies operating similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for 2018 by band is
set out below:
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of
the Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus
based on the Company’s results and the degree of diligence of
each of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2017 and
2018 are disclosed in Note V.37 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Jiang Hong Qi, an
independent non-executive Director, and comprises Mr. Wang
An, an executive Director and Mr. Li Tong Ning, an independent
non-executive Director, as members. The role of the committee
is to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors, evaluation of Board composition and the management
of Board succession with reference to certain guidelines as
endorsed by the Nomination Committee. These guidelines include
appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience,
personal ethnics, integrity and personal skills, time commitments
of members, and the independency of the nominees for the
position of independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship including the
consideration of referrals and engagement of external recruitment
professional when necessary. The Nomination Committee met
twice in 2018 to discuss the Board structure, size and composition
and to evaluate the independence status of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below
is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a wide
range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee will review
the diversity of the Board and report to the Board the composition
of the Board members and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition
of the Board.

The latest version of the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee which were revised with effect from 22
March 2019 have been posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the chief financial officer of the Company was
established. The Information Disclosure Review Committee is
responsible for the establishment of procedures to compile, verify
and report the Company’s financial and operational statistics
and other information as well as to supervise the drafting and
publication of periodic reports.
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The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
Shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available to
meet with the Shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major Shareholders
is through the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to
all Shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 26 June 2018 at 2nd Floor, No. 18
Andre Avenue, Muping Economic Development Zone, Yantai City,
Shandong Province, the PRC. The meeting was opened to all
Shareholders and members of the press and was attended by all
substantial Shareholders personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives. A
wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is made
available to investors and the public through the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Announcements
of the interim and annual results are also available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

In 2018, the Company held 10 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business and operations of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the Shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly
by questions at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be made to the Company by the same means.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Board shall give written
feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10 days
after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the Supervisory Committee to hold the
SGM in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory
Committee does not convene or preside over the general meeting.
The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the general meeting held by the Supervisory
Committee or Shareholders by themselves shall be born by the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

When the Company holds a general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing
10 days before the SGM.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

With regard to the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website
at www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Room 26, 19/F, West Exchange Tower,
322 Des Voeux Road Central,

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@northandre.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Change in Constitutional Documents

With the approval of all the relevant PRC regulatory authorities and
the Board, the amendments to the Articles of Association took
effect on 26 June 2018 to reflect on the change in business scope.

Details of which are set out in the circular of the Company dated
16 May 2018. An updated version of the Articles of Association is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Notes 7 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in pages 86 to 284 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5
of this annual report.

Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may face have
been disclosed in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of
this annual report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note 8 to the Financial Statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and
has gradually expanded markets in other countries. The sales
attributable to the top five customers of the Group accounted
for about 28.77% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to about 7.09%.

Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 8.20% of total purchases for the year. The largest
supplier accounted for about 3.07% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.

None of the Directors, supervisors, their respective associates or
any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

The Board believes that there was no reliance on major customers
and no material related risk was noted in the reporting period.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB35,800,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.10
per share for 2018. The proposal to declare and pay this final
dividend will be submitted to the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 26 June 2019. Final dividend
for domestic shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi
whereas dividend for H Shares will be declared in Renminbi and
paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend will be paid to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the Company'’s register of
members at the close of business on 10 July 2019 (the “Record
Date”). To determine the identity of the Shareholders entitled to
receive the final dividend, the register of holders of H Shares will
be closed from 3 July 2019 to 10 July 2019 (both days inclusive)
during which no transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers
of H Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 22/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 2 July 2019. The final dividend is expected to
be distributed on 22 August 2019.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax
rate of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of
non-resident enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise
(including the Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident
enterprise shareholder shall withhold and remit corporate income
tax at 10% on behalf of such shareholder.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income
Tax Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa
[1993] No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-
resident individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses
from the shares issued in Hong Kong by non-foreign-invested
enterprise, individual income tax shall be withheld and remitted
by the withholding agent according to the domain of “interest,
dividends and bonuses”. The non-resident individual shareholders
of domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares
in Hong Kong, shall enjoy the taxation preferences in accordance
with the agreements between countries of their origins and China
and the regulation on taxation arrangement between the Mainland
and Hong Kong (Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as
provided by taxation agreement is generally at a rate of 10%.
In order to simplify the collection and management of taxation,
the individual income tax with a rate of 10% in general will be
withheld when dividend is paid by the domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong without
making applications. Where the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it
will be handled according to the following requirements: (1) for
residents of countries which have entered into an agreement with
China in respect of a tax rate lower than 10%, the withholding
agent may apply for the relevant entitlements hereunder on their
behalf. Upon examination and approval by the competent tax
authorities, the additional amount of tax withheld will be refunded;
(2) for residents of countries which have entered into an agreement
with China in respect of a tax rate of 10% or more but less than
20%, the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at
the agreed tax rate when distributing dividends or bonuses, and
no application for approval is needed; (3) for residents of a country
or which has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC and
in any other circumstances, the withholding agent shall withhold
individual income tax at the tax rate of 20% when distributing
dividends and bonuses.
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Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han [2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax
Law) for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold
and remit enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H shares of the Company registered
under the name of non-natural persons in the H share register
of members of the Company on 2 July 2019 (Tuesday), including
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other
groups and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H Shares.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
Shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding
and remitting.

Share Capital
The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.19 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company during the reporting
period is set out in the statement of changes in Shareholders’
equity of the Group and the Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately RMB308,934,000 (2017:
approximately RMB340,496,000).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the Group incurred approximately
RMB25,346,000 mainly for expanding the production line,
renovation of plant and acquisition of equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period is set out in Note V.7 to the Financial
Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the PRC laws and regulations which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2018.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

No material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated
companies or joint venture companies have been made by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Significant Investments

No significant investment was held by the Group as at 31
December 2018. The Group does not hold any significant securities
investments as part of its asset portfolio.

Proposed Issuance of A Shares

To satisfied the production and operation need of the Company
and to strike for further development, the Company proposed to
fundraise in the domestic stock market in China.

At the Board meeting on 30 August 2018, the Company proposed
to apply to the relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC for the
allotment and issuance of not more than 20,000,000 A Shares with
a nominal value of RMB1.00 each to natural persons, legal persons
and other institutional investors, who maintain A share accounts
with the Shanghai Stock Exchange (except those prohibited by
the PRC laws and regulations and other regulatory requirements
to which the Company is subject to), and apply to the Shanghai
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
A Shares.

The special resolution for issuance of A shares was approved by
the Shareholders in the special general meeting and class meetings
of the Company held on 1 November 2017. The resolution to
extend such application period was approved by the Shareholders
in the annual general meeting and class meetings of the Company
held on 26 June 2018. Such issuance is subject to the approval
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”).
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Employment and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had an average
of 907 employees (2017: 1,033 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017 were approximately RMB56,215,000
and approximately RMB54,795,000, respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.37
and 38 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in Note V.16 to the Financial
Statements.

Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
and Supervisors were as follows:

Executive Directors: Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Jiang Hong Qi, Li Wei and Li Tong Ning
non-executive
Directors:

Supervisors: Dai Li Ying, Wang Zhi Wu, Wang Kun

(appointed on 26 June 2018) and Wang
Chun Tang (resigned on 26 June 2018)
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All independent non-executive Directors are considered
as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

At 26 June 2018, Mr. Wang Kun was appointed as Supervisor
while Mr. Wang Chun Tang was resigned as Supervisor.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no material changes to the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the financial year, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the company).
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Connected Transactions

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules

L.

CCT with Andre Pectin

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
(“Andre Pectin”) for the sale of pomace and juice products
to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for the sale
of pomace and juice products for the three years ending 31
December 2018. The framework agreement took effect on
1 January 2016 and expired on 31 December 2018. On 19
January 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) with Andre
Pectin to revise the annual caps for 2016, 2017 and 2018
under the framework agreement.

Under the terms of the framework agreement, prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (ii) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.

The annual caps under the Supplemental Agreement were
determined based on the internal estimation of the supply
of raw materials in the PRC market and the increase
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in production of pomace products by the Group. The
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB41,000,000. The actual sale of pomace and other
products by the Group to Andre Pectin for the year ended
31 December 2018 was RMB7,643,586 and are subject
to the annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the framework agreement as amended by the
Supplemental Agreement expired on 31 December 2018,
the Company and Andre Pectin agreed to renew the
transaction terms, and entered into the product purchase
framework agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “Pectin
Renewal Agreement”), pursuant to which, Andre Pectin
agreed to purchase and the Company agreed to supply
the Company’s products (including but not limited to
pomace and juice products), and the entering into the
Pectin Renewal Agreement served to regulate such product
purchase between the Group and Andre Pectin for the
period commenced on 1 January 2019 and expiring on
31 December 2021.

Under the Pectin Renewal Agreement, the prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to (i) the Market Price; and (i) the Historical
Price, whichever is higher.

The annual caps under the Pectin Renewal Agreement
were set based on the following factors: the estimated
amounts of transactions involved with reference to historical
transaction volume, the estimated potential growth of the
Group, the expected economic growth of the PRC and the
increase of the demand by Andre Pectin on the Company’s
products. For the three financial years ending 31 December
2021, the annual caps will be RMB30,000,000 per year.

As of the date of signing the framework agreement,
Supplemental Agreement and Pectin Renewal Agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of Andre Group, which was a substantial Shareholder
and controlled 47.37% interest in Andre Pectin. Andre Pectin
was also an associate of Mr. Wang An, who is a Director
and indirectly controlled 47.37% interest in Andre Pectin
through his 90% interest in Andre Group. Therefore, Andre
Pectin was a connected person of the Company and the

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

E-N\FE+-_A=+—HIEE>
FZ LR AARA41,000,0007T °
HE—_Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H1t
FEZASEETRENRB R
BEEMHEERSERARE
7,643,586 T ' Rk EMHA] -
REHWEESBFERE -

R EHT IR RETIERBZER
—E-N\F+ZA=+—HEm
AARHERZENRBRAEZEENR S
B WR=ZE—N\F+ZA+=
ATV RBERRBERBZ(R
BEFMHZ]  BUELEMNRBE
ERBEARFIRAEHELRRTN
ER(BEETRERARERETE
m) - REBENGECFTANUR
EAREEETENRBCEEE
—hFE—A—-BE=-Z-_—%+=
A=+t—HIEMNERRE -

BERBEFHE  AQaHES
THEMRNER - BROTHE: i)
B ERET -

REBERBEFHEZE  FEXSLER
NETLERERIEMHRARZ S
EH&E  AEENHETERE
7 FEMFERLEEIER AR ZE
FRBHARNFERNTER -
HE_£2-_—F+-_A=+—81
B RFEECFELEREE A
BFF AR¥30,000,0007T °

REZERHGE  AaHhaERB
EitpEc B REANRBALE
FlEBPOBEAT(RE EMEIZ
EE) REMNSEAARTMNE
ERE - EHEZEMRBA47.37%
Bm o REFNRBTARARES
TRAEENBBAL  TLREES
1B EH N 2 E T & B F)90% 1 = 8 2
THLZEFRBL47.37T%E S o

—Z—\FFH Annual Report 2018

55



Report of Directors

EEGHRE

1.

sale of pomace and juice products by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement, the
Supplemental Agreement and Pectin Renewal Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement as amended
by the Supplemental Agreement and the Pectin Renewal
Agreement are only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For further details regarding the Pectin Renewal Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 December 2018.

CCT with President

On 11 December 2017, the Company entered into a
product purchase framework agreement with President
Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“President”),
whereby President agreed to purchase and the Company
agreed to supply the Company’s products (including but
not limited to different kinds of juice) and provide related
warehousing service to President and determined the
annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, the
prices of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to the bidding principle by reference
to the market price.

The annual cap under the product purchase framework
agreement was determined with reference to the historical
amount with President and the expected increase in the
prevailing market prices of the Company’s products due
to the increase in the costs for the production of the
Company’s products, such as the raw materials and labour
costs. The annual cap for the financial years ended 31
December 2018 was RMB21,000,000.
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The actual sale of products and provision of warehousing
services by the Group to President for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB9,145,351 and was subject to
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the previous product purchase framework agreement
dated 11 December 2017 expired on 31 December
2018, the Company and President agreed to renew the
transaction terms, and entered into a product purchase
framework agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “President
Renewal Agreement”), pursuant to which, President agreed
to purchase and the Company agreed to supply the
Company’s products (including but not limited to different
kinds of juice concentrate) and provide related warehousing
service, to regulate such product purchase between the
Group and President for the period commenced on 1
January 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2019.

Under the President Renewal Agreement, prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the bidding principle by reference to the
market price.

The annual cap under the President Renewal Agreement
was set based on the historical transaction amounts with
President and the expected stability of the prevailing
market prices for the sales of the Company’s products.
For the year ending 31 December 2019, the annual cap
is RMB21,000,000.

As at the date of signing the product purchase framework
agreement and the President Renewal Agreement,
President held 17.87% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Under the Listing Rules, President was a
substantial Shareholder and thus was a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement and the
President Renewal Agreement between the Group and
President constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company. As an applicable percentage ratio in respect
of the annual caps (other than the profit ratio) was more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement and
the President Renewal Agreement are only subject to
the requirements of reporting, announcement and annual
reviews but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules.
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For further details regarding the President Renewal
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 December 2018.

CCT with Yantai Hengtong

On 19 January 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Yantai Hengtong Thermoelectricity Co.,
Ltd.*(ff & T BEE B R A R))(“Yantai Hengtong”), pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to purchase and Yantai
Hengtong has agreed to supply products (including but
not limited to electricity and steam) to regulate the product
purchase between the Group and Yantai Hengtong for the
three years ended 31 December 2018.

Under the framework agreement, prices of products to be
purchased by the Group shall be determined according to
the Market Price (as defined below).

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following order: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

For identification purpose only
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The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions
under the framework agreement were determined based on (j)
the estimated amount of transactions involved with reference
to the historical transaction volume; and (ii) the estimated
demand by the Group on Yantai Hengtong’s products with
reference to the prospective consumption of such products by
the manufacturing workshops of the Group at full production
capacity. The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB39,000,000. The actual purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB14,890,796 and was
subject to annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the previous framework agreement dated 19 January
2016 expired on 31 December 2018, the Company and
Yantai Hengtong agreed to renew the transaction terms,
and entered into the framework agreement on 13 December
2018 (the “Hengtong Renewal Agreement”), whereby the
Group agreed to purchase and Yantai Hengtong agreed to
supply products (including but not limited to electricity and
steam), to regulate such purchase between the Group and
Yantai Hengtong for the period commenced on 1 January
2019 and expiring on 31 December 2021.

Under the Hengtong Renewal Agreement, the prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to the Market Price.

The annual cap of the transaction contemplated under
the Hengtong Renewal Agreement was set based on the
following factors: the estimated amounts of transactions
involved with reference to historical transaction volume and
the estimated demand by the Group on Yantai Hengtong’s
products with reference to the prospective consumption
of such products by the manufacturing workshops of the
Group at full production capacity. For the three financial
years ending 31 December 2021, the annual caps are
RMB25,000,000 per year.
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As at the date of signing the framework agreement and
the Hengtong Renewal Agreement, Yantai Hengtong was
wholly-owned by Andre Group, a substantial Shareholder.
Yantai Hengtong was an associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Andre Group and was also a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement between
the Company and Yantai Hengtong constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Since the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profit ratio) for the proposed annual caps for for all relevant
years for the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement
are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated under the
framework agreement and Hengtong Renewal Agreement
are only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules and are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.
The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For further details regarding the Hengtong Renewal
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 December 2018.

CCT with Xinping Company

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which, Xinping Company agreed
to provide services for installation for various kinds of
constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ended 31 December
2018.
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As at the date of signing the construction and installation
services framework agreement, Xinping Company was
wholly-owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang An
who is an executive Director and a substantial Shareholder.
Under the Listing Rules, Xinping Company was an associate
of Mr. Wang An and thus was a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the construction and installation services framework
agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company. Since the applicable percentage ratios for
the highest proposed annual cap for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2018 for the continuing connected
transactions under the construction and installation services
framework agreement were more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the continuing connected transactions under the
construction and installation services framework agreement
are only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules and are exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement.

Prices of services to be provided to the Company shall be
determined according to the Market Price.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with
the following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged
by independent third parties under ordinary course of
business for the provision of the same type of services
at the providing places or its nearby regions; or (2) the
prevailing price being charged by independent third parties
under ordinary course of business for the provision of the
same type of services in the PRC.

The annual cap under the construction and installation
services framework agreement for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 was RMB10,000,000. The actual
consumption of service by the Group from Xinping Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB2,795,713
and was subject to annual review requirement under the
Listing Rules.

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

RBEZBRERZEREHEEH
MNP RRARATESERARAEE
BREZEENRBRAEL LR
BHA - RIELWARA - FFRA
RIRTENBEA LI AR
NAEIMREEAL - Bt - ARRE
P RBRI MR E R R R IRGIE
RipHE MRETHRSBRAR
AIMRERER S - ARANEER
RRRGERBHER N FHERRE
RHGRBE_Z-N\F+ A=+
—ALE=AFEEFZHERSEHEF
BLERZERBDLESGR0.1%E
ER5% » A2ERZERBIER
HHER N2 ERERHERET
EHRVNEBEAR N RFER
B2 HBE - BERRETEI R
HAEZHTE o

AARRFRERBHOER - BIRE
MIGEEE

[ 35 8 |7 R T 5 IR FF 4K X i
E (1) ZERIGH RS EMT
WERELEFHEBL MEHZER
BB S =77 B WA B
% (2 EFELERERBR TRH
ZERBEBILE =7 8 R UERE
{E1& o

REERTERBERBRET
HE-_Z—-N\F+=ZA=+—8H
LY BRFENFELERABARE
10,000,0007T - HEZFT—\F+
ZRA=+T—HULEFEZAREEFER
FERARZRBERSEAARE
2,795,7137C - #RIE EWH A - 1
R BB BFER -

—Z—\FFH Annual Report 2018

61



Report of Directors

EEGHRE

*

CCT with Ton Yi

On 11 December 2017, the Company entered into a
product purchase framework agreement with Ton Yi
(China) Investment Co., Lid. " E (HE) REFR AR
(“Ton Yi”), pursuant to which Ton Yi agreed to purchase
and the Company agreed to supply the Company’s
products (including but not limited to different kinds of
juice concentrate) and provide the warehousing and other
services relating to purchase to subsidiaries of Ton Yi, to
regulate such product purchase between the Group and
Ton Yi for the period commenced on 1 January 2018 and
expired on 31 December 2018.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, the
prices of the products to be supplied by the Company
shall be determined according to the bidding principle by
reference to the market price.

The annual cap under the product purchase framework
agreement was determined mainly with reference to the
expected increase in the prevailing market prices for the
sales of the Company’s products due to the increase in the
costs for the production of the Company’s products, such
as the raw materials and labor costs. The annual cap for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB21,000,000.
The actual sale of products and provision of warehousing
services by the Group to Ton Yi for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB5,139,424 and was subject to
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

As the previous product purchase framework agreement
dated 11 December 2017 expired on 31 December 2018,
the Company and Ton Yi agreed to renew the transaction
terms, and entered into the product purchase framework
agreement on 13 December 2018 (the “Ton Yi Renewal
Agreement”), pursuant to which Ton Yi agreed to purchase
and the Company agreed to supply the Company’s
products (including but not limited to different kinds of
juice concentrate and provide the warehousing and other
services relating to purchase to subsidiaries of Ton Yi), to
regulate such product purchase between the Group and
Ton Yi for the year ending 31 December 2019.

Under the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement, the prices of products
to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the bidding principle by reference to the
market price.
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The annual cap under the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement
was set based on the following factors: the estimated
amounts of transactions involved with reference to historical
transaction volume, and the expected stability of the
prevailing market prices for the sales of the Company’s
products. For the year ending 31 December 2019, the
annual cap is RMB21,000,000.

As at the date of signing the product purchase framework
agreement and Ton Yi Renewal Agreement, both President
and Ton Yi were non-wholly owned subsidiaries of Uni-
President Enterprises Corp., a Shareholder of the Company.
President. Through its two wholly owned subsidiaries,
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (B &P &t —
PERMRAEMR AR and Guangzhou President Enterprises
Corp.* (EMF— AR A 7)), held 63,746,040 domestic
shares of the Company, representing approximately
17.81% of the total issued share capital of the Company,
and 237,000 H shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.07% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Ton Yi is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the transactions
under the product purchase framework agreement and
Ton Yi Renewal Agreement between the Group and Ton
Yi constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Since the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profit ratio) for the proposed annual cap for all
relevant years are more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
pursuant to the Listing Rules, the continuing connected
transactions under the product purchase framework
agreement and Ton Yi Renewal Agreement with Ton Vi
are only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but are exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

For further details regarding the Ton Yi Renewal Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 December 2018.
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions
of the Group, the Company’s internal audit has reviewed
the relevant transactions and internal control procedures,
and provided the findings to the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the related agreements and transactions
contemplated thereunder and confirmed that these
transactions:

(i) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group;

(D) were conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties;

(iif) were entered into in accordance with the terms
of the respective agreements and were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole;

(iv) of which the aggregate annual amount were within
the relevant annual caps (if any);

(v) have been conducted in accordance with the
pricing policies or mechanisms under the framework
agreement, including the pricing range, the process
for determining the prices; and

(vi) for which the Group’s internal control procedures are
adequate and effective to ensure that transactions
are so conducted.

KPMG Huazhen LLP, the Company’s auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. KPMG Huazhen LLP have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Connected transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Stocks on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “Shanghai
Listing Rules”)

Connected transactions with Mitsui

As at 31 December 2018, Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (“Mitsui”) held
5.96% interests of the Company, for which it did not constitute
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
However, Mitsui and its subsidiaries are connected persons of
the Company under the Shanghai Listing Rules, therefore, the
Group’s sales to Mitsui and its subsidiaries are deemed connected
transactions under the Shanghai Listing Rules.

The prices of the Group’s products supplied to Mitsui and its
subsidiaries shall be determined based on (i) the Market Price
(as defined below); and (ii) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher. The “Market Price” shall be determined in the
following order: (1) the prices charged by an independent third
party for selling the products under ordinary course of business
at the place where the products are sold or the vicinity; or (2)
the prices charged by an independent third party for selling the
products under ordinary course of business in China.

The “Historical Price” shall be the average price for all the
transactions of similar products with independent third parties within
three consecutive months as set forth in the records supervised
and maintained by the sales department of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s actual sales
of juice products to Mitsui and its subsidiaries was approximately
RMB44,249,970.

At the Board meeting held on 13 December 2018, the Directors
considered and approved the annual caps for the Group’s
purchase from Mitsui and its subsidiaries for the next three years
to regulate the Group’s purchase from Mitsui and its subsidiaries
from 1 January 2019 and up to 31 December 2021.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note X to
the Financial Statements. Apart from the items disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related party
transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2018.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were (a) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by the directors of the Company as
referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Name of
Directors

EEna

Wang An
(Note 1)
IR(ME 1)

Wang Yanhui
(Note 3)
TaEE (M)

Zhang Hui
(Note 5)
KBS (Hf0)

Liu Tsung-Yi
8RE

Class of
Shares

&R

Non-listed
Foreign
Shares

¥
MER

Domestic
Shares

REG

Domestic
Shares

Domestic
Shares
&R

H Shares
Hix

Number of
Shares Held
FisRH8E

46,351,961 (1)
46,351,961(%)

54,658,540 (L)
54,658,540( %)

20,000,000 (1)
20,000,000(&)

20,000,000 (L)
20,000,000(%)

195,400 (L)
195,400(&)

Capacity
U]

Interest of controlled
corporation

REHEEER
(PzE2)

Interest of controlled
corporation

RIEHEEER
(ko)

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 4)
R AR (M)

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 6)
RIEHE B (3E6)

Beneficial owner

ERBEA

Type of
Interest

REER

Personal
fAA

Personal

faA

Personal

fEA

Personal

faA

Personal
fEA
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Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
WiEkRER
HEESL

18.50% (L)(&)

21.82% ()(&)

7.98% (L)(&)

7.98% (L)(&)

0.18% (L)(&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisREF
asl

12.95% (L)(k)

15.27% (U(&)

5.59% ((F)

5.59% (L)(&)

0.05% ()(&)
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Notes: MsE -

The letter “L” denotes a long position. [RIRTRE °

(1)

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Non-listed Foreign Shares, representing 12.95%

M

R-ZZE—-NF+-A=+—HB &5
F %54 - &%l 7 (a) China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited 2 90%

interest in the total issued share capital of the Company; (b) 90% HREZS © %N B H 46,351,961 A% 3F
interest in Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILERZEFE®ES EWHNER - (RARBIEBITHERSE
FRAE]), which held 54,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 12.95% : (b) IR ZEFEEFRAA
15.27% interest in the total issued share capital of the Company. Z90% s - HiFHE54,658,54008 A

BR AR RBBITRRA15.27% ©

@) Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Shares ©@) = % & A % i3 H 7 China Pingan
through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited Investment Holdmgs leltedﬂ LWERZ
and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (LWL EFIEEERAT]) . ENEEBRARIZERMERIEESR

PERR D #E RS o

3) As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Wang Yanhui, a Director, held 20% @) RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H E=

interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) TU%ELEE  BHERESELTKETR

(HeEZ®RERL (BRA&%)), which held 20,000,000 DNEBERER)Z20%#Em - E&FEA
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share 20,000,000l A& R + (RN A BB BT
capital of the Company. AR AN5.59% o

(@) Mr. Wang Yanhui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic (4) TWBELRBBERRBEELRESP
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre DERER) 2 Em MR IEESR LA
(Limited Partnership) (A& B LR ERL (BRER) ). B o

5) As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Zhang Hui, a Director, held 20% (5) e — N\FE+—-A=+—H0 E=EK
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) BhAE  FHERESEZEERL(ER

(HeEZ®RERL (BRE%)), which held 20,000,000 E%)220%REwm + H5H20,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.59% of the total issued share BRER  (EARARATEBETERKR K
capital of the Company. 5.59% -

(6) Mr. Zhang Hui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic 6) %ﬁ‘ﬁﬁf‘ﬁﬁilLL,ﬁé BELEED N,
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (BRAE) XTI WAEEALAE
(Limited Partnership) (A& EZ&RER L (BRER) ). FRiERS o

* For identification purpose only * (ERFHE
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company

As at 31 December 2018, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of
Shareholders

BRI

China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited

Shandong Andre Group
Co., Ltd.*
(WRZENEEERAA)

Donghua Fruit Industry
Co., Ltd.

Uni-President Enterprises
Corp.
f-ERHERAT

*

Class of
Shares

R ER

Non-listed
Foreign Shares

EMINER

Domestic Shares

R

Non-listed
Foreign Shares

FEMINER

Domestic Shares

H Shares
Hi%

For identification purpose only

Number of
Shares Held
FiisRieE

46,351,961 (L)
(Note 1)
46,351,961(%)
(BizE 1)

54,658,540 (L)
(Note 2)
54,658,540(%)
(M 2)

65,779,459 (L)
(Note 3)
65,779,459( &)
(BizE 3)

63,746,040 (L)
(Note 4)
63,746,040(%)
(i3t 4)

237,000 (L)
237,000( %)

Capacity
5

Beneficial owner

BERBBA

Beneficial owner

BaBAA

Beneficial owner

EEHAA

Interests of controlled
corporations
(Note 5)
Rt AR R
(Wi 5)
Beneficial owner
(Note 6)
ExBBA
(Ftsx 6)
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FERRRAMALIRELFR
7  BERMRBHEEPHER R
RE

BEEMA RZE-\F+A=+—
B BRARBES - EERITHARES -
EARB 2B - EXRO REEZEPHE
BARBCEZ RMEHRPDFEXVEFE2 K3
DEZ MEMARE » RELAXRAR
EHFMAEGIDFEIBHRIRERFE

ZERMP s MAR 2 IRR R EMA

+aT
Approximate
Percentage of Approximate
Non-circulating Percentage of
Shares/ Total Share
Type of H Shares Capital
Interest otk ER iEkE
ERER HEESL ast
Corporate 18.50% (L)(K) 12.95% ()(K)
NG
Corporate 21.82% ()(K) 15.271% ()(&)
A
Corporate 26.26% ()(&) 18.37% (U(&)
NG
Corporate 25.44% (L)(F) 17.81% ()(R)
A
Corporate 0.22% ()(K) 0.07% )(R)
NG

Y ELRES
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Name of Number of Type of

Shareholders Class of Shares Shares Held  Capacity Interest

T 121 Bin%aR FERHBE &6 EREE

Mitsui & Co., Ltd. H Shares 21,340,000 ()  Beneficial owner Corporate

=HhEG gt HER 21,340,000(k) E#nHEBA N

Hongan International Non-listed 65,779,459 ()  Interest of controlled ~ Corporate
Investment Co. Ltd. Foreign Shares 65,779,459(&)  corporations NG

SREBEREER AT ¥ EmIMER Rt AR R

H Shares 17,222,880 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate
HER 17,222,880(%) E#EHA N
Zhang Shaoxia Non-listed 46,351,961 () Interest of spouse Personal
RinE Foreign Shares 46,351,961(K) EBER fHA
¥ EmIMER (Hx7)
Domestic Shares 54,658,540 (L) Interest of spouse  Personal
A 54,658540(K)  EBiEH fAA
(Hx7)
Wang Meng Non-listed 65,779,459 ()  Interest of controlled ~ Personal
T# Foreign Shares 65,779,459(&)  corporations A
FETNER (Note 8)
Rt AR ER
(M 8)
H Shares 17,222,880 (L) Interest of controlled  Personal
Hi% 17,222,880(%)  corporations fEA
(Note 9)
REb AR R
(Bt 9)

Yantai Xingan Domestic 20,000,000 (L) Beneficial Owner Corporate
Investment Centre Shares 20,000,000(%k) E&nEBA N
(Limited Partnership) NER

REAZREDL(ERA)

Tiandi Win-Win Investment  H Shares 11,000,000 (L) Beneficial owner Corporate
Management Co., Hi& (Note 10)  BZEHEA NG
Limited 11,000,000(%)

(Fti10)
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Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
HiEERER
HEESL

19.86% (L)(&)

26.26% (L)(K)

16.03% (L)(&)

18.50% (L)(&)

21.82% (L)(K)

26.26% (L)(&)

16.03% ()(K)

7.98% ()(K)

10.24% ((K)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

596% ()(&)

18.37% (J(K)

4.81% ()(&)

12.95% (L)(k)

15.27% ()(K)

18.37% (U(&)

481% ()(R)

5.59% (L&)

3.07% ()(F)



Name of
Shareholders

BERE

Shenzhen Tiandi Win-Win
Investment Management
Co., Limited

MRS LFREER
BRAF

Tiandi Yihao Beverage
Co., Limited
RZERERERBRAF

Chen Sheng
fRE

Class of Shares

LAvd)

H Shares
Hi&

H Shares
Hi&

H Shares
Hi&

Number of
Shares Held
iR E

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(HzE10)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(MzE10)

11,000,000 (1)
(Note 10)
11,000,000( &)
(HzE10)

Capacity
EL]

Interest of controlled
corporations
REHEEER

Interest of controlled
corporations
R ZEER

Interest of controlled
corporations
RS EEER
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Type of
Interest

#RER

Corporate
An

Corporate
NS

Personal

fBA

Approximate
Percentage of
Non-circulating
Shares/

H Shares
HiEERER
HEESL

10.24% (L)(&)

10.24% (L)(&)

10.24% ()(&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisRRF
asl

3.07% (U(R)

3.07% V(&)

3.07% ()(&)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Non-listed Foreign Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd* (ILFRZEFEBHRAT]) .

The long position in 65,779,459 Non-listed Foreign Shares was
directly held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the
information provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan
International Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were
deemed to be interested in these 65,779,459 Non-listed Foreign
Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
(Bm—EROAERATD),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (R&&H—DERRAERAD
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%ABBRAF]), which
held 21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. (Hi—1EEBMHAERAT]) was deemed to be interested in
such 63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic
Shares were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-
President Enterprises Corp. (#&i— 1R HAEBR AR, of which
42,418,360 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
11.85% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were
held directly by Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
(BREB G — ¥R RBMRAT) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares,
representing approximately 5.96% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, were held directly by Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%ARAF)

For identification purpose only
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[RIKTEKE -

M

*

EF TSk LE BFEBHERChina
Pingan Investment Holdings LimitedZ
90% #E 21 1M #R AR VEVE A 1tk 3F L T ANE AR
s o

BEITRELE  FBEBERNURZER
SEARRF Z90% M 5 i AR E A
HEAE s -

65,779,459 3F L ANE R KB T B
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. B ##F
A& - ¥ Donghua Fruit Industry Co.,
Ltd IREMEE @ ARBBIREERA
BIMEBH L TRR R UL65,779,459
I&IE ETINE AR IR ©

63,746,040l RN E KRR E B — %
RHBRRQE 2 IEEEH BT U
President China Holdings Ltd.% @ H
MEZENBARKER —ER®
BRAR(HE#HEBF42,418360 A E
BI)REBEMG—CEARAR(EFH
21,327,680l NE ) HE ©

BARCE S RS EAIDEXVE - Hi—1
RN AR RHEAR ERF 563,746,040
B& M & BY #E & o 7% 68,746,040 & A
BEREF—CEROARARZ —&E
BEEENEESAE - EF42,418,360
BAER AR BEBITRRKRALY
11.85% @ BESH—ERRBARA
BIEEREAR  WAN21,327,680AE
f& - (RARRAEIE BITRRAELS5.96% -
HEMG—CEERAREERA -

ERH 5



(10)

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd..

46,351,961 Non-listed Foreign Shares and 54,658,540 Domestic
Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the husband of Ms. Zhang
Shaoxia, and therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Non-listed Foreign Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
17,222,880 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

The long position in 11,000,000 H Shares was held by Shenzhen
Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management Co., Limited (731171 X
HEREEE AR AT, awholly-owned subsidiary of Tiandi Yihao
Beverage Co., Limited (RihZ5E VKR 5B R A F]), through its
wholly-owned subsidiary Tiandi Win-Win Investment Management
Co., Limited. Mr. Chen Sheng was deemed to be interested
in these H Shares through his 78.41% interest in Tiandi Yihao

Beverage Co., Limited (K= 5% RN A IR A 7).

(10)

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

It H & 9 B Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. Bz A -

FREA(RBEZTZEREB)H
A 46,351,961 R 3F L T 2N B IR &
54,658,540k NERR - AL RABEL T
WRIEEA LR O EE -

T B & £+ @ # ¥ A Donghua Fruit
Industry Co., Ltd..2100% 2 BT -
ifiDonghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.5& 4
65,779,459/ 3F EHHMERY - E It 7
AR IEREA IR DR o

THERTEERBELLRABREEEFRA
AEHEEITRA  ARBRREBR
NEHEF17,222,880 H% - FH itk T #5
R IEREA IR DR

11,000,000 % HA% & & £ K 30 = 5% &k
BRHOBERARZEZENBRQBDRINT
AMEFGREEBEERARBEBRES
E BB A B Tiandi Win-Win Investment
Management Co., Limited#H - &4
EAEFBENKMSHRIFRENHERA
A1,278.41% 2 7 % M AR VE B LEHAR
TR o
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Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling Shareholder or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business which competes or may compete with the businesses
of the Group or has or may have any other conflicts of the interest
with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Practices and Procedures of the Board

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard was sent to
each Director two months before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s 2018 annual results, with a reminder
that the Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of
the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to notify
the chairman of the Board and receive a dated acknowledgement
in writing before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the
Company and, in the case of the chairman of the Board himself,
he must notify the chairman of the Audit Committee and receive
a dated acknowledgement in writing before any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Review Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
primary duties of the Audit and Review Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group, ensuring compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of
the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and Review Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Jiang Hong Qi, who is the chairman of the Audit and Review
Committee, Li Wei and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Audit and Review
Committee held four meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.
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Report of Directors

EEGHRE

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen LLP shall retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained
unchanged.

By Order of the Board

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

22 March 2019
Yantai, the PRC

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, has
conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle, and
has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence
to protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and
in the interests of its Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors, audited
financial statements and the dividend to be proposed by the Board
for presentation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We
are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and to
work in accordance with the Articles of Association. The operation
is becoming more regulated and the internal control is constantly
improved. The transactions between the Company and connected
parties are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
under fair and reasonable price.

*

For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EExgRd

Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and
senior management staff had been found to have abused their
authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed
upon the interests of its Shareholders and employees. None of
them was found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2018 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Dai Li Ying

22 March 2019

*  For identification purpose only
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KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No.1901141

Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“Andre”), which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated and company income statements, the
consolidated and company cash flow statements, the consolidated
and company statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company
financial position of Andre as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated and company financial performance and cash flows
of Andre for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants (“CSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of Andre in accordance
with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Auditors’ Report
B &

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Loss allowances for trade receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Refer to Note V.2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting
policies in Note IIl.8 to the significant accounting policies and accounting

estimates.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2018, the Andre
and its subsidiaries’ (“Andre Group”)
gross trade receivables amounted to
RMB178,541,401, against which a
loss allowance of RMB8,028,504 was
recorded. The Andre Group’s trade
receivables mainly arose from sales
of condensed fruit juice and related
products.

Management measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss based
on estimated loss rates for the
receivables. The estimated loss rates
take into account the ageing of trade
receivable balances, the repayment
history of Andre Group’s customers,
current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions, and forward-
looking information. Such assessment
involves significant management
judgement and estimation.

80 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEHZEFR

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
loss allowance for trade receivables
included the following:

e obtaining an understanding
of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimating the
credit loss allowance;

¢ evaluating the Andre Group’s
policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

* assessing whether items were
correctly categorised in the
trade receivables ageing report
by comparing individual items
therein with sales invoices
and other relevant underlying
documentation(including the
acknowledgement of receipt
of goods or bill of lading), on a
sample basis;
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Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Refer to Note V.2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting
policies in Note .8 to the significant accounting policies and accounting

estimates.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit

We identified the loss allowance for e  obtaining an understanding of the

trade receivables as a key audit matter key parameters and assumptions
because determining the level of the of the expected credit loss model
loss allowance requires the exercise adopted by the management,
of significant management judgement including the judgement of
which is inherently subjective. segmentation of the accounts

receivable based on credit risk
characteristics of customers
and the historical default data in
management’s estimated loss
rates;

e assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the
information used by management
to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-
looking information;

e inspecting the accuracy of the
calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2018 based
on the Andre Group’s credit loss
allowance policies; and

* inspecting, on a sample basis,
cash receipts from debtors
subsequent to the reporting
date relating to trade receivable
balances as at 31 December
2018.
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Other Information

Andre’s management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in 2018
annual report of Andre, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of such internal control
necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate Andre or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
Andre’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Andre’s internal control.

(8) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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Auditors’ Report
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(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on Andre’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Andre to cease to continue as a going concern.

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Andre Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Huazhen LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Ye Qing (Engagement Partner)

Lau Kin Chun

Beijing, China

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2018412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
20185 20174 20175
Note  fff& 12A31H 12A31H 1A18
ASSETS HE
Current assets: MEEE
Cash at bank and on hand ERES VA A1 378,686,607 79,398,474 110,178,784
Financial assets at fair value NA#EEER
through profit or loss HEFAEH
BafeREE - - 7,833,191
Bills and accounts receivable R K R MR 30 V.2 f2 176,632,385 201,557,912 161,523,484
Prepayments SEIRE ] V.3 f-3 2,756,252 3,081,104 3,564,813
Other receivables H b REMR V4 E 4 728,620 42,047,494 750,309
Inventories FE V.5 f-5 494,326,530 771,009,840 817,753,361
Other current assets Hib e EE V.6 I6 28,843,320 51,348,620 84,553,872
Total current assets MEBEEAR 1,081,973,714 1,148,443, 444  1,186,157,814
Non-current assets: FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIftHHESREE - = 21,314,443
Fixed assets ETEE V.7 -7 738,005,022 738,422,507 833,083,021
Construction in progress hEETRE V.8 f-8 6,263,653 121,660 113,342
Intangible assets B EE V.9 -9 89,629,235 89,228,391 110,131,782
Goodwil GES V10 & 10 5,586,976 5,586,976 5,586,976
Total non-current assets ERBEER 839,484,886 833,359,534 970,229,564
Total assets BEB 1,921,458,600  1,981,802,978  2,156,387,378

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial TSR E101 BEEF284 B B ISR KM
statements. R R AVAERER D o
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LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Bills and accounts payable
Advance payments received
Contract liabilities
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Other payables

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term payables
Deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form

statements.

ARNERREZ

nEaE
REfER
ENRERENE
YR
ARARE

FEATB T3
ERBE

H B R

RBAEA
EREaE
BT

BT

FRBAEAT

Note

V.13
b V.14

V.15
V.16
VA7
V.18

= =

== = =

13
14

> 18
+ 16
<17
18

part of these financial

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201812 A31H

(2 FHE - AR¥T)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
2018% 20174 20174
12A31H 12H31H 1A1H
50,000,000 170,000,000 340,000,000
38,189,494 86,369,615 65,327,226
- 2,399,933 1,220,270
3,916,109 - -
20,939,844 21,275,667 21,574,064
9,772,668 11,003,249 31,596,332
17,949,193 12,445,942 41,509,865
140,767,308 303,494,406 501,227,757
1,687,458 840,584 803,552

- - 3,127,500

1,687,458 840,584 3,931,052
142,454,766 304,334,990 505,158,809

TIEHNFE101 B E 5284 8 MBI ISR K 5+
BRI IRER MR ER D o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201812 A31H
(2BEEN - ARKT)

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(cont'd)

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital

Capital reserve

Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve

Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

ARMRERR (W)

RS
R
HftiRa e
ADEHE

BREsA

BEAMRR R A5

V.19
V.20
V.21
V.22
V.23

=yi= == =)

19
+ 20
21
22
28

31 December
2018

20186
12A31H

358,000,000
17,291,715
107,581,973
1,296,130,146

31 December
2017

20174
12H31H

358,000,000
17,291,715
107,111,132
1,195,065,141

1 January
2017
20174
1A1H

368,000,000
47,035,755
2,041,764
105,794,859
1,128,356,191

1,779,003,834

1,677,467,988

1,651,228,569

1,921,458,600

1,981,802,978

2,156,387,378

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.

SRR D N2019FE3 A2 R EEE S -

Legal Representative:
EERKRA

Wang An
I

Chief Accountant: Li Lei

SERIMEBREEA Eas

Chief Financial Officer:
TEEHIEAEA

(Company stamp)
(REIEE)

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.

88  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HZEFNRTRHOERATE

Wang Yan Hui
FHiE

TIEHNFE101 B R 5284 8 B SR K W5+
BRI IR MR ER D o



ASSETS gE&
Current assets: MBERE :
Cash at bank and on hand ERES
Bills and accounts receivable IR IE & R BR 3
Prepayments BNRE
Other receivables H At R
Inventories FE
Other current assets HiREEE
Total current assets MEEEAR
Non-current assets: ERBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIftHESREE
Long-term equity investments RERERE
Fixed assets EEEE
Intangible assets BVEE
Total non-current assets FRBEERR
Total assets BER

Note

XV.1
XV.2
XV.3
XV.4
XV.5
XV.6

XV.7
XV.8
XV.9

Y&t

+&
+& -
+& -
+& -
+& -
+5 -

D O~ W N —

+H 7
+# -8
+& -9

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.

Company Balance Sheet

BAREERER
As at 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201812 A31H

(2 FHE - AR¥T)

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
2018% 20174 20174
12A31H 12H31H 1A1H
300,983,157 57,533,223 84,468,206
157,017,600 127,623,475 137,488,971
28,477 594,527 503,997
144,994,128 278,952,992 394,493,654
100,656,824 131,916,525 130,249,238
26,349,155 41,289,336 73,526,044
730,029,341 637,910,078 820,730, 1 1Q
- - 21,314,443
430,594,744 434,907,677 570,402,700
146,023,213 166,825,696 152,884,171
30,279,883 31,274,167 32,268,451
606,897,840 633,007,540 776,869,765

1,336,927,181

1,270,917,618

1,697,599,875

TIEHNFE101 B R 5284 8 MBI SR K W5+
BRI IR MR ER D o
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Company Balance Sheet

BAREEERERX
As at 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2018412 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

LIABILITIES AND AREMBRRER
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities: MEARE :
Short-term loans RHER
Bills and accounts payable ERNRE R EMNIRK
Advance payments received BIIE
Contract liabilities BR&EE
Employee benefits payable FEA 8 T35
Taxes payable ERHE
Other payables HA BT

Total current liabilities MBAREE

Non-current liabilities: FREaE
Deferred income BN

Total non-current liabilities FRBAEA

Total liabilities BEaE

Note

XV.11

AV.12

XV.13

XV.14

Ti
T

Th-

5

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.
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~ 11
12

31 December 31 December 1 January
2018 2017 2017
2018% 20174 20174
12A31H 12H31H 1A1H
50,000,000 170,000,000 340,000,000
17,768,081 35,588,166 224,580,978
- 1,520,786 923,749

1,948,734 - -
3,367,283 2,674,709 2,927,239
293,347 233,581 273,788
445,499,574 211,758,618 132,204,281
518,877,019 421,775,860 700,910,035
- - 525,000

- , i)
518,877,019 421,775,860 701,435,035

TIEHNFE101 B R 5284 8 B ISR K 5+
BRI IR MR ER D o



LIABILITIES AND ARMBRER(E)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(cont'd)

Shareholders’ equity: PR
Share capital AR
Capital reserve VYN
Other comprehensive income Hindr e e
Surplus reserve BHATE
Retained earnings RAOBFE

Total shareholders’ equity BRERA G

Total liabilities and BEMRRER A

shareholders’ equity

Company Balance Sheet

BAREERER
As at 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201812 A31H
(2&EEN - AR¥T)

31 December 31 December 1 January

2018 2017 2017

20185 20174 20174

Note  Mi&E 12A31H 12318 1818

V19 & 19 358,000,000 358,000,000 368,000,000
XV.i5 +H 15 43,534,413 43,534,413 73,278,453
= = 2,041,764

XV.16 +H 16 107,581,973 107,111,132 105,794,859
308,933,776 340,496,213 347,049,764

818,050,162 849,141,758 896,164,840

1,336,927,181  1,270,917,618  1,597,5699,875

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.

SRR D N2019FE3 A2 R EEE S -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERKRA Tz

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BIIEEEEA SR

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
FERTILERBRA FHiE

(Company stamp)
(REIEE)

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial TSR E101 BEEF284 B B ISR KM=

statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

B O RIE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20185 E

(2 #RE - AR¥T)

| Operating income — EERA
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERA
Taxes and surcharges B RKm
Selling and distribution expenses HEER
General and administrative expenses EEER
Research and development expenses THEEA
Financial expenses HEER
Including: Interest expenses Heb: FISEM
Interest income FEBA
Impairment losses BERERX
Credit losses ERREERX
Add: Other income i Efllies
Investment income RE&
Gains from changes in fair value AR EEZSER
Gains/(losses) from asset disposals BERERR
I Operating profit = EERE
Add: Non-operating income i EEIMEA
Less: Non-operating expenses W BEIT
IV Profit before taxation m - MR

W EHRER

Less: Income tax expenses

FHEREENGAA
BREFHE

V' Net profit for the year and net profit Gl
attributable to shareholders
of the Company

VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax 75 ~ Ef&RA NENE %38

FalarBREBRE
RTJ&%E@Z?QH&Z it

VIl Total comprehensive income for the € ©
year and total comprehensive
income attributable to
shareholders of the Company

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in
note XIlI.
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Note  PiaE
Vo4 24
Vo4 24
Vo5 E 25
V26  F 26
vor  E o7
Vo8 E 28
V29 E 29
V30 30
V31 & 31Q)
V32 E 32
V33 E 33
V40 40
V.34 H 34
V35 35
V36 36
vl E 21

2018 2017
2018% 20174
1,067,584,808 901,041,170
776,593,703 619,321,258
15,366,547 15,550,682
91,211,827 69,877,455
61,467,938 53,084,441
2,153,292 1,855,651
(15,638,419) 20,936,758
1,026,756 7,524,714
162,730 425,062
2,412,779 36,916,073
2,962,242 =
2,313,133 1,474,788
7,384,819 2,802,323

- 79,304

222,456 (1,622,774)
140,975,307 86,332,493
7,888 514,069
3,509,795 285,696
137,473,400 86,560,866
137,554 135,643
137,335,846 86,425,223
- ([2041,764)
137,335,846 84,383,459

TIEHNE101 B2 5284 8 MBI ISR K W5

RS ERR A EKEE D
G SN Ve

S

o MEBNETA
B T AR B AR R A9 A%
 BERET= -



Consolidated Income Statement

VIl Earnings per share: N F
(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

B O RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20184 [Z

(£FEE - ARKT)

2018 2017
Note BisE 20185 20174
V39 T -39 0.384 0.238
V39 T -39 0.384 0.238

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.

IR ImREN2019F3 A2 S F A -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EERRKRA = FESHIEREA: I %=
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEHEBEEEA X (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in
note XIlI.

TIEHRFE101 BEEF284 B M IEIRKRM T
BABBHREROEKI S - REBREA
AIREAFEFE - BN TARRKREARK
FFE - BEAKFET= -
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Company Income Statement

1SN DS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20185 E

(£FEE - AR T)

2018 2017

Note  PizE 20184 20174

| Operating income — EERA XV.17 +& 17 621,421,261 576,704,076
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERA XV.17 +& 17 555,872,508 503,741,936
Taxes and surcharges B KB 3,540,473 2,724,943

Selling and distribution expenses HEER 45,471,919 35,797,439

General and administrative expenses EEER 20,253,528 14,357,510
Research and development expenses HEER 2,153,292 1,610,144
Financial expenses HEER XvV.18 +% 18 (9,317,666) 18,267,418
Including: Interest expenses H: FISEM 989,723 7,487,681

Interest income FEHA 133,550 401,328

Impairment losses BERERX 5,066,052 31,196,465

Credit losses ERREERX 2,962,242 =

Add: Other income i Efbllas 2,071,000 721,000
Investment income REWE XVi9 A 19 7,318,644 43,061,008
Gains/(losses) from asset disposal BERERR 181,894 (16,788)

Il Operating profit = EERE 4,990,451 12,773,441
Add: Non-operating income o EEINIA 160 489,281
Less: Non-operating expenses w EEIT 282,207 100,000

IV Profit before income tax I FEERE 4,708,404 13,162,722
Less: Income tax expenses R ER XV.20 +& 20 - -

V. Net profit for the year a R 4,708,404 18,162,722
VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax 75 » EfiRA ENE %38 - (2,041,764)
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year — + - fRA IR B85 4,708,404 11,120,958

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.
L BHREREN2019F3 22 B BEE A -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EERRA Tz FESHIEREA: I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BRHEBEEEA =3 (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial TR E101 BEEF284 B MBI 53R &M
statements. Details of dividends payable to shareholders’ of the BABBHREROEKT S - REBREA
Company attributable to the net profit for the year are set out in AR EFEFE - BN TARRGREAK
note XIll. NS - CERMET= -
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| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods
and rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees
Payments of various taxes

Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets

Investment returns received

Net proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of a subsidiary

Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of
financial Assets

Payments for acquisition of
fixed assets, construction in progress
and intangible assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing Activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20184 [Z

(£FEE - ARKT)

2018 2017
Note Bzt 20185 20174

RETPELNRERE

HEAED - RESHREINRS
1,201,175061 944,027,142

WERHERE 91,155,828 79,667,181
WEHEMECEESEENRS VA1) & 41(1) 8,657,160 7,626,658
BEEHRDMANG 1,300,988,049  1,031,520,981
BEMm  EXBBIANRE (628,381,886)  (685,924,729)
IHEBTIARBBILH0RE (56,551,050)  (54,678,498)
TRRNSERE (43,565,824)  (46,858,895)
THEpELEEHERNA S VA1) T 4102 (124,925,040)  (108,302,828)
HREIR LRt (BS3AZBB00) (895,764,044
REEHELENHEREFH v42() & 4201) 447,564,249 135,756,037

~  RERDELNRAEAE

pESHAERINES

4,310,671,400  1,989,604,982
RERAKEFUEINAS 7384819 5,718,800
EEETAEMUENRLSSE

494,599 23,536
RETARIREREIR

R 58 VA202)  E - 420) 40,280,000 44,444,699
WE EmEE B EE RN S V413 & 419) 162,730 425,062
REZHESHANGT 4,358,993,548  2,040,217,079

BESRAEXNNGS
(4,310,671,400) (1,936,292,488)
BRETAE ERIEN
RYEEFSNORE
(46,960,544) (12,288,219

REEFHS MG (4,357,631,944)  (1,948,580,707)

REAGHEENREREFR 1,361,604 91,636,372

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial FIEHNFE101 B2 F284 B MBI &R HtzE

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20185 &

(2 #RE - AR¥T)

Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of borrowings

Payments for dividends

Payments for interest

Payments for purchase of own shares

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

V' Net increase / (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

= BERDELNZERE:

REERERNR S
BEEHREERDARANES

SRR AANG
EEERMNRE
DEBRMZ RS
EFFEXRHRE
EEATRG MRS
LEEPHRLML/ NG
SERPELNREREFE

EXEHHHELEE
EEMNTE

ReRBEFENF

#m/ORd )&
n: ERE RS EENRE

ERRE RS SENRE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.
L EHREREN2019F3 22 B BEEEHE -

Chief Financial Officer:
FESFILEAERA :

Legal Representative: Wang An
EERERA T
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
BEITHBEEA Exa

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEHZEFR

(Company stamp)

(RARIEE)

STROBRAF

2018 2017

Note M 2018% 20174

70,900,000 272,800,000

1,825,000 350,000

B C DO

(190,090,159)  (459,193,660)

(35,800,000) (18,400,000)

(1,916,518) (7,560,000)

= (39,744,040)

(227,806,677)  (524,897,700)

(155,081,677)  (251,747,700)

5,443,957 (6,425,019)

V.42(1) h o 42(1) 299,288,133 (30,780,310)

79,398,474 110,178,784

V.42(3) h - 42(3) 378,686,607 79,398,474
Wang Yan Hui

T U

TIEHNFE101 B R 5284 8 MBI SR K 5+

R RR BB D



| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees

Payments of various taxes
Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
Investment returns received
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Net proceeds from disposal of equity

interests of a subsidiary
Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of financial assets
Payments for acquisition of fixed assets

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from investing activities

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.

iﬁﬁ’r@ﬁi%a/éﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%

LEHRERA/E

RERPELNREREFE

PREMERE RS ARNAS

RERBRE AN

BESRAEXNNRS
BRETEEMXNNRS

RERPELHRATREFR

Company Cash Flow Statement
BARBAERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20184 /%

(£FEE - ARKT)

TR THELNRERE
ﬁ%ﬁuu”&iwmfﬁi

XRBTIARAET

RERPELNRERE
YEeEERIINRS
REREREMREINRE

BREFATRERINASFR

2018 2017
Note Bzt 20185 20174

604,287,773 586,370,397

64,780,225 56,767,103

/ﬁbﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁi 12,022,574 12,834,582

Apgt 681,090,572 655,972,082

m o EXBBIANES (340,844,329)  (650,033,559)
(15,623,795) (15,180,335)

(3,373,319) (2,765,149)

(63,454,461) (51,597,928)

(423,295,904)  (719,576,971)

X210 FE 21 257794668 (63604,889)

4,282,671,400  1,496,220,000

35,318,644 94,227,278

REETEEMKLMERSFE 262,590 -
19,080,000 44,520,000

85,871,419 121,723,763

4,423,204,053  1,756,691,041

(4,282,671,400)  (1,450,820,000)

(2,486,266) (11,924,503
e (4,285,157,666)  (1,462,744,503)
138,046,387 293946538

TIEHNFE101 B R 5284 8 B ISR K 5+
BB SRR M4 R EB
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Company Cash Flow Statement
BARBAERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2018 &

(2 #RE - AR¥T)

2018 2017
Note Mzt 2018 20178
lIl Cash flows from financing activities: = BERPELNFLRE:
Proceeds from borrowings MEETNE MRS 50,000,000 272,800,000
Proceeds from other financing activities BRI RSB E
ABNRE 1,825,000 -
Sub-total of cash inflows SEEHRLMANG 51,825,000 272,800,000
Repayments of borrowings EEEF NS (170,000,000)  (459,193,660)
Payments for dividends PERAZFHERE (35,800,000) (18,400,000)
Payments for interest ENFESANES (1,566,518) (7,560,000
Payments for purchase of own shares EEARRAS MRS - (39,744,040)
Sub-total of cash outflows ERTHRESTM /G _ (207,366,518)  (524,897,700)
Net cash outflow from financing activities EEEYEANTENEFHE _ (155,541,518)  (252,097,700)
IV Effect of foreign currency exchange rate EXZHHRAS R
changes on cash and cash equivalents ResEmere 3,150,307 (5,178,932)
V' Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRREEEMF
and cash equivalents g1,/ CRd)& XV.21(2) T8 -21(2) 243,449,934 (26,934,983)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: ¥R ERE
at the beginning of the year ZEMHRE 57,533,223 84,468,206
VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end N ERBE RS EEMRE
of the year XV21 (3) +H - 21(3) 300,983,157 57,533,203
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.
L EHREREN2019F3A22B BEEEHE -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREA = TFEETIEERA : T &
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
RN T = UNE EX G (REIEE)

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
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STROBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
EOHRREZBE K

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan))

Balance at 1 January 2017

Changes in equity for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholders
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 January 2018

Changes in equity for the year
1, Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions o shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2018

NITEIF1ERE

KEERATLE
155 WM@%
2. HEAT
—%w&ﬁ@
~4RRNAR
3 BEEE

N17E12831B4E

N18E1A1BEE

AEERRDLE
1 GRlEEE
9 'ﬂ/z 77
_EmRENE

v
=8
T
=
=5
=

N18F12831B4E

20185 E
(£FEE - ARKT)
Other

Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total

#* Kift R £l
Note i k% O eha 0 flR it
368,000,000 47,035,755 2,041,764 105,794,859 1,128,366,191 1,661,228,569
- - (2,041,764) - 86425203  84,383459
Va3 28 - - - 1316273 (1316,273) -
- - - - (18,400,000 (18,400,000
V19 &+19  (10,0000000  (29,744,040) - - - (39,744,040)
368,000,000 17,291,715 - 107,111,132 1,195,065,141  1,677,467,988
358,000,000 17,291,715 - 107,111,132 1,195,065,141 1,677,467,988
- - - - 137,335,846 137,335,846
Va3 528 - - - 470,841 (470,841) -
- - - - (352800,0000 (35,400,000
358,000,000 17,291,715 - 107,581,978 1,206,130,146 1,779,003,834

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.
I RKRER2019F3 A2 EEE St /& -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EERRA Tz FESHIEBRA I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BAEBREA ¢ & (REIEE)

TIEHNFE101 B E 5284 8 MBI EIRK 5t
BB SRR M4 R EB

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial
statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
BRATRIRRERZSE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2018 &

(2 #RE - AR¥T)

Other
Share Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
#* Kift R £l
Note ik k% O gona R flR it
Balance at 1 January 2017 DITEIRIREE 368,000000 73278453 2,041,764 105794859  347,049764 896,164,840
Changes in equity for the year FEEHEDLE
1., Total comprehensive income 154 U&mﬁ@gﬁ - - (2,041,764) - 13162722 11,120958
2. Appropriation of profits 2 MERE
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve *TEW i IN Va3 12 - - - 1316213 (1316279 -
- Distrbutions to shareholders ~HRRHAR - - - - (18400000)  (18,400,000)
3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V19 E-19 (100000000  (29,744,040) - - - (39,744,040)
Balance at 31 December 2017 N17E12A31BHE 368,000,000 43534413 - 107,111,182 340,496,213 849,141,758
Balence at 1 January 2018 N18E1F1BHE 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 107,111,132 340,496,213 849,141,758
Changes in equity for the year FERHEYLE
1., Total comprehensive income 1. GelaeE - - - - 4708404 4708404
2. Appropriation of profts 2 HEAR
-~ Appropriation for surplus reserve ~ROEHLE Vs Qs - - - 470,841 (470,841) =
- Distributions to shareholders ~HRENAR = - - - (352800,0000 (35,400,000
Balance at 31 December 2018 N18F12A31AHE 358,000,000 43,534,413 - 107,581,978 308,933,776 818,050,162
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019.
I RKRER2019F3 A2 EEE St /& -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : Tz FEGFILEAERA : T Gy
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
EEEBEEA EX (RARIEE)

TIEHNFE101 B E 5284 8 MBI EIRK 5t
BB SRR M4 R EB

The notes on pages 101 to 284 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited which
was established in Yantai on 30 March 1996. Headquarter
of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong Province.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are in the manufacture and sale of condensed
juice, pulp, apple essence, pomace and related products.
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer
to Note VII.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates

Accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of
provisions for receivables, recognition of cost of inventories,
depreciation of fixed assets, amortisation of intangible assets,
and revenue recognition and measurement of the Group
are adopted according to the specific characteristics of the
Company’s operations. Please refer to the relevant notes on
accounting policies.

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) of the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and present
truly and completely the consolidated financial position
and financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated and the Company’s financial
performance and the consolidated and the Company’s
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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2 EFHIM

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

2 Accounting period

The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.

BHEEAABIAIBRE12A
31BLE -

Functional currency 3 MR

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and RARIMRERAUESARE -
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi. R BHRREANEEAEAR
Functional currency is determined by the Company and B o KRB R FRAAEFELER
its subsidiaries on the basis of the currency in which major NERERIEE T EERIR T HET
income and costs are denominated and settled. Some BMEEEE - KRQAFIMED T
of the Company’s subsidiaries have functional currencies AN AER A AR A A RS BR AN AL % LASN
that are different from the Company’s functional currency. HNEBEETLEANIE iR
Their financial statements have been translated based on KRB HERE - EET AR
the accounting policy set out in Note I11.7. MRS RRIERMIE=  TET T

hE o
Accounting treatments for business combinations 4 E—EHTHMER—ZHTEE

involving entities under common control and not

under common control

(1) Business combinations involving entities under
common control
A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
combination (or the total par value of shares issued) is
adjusted against share premium in the capital reserve,
with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.
Any costs directly attributable to the combination
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The
combination date is the date on which one combining
entity obtains control of other combining entities.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for business combinations
involving entities under common control and not
under common control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving entities not under
common control
A business combination involving entities not under
common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination. Where (1) the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2)
the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note IIl.15).
If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. The costs
of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of the
consideration for the acquisition are included in the
carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements
(1) General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
exists when the investor has all of following: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (48)

5 AOIMBHRROERTE(E)
2) BHRFFLAE]

5 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities under common control, the financial statements
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements based on the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
as if the combination had occurred at the date that
the ultimate controlling party first obtained control. The
opening balances and the comparative figures of the
consolidated financial statements are also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, any
resulting disposal gains or losses are recognised
as investment income for the current period. The
remaining equity interests is re-measured at its fair
value at the date when control is lost. Any resulting
gains or losses are also recognised as investment
income for the current period.

HRBBE—IEH T RESH
MBHNTRA] > ERHEEHE
MU BHRERE - WRaHFTA
ANSREE - BEERKE
M BHRETORREER
A - GRKAHFFRARES
RAREEH T HERRENR
EHERAARNRBEHEE -
I & BF B 75 Sk B0 B 80UA
KA R R ETTHER

B, o
i

HNEEIER —ZFI TRES
BT RAR] - EREE G
2 MM - ABERE
ERRBE FARSRAYHR
BE  BENAAEBERER
BEEAERKEE T RRAM
ARRBEHEHE o

(3) BEF 2 A]

AEBRIYRE R FZEH
R - RIEENEARE R
BRIBK - FEARKIEHIREE
HIm iR B et - SRR
BE  AEEZREERKE
BB AR EEETEMN
B AltEEM TR KA
K BEFABRKIE S E HIH
BREWE -

—Z—\FF#H Annual Report 2018

105



Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

LAFEREATRE - FEHbs
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

RERREEEBYNRERE

6 Cash and cash equivalents 6

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of
foreign currency financial statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies
from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the construction of qualifying
assets (see Note lll.13). Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss, except for the differences arising from the
re-translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements (cont’d)
Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’
equity with respect to a foreign operation are transferred
to profit or loss in the period when the foreign operation
is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on
hand, investments in equity securities other than those
classified as long-term equity investment (see Note Ill. 10),
receivables, payables, loans and borrowings and share
capital.

Upon the adoption of CAS No.22, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (Revised), CAS No.23,
Transfer of Financial Assets (Revised), CAS No.24, Hedge
Accounting (Revised) and CAS No.37, Presentation and
Disclosures of Financial Instruments (Revised) on 1
January 2018, the Group has adjusted the cumulative
effect of financial instrument that were exist at 1 January
2018 to the opening balance of retained earnings and the
amount of other revelant items in the financial statements
at 1 January 2018, and comparative information has
not been restated. As a result, the accounting policies
of financial instruments are different before and after 1
January 2018. The details are as below:
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are charged to
profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and
liabilities are measured as follows:
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d) 8 EWMTA(HE)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d) 201841 5182 i & (&)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets (1) eRtEER SR B EHNRER
and financial liabilities (cont’d) FTE(E)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Including financial assets held for trading)

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are recognised
in profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (cont’d)

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost subsequent to initial recognition.
Other available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss when the investee
approves the dividends. Interest is recognised in
profit or loss using the effective interest method
(see Note I11.19(3)).

— Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

=

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial
liability are offset and the net amount is presented
in the balance sheet when both of the following
conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of
it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
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8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

(e) significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (48)

8 £RIA(E)
201841 81H.2 FiE i (#)
(4) SREEMNREGE)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

The impairment of accounts receivable is measured
as follows:

Receivables are assessed for impairment on an
individual basis and on a collective group basis as
follows.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual
basis, an impairment loss in respect of a receivable
is calculated as the excess of its carrying amount over
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
not having been individually assessed as impaired),
based on their historical loss experiences, and
adjusted by the observable factors reflecting current
economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
receivables, there is a recovery in the value of the
financial asset which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
will not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years at the
date the impairment is reversed.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

The impairment of other financial assets is measured

as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis. When an
available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss arising from a decline in fair value
that has been recognised directly in shareholders’
equity is reclassified to profit or loss even though
the financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit
or loss. The impairment loss on an investment in
an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured is not reversed.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (48)

8 £RIA(E)
201841 81H.2 FiE i (#)
(6) Hem T H

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(5) Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditure
relating to the repurchase is recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction recording in
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are presented as a deduction
under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings
sequentially. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is credited
to the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserver(share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings sequentially.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018
(1) Recognition and initial measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) and
financial liabilities is measured initially at fair value.
For financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are charged to profit or loss; for other
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities,
any related directly attributable transaction costs are
included in their initial costs. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price according to Note II1.19.

116  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

LAFEREATRE - FEHbs

(%)

8 ©WMIAGE)

E201841 5 1HF#5 &t
(1) ERMEERSRE ENERM

Rt &
TRIEENEREBEEASE
R AERE R AE R HRKE
— AR REERERARE
7,
B BB ERFNE KD K E U
RRFON - FEAIATERET - S/t
BEERCRABAHANUNRAREE
T2 c HRUARBETER
HEHAAEHBERNRE
EXeREE  HEX5ER
BEEGTASHEZ  HRNEM
HrnemEESEmBE
HERZERFANGBERS
B W TEABERRERS
BREYERR - AEBRRIBE
MisE= - 19SSt IURTEE R
REBIRETVIRTE o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 S&@MIA(E)
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Q2 SREEMDEMEET=

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets
(@) Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets is generally
based on the business model in which a financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. On initial recognition, a financial
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asset is classified as measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”), or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes
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its business model for managing financial assets
in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (cont’d)
(@) Classification of financial assets (cont’d)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d) B20184E1 A1 H 5 E it (42)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of R eMEENDEMNEEN=
financial assets (cont’d) (&)
(a) Classification of financial assets (cont’d) @ AEEEsmEEMNS A

8 ©WMIAGE)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’'s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (cont’d)
(@) Classification of financial assets (cont’d)

The business model refers to how the Group
manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. That is, the Group’s business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial
assets or both. The Group determines the business
model for managing the financial assets according
to the facts and based on the specific business
objective for managing the financial assets
determined by the Group’s key management
personnel.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. For the purposes of this assessment,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as
well as a profit margin. The Group also assesses
whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (cont’d)
(b) Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss unless the financial
assets are part of a hedging relationship.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. A gain or loss on a financial asset that
is measured at amortised cost and is not part
of a hedging relationship shall be recognised
in profit or loss when the financial asset is
derecognised, through the amortisation
process or in order to recognise impairment
gains or losses.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (cont’d)
(b) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(cont’d)
— Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, impairment
and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

— Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Dividends are recognised as income
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to retained earnings.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(8) Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at FVTPL
or amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading (including derivative
financial liability) or it is designated as such on
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently
measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss, unless the financial liabilities are part
of a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

(4) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial
liability are offset and the net amount is presented
in the balance sheet when both of the following
conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

(5) Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities
Financial asset is derecognised when one of the
following conditions is met:
— the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire;

— the financial asset has been transferred and the
Group transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

— the financial asset has been transferred, although
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, it does not retain control over the
transferred asset.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(5) Derecognition of financial assets and financial

>

liabilities (cont’d)

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred measured at the date of derecognition;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and, when the transferred financial asset
is a debt investment at FVOCI, any cumulative gain
or loss that has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income for the part derecognised.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part
of it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of
it) is extinguished.

Impairment
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (ECL) on:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost;and

— contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including debt
investments at FVPL, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period (including
extension options) over which the group is exposed
to credit risk.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the balance sheet date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the balance sheet date.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

8 S&@MIA(E)
B 20184151 H B & it (#)
6) MEE)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs (cont’d)

Except for trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group measures loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL for the following financial instruments,
and at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for all other
financial instruments.

— If the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date;

— If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Financial instruments that have low credit risk

The credit risk on a financial instrument is considered
low if the financial instrument has a low risk of default,
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The credit risk on fixed deposit which deposit in
commercial bank with higher bank’s credit rating is
considered low.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

(6) Impairment (cont’d)
Significant increases in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort,
including forward-looking information. In particular, the
following information is taken into account:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk (cont’d) EREKREZEIEIN(E)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, BiESBMTENME @ A&E
the assessment of a significant increase in credit NEBEIESR T AiSr T AME

risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 1
day past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

— the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or

— the financial asset is more than 60 days past due.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

(6) Impairment (cont’d)
Credit-impaired financial assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group having
granted to the borrower a concession that would
not otherwise consider;

— itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(6) Impairment (cont’d)

Presentation of allowance for ECL

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
OCCUrS.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(7) Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditure
relating to the repurchase is recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction recording in
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are presented as a deduction
under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings
sequentially. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is credited
to the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserve (share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings sequentially.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

9 Inventories

(1)

@

Classification and cost
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress,
semi-finished goods and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditure incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
In addition to the purchase cost of raw materials, work
in progress and finished goods include direct labor
costs and an appropriate allocation of production
overheads.

Measurement method of cost of inventories
Cost of inventories recognised is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables and
packaging materials are charged to profit or loss upon
receipt. The amortisation charge is included in the cost
of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

9 Inventories (cont’d)
(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and
method for provision for obsolete inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extent of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for obsolete inventories, and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Il Significant accounting policies and accounting = AFEE®EFR - g5HEs
estimates (cont’d) (#)
9 Inventories (cont’d) 9 FE(E)

(4) Inventory count system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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10 Long-term equity investments 10 REIRERE

(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments (1) REIRIER S, B KA tEF
(a) Long-term equity investments acquired through a (@) BBLES FEKNKE

business combination friER &
— Theinitial cost of a long-term equity investment - HRE—EH TR

acquired through a business combination
involving entities under common control is
the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the combination date. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the
carrying amount of the consideration given is
adjusted to the share premium in the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
entities under common control, the initial cost
comprises the aggregate of the fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

10 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other
than through a business combination
— A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if
an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment
In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that have
been included in the price or consideration paid in
obtaining the investments, the Company recognises
its share of the cash dividends or profit distributions
declared by the investee as investment income for
the current period.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the

balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

10 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment (cont’d)
For the impairment of the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note Ill.16.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements, long-
term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for in accordance with the policies described in Note
.5.

11 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by
the Group for use in production of goods, for rental
or for administrative purposes with useful lives over
one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed assets is measured in accordance
with the policy set out in Note Ill.12.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Recognition of fixed assets (cont’d)
Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d)

(2) Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual value
and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life, unless the fixed asset is classified as held-for-sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:

Class

Plant and buildings

Machinery and equipment

Office and other equipment

Motor vehicles

=5

FENEEY

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.
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Estimated Residual Depreciation

useful life value rate rate

(vears) (%) (%)

ERSS HEF FINEFE

(%) (%) (%)

35-40 years 10% 2.25-2.57%
35-404

20 years 10% 4.50%
20%F

5 years 10% 18.00%
5%

5 years 10% 18.00%
5%
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, refer to Note
. 16.

(4) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is holding for disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

12 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note lll.13), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is classified as construction in
progress and transferred to fixed asset when it is ready
for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against
construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note Ill.16).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

13 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as financial expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period
is determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)
13 Borrowing costs (cont’d) 13 fERER (#\)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that REEEEERNERF X
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the = 18 18 R AE T8 BR 17 48 HA R s i AR
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a MEEHBANRKESRE
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the IR AZER VIR EREETEN
borrowings. ST ARAE -
During the capitalisation period, exchange differences EERNCHRERA  INEHEFER
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose AeREMEMERLEZRE + T
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised BRI » st AFTEERNLIEHER
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange BEBHBKA o MERINEEPTIE R
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign ZINEY E A ANEE fE SRR 4 N H A
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose BAFEANER ZHIELEMGE
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when A stAEHEE -
incurred.
The capitalisation period is the period from the date of BEARLHREEAEBNERE
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the B4 & AN 2 2= & AN b
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period R EE  EREREEER
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation {ERNERAREEAN - EEAY
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for HMEREREKLEERAFE
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being EEINEERERRERMNERN
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that BEIHEOKHGBE  E2E&H
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use FIRE RN - BEBEFTEERNL
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become IREH & EZE|TEE r Rk e
ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing B ERERAEILEERE - §R
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction FEEBRNIGHENEELEEA
activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of more R AIEIEE R - B ER
than three months. MEERAESEAN « AEEEE

fERERNEARL °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

14 Intangible assets 14 B EE

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 11.16).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.

B EEARANR R 5 3H (2R
RERSHERNELEE) MR
BEEBZ2REME= - 16)REE
EBERAIT - HREASB®
BERNETLEE  AEEBER
BEMARAKRESFREMR
FUREEBRIREREETRRE
RASwHAEE  RIEZETE
ENEREFEMNGRNT

The amortisation period for intangible assets is as follows: B EENEEFERA
Item Amortisation period (years) IHH HFER(E)
Land use right 35 - 50 years —+ 3h {3 A 35 - 50F

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Group. At the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have any intangible assets
with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure incurred during the
research phase and expenditure incurred during the
development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase is expensed when
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note Ill.16). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d) (#)

15 Goodwill 15 &
The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost of JER —EH TR ES FRKN
acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of PR EYIAR AR A AR
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a business REHTERENIEES Al 7
combination not involving entities under common control. FEEAABEMNBRAZE -
Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance REBEHHETEE - PAKAHR
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see 2 REEEGE(RRENE= - 16)
Note lll.16). On disposal of an asset group or a set of EEEBERANYR - BHEEH
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and VHEAEEMASNEEHES R ER
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. FLAESL - st ASHIERS -

16 Impairment of assets other than inventories and 16 REERESRMEENINEMEE
financial assets RAE
The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed rEEBEEERBBERBBRBAL
at each balance sheet date based on internal and external RINSBIEEAEE NI EERR
sources of information to determine whether there is any GFERENTR @ 81

indication of impairment:

- fixed assets - EEEBE

— construction in progress - FEEIR

- intangible assets - BEAEE

- long-term equity investments - RHERERE

- goodwill - BE

If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the REBHGFERERRNEEE
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates TRERES @ HEtEER K E
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year- S5 o AN EmEDTFEAERE
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of MR AEEREBFEFERTEH
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group BEGEEAKE % - NEFH
or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit KIERBEEHRANEELEEHRAS
from the synergies of the combination for the purpose BE S 1 ZE S O 1 13 [R) RUPE AR &Y
of impairment testing. XmEROEEERTER I

FELLERE FETRERERH
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d)

16 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

(%)
16 REEREMEEINHAMEE

financial assets (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note
[11.17) less costs to sell and its present value of expected
future cash flows.

An asset group is composed of assets directly related
to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to
an asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis.
However, such allocation would not reduce the carrying
amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less
costs to sell (if measurable), its present value of expected
future cash flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

17 Fair value measurement

146  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value
as follows:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

REEFZEFRTROBRAF

AFEEGHEER - Frtfast
(48)
17 RREENE

BREFRIEBAIN - REBIZ TR

AREBEEEEMS2EEEE
BBRENBFRXZF  HE—R
BEMBERIHEBE -—RAE
PR X ROEHS -

AEBERBARAABER - BE™M
BL2REEGENUHEBEES
BEETEERZRNER(ERE

BEARARAAEME  HEEH
I A

EXREERNRSF)
SRERATERY AR RHAN
ABEMEMEEXFNHER
- EANGEERNEZREN
55~ WEETKRAVE ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

18 T AE

18 Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as
any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range.
In other cases, the best estimate is determined according
to the following circumstances:

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome.

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount
to the current best estimate.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

19 Revenue recognition

The accounting policies of revenue recognition are
different before and after 1 January 2018. The details

are as below:

Before 1 January 2018

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the

following conditions are met.

(1) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the general conditions
stated above and the following conditions are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer;

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods

sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable

under the sales contract or agreement.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

19 Revenue recognition
Before 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
(2) Rendering of services

=

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable under the
contract or agreement.

Where the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
based on the proportion of services performed to date
to the total services to be performed.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognised to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be recoverable, and
an equivalent amount is charged to profit or loss
as service cost; otherwise, the costs incurred are
recognised in profit or loss and no service revenue
is recognised.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

According to CAS No.14, Revenue (Revised) (the “new
revenue standard”) on 1 January 2018, the Group has
applied the new revenue standard from 1 January
2018.The details are as below:
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (4&)

After 1 January 2018

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the
performance obligation in the contract by transferring the
control over relevant goods or services to the customers.

Where a contract has two or more performance
obligations, the Group determines the stand-alone
selling price at contract inception of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation in the
contract and allocates the transaction price in proportion
to those stand-alone selling prices. The Group recognises
as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is
allocated to each performance obligation.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (4&)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Group recognises the transaction price only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The
consideration which the Group expects to refund to the
customer is recognised as refund liabilities and excluded
from transaction price. Where the contract contains a
significant financing component, the Group recognises the
transaction price at an amount that reflects the price that
a customer would have paid for the promised goods or
services if the customer had paid cash for those goods or
services when (or as) they transfer to the customer. The
difference between the amount of promised consideration
and the cash selling price is amortised using an effective
interest method over the contract term. The Group does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if it expects, at contract inception,
that the period between when the Group transfers a
promised good or service to a customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be one year
or less.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)
19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (4&)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d) B20184E1 A1 H 45 E it (42)

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time NI — R RE

if one of the following criteria is met; or otherwise, a BEREX—BREREABITEARE

performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time: % SR BREXE —RBIZET
BHIET -

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes - RFEHEAREERELH R EEIE
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as 130 78 FE 7N 5 (B /B 49 P A5 2R A9
the Group performs; BB

- the customer can control the asset created or - HPgHAEHASBERLYRARE
enhanced during the Group’s performance; or FRIEZANRE G

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset - AEBERABEFFE DA
with an alternative use to it and the Group has mEETNAZEREBR - BAE
an enforceable right to payment for performance BEEEEARPEAGEZ
completed to date. FTES B A E X305 YR

FKIE o
For performance obligation satisfied over time, the Group HNEE - EBEBERNBTHNELNE
recognises revenue over time by measuring the progress o NREBEZEREBANIREBE
towards complete satisfaction of that performance HEERERBA - BREE TEE
obligation. When the outcome of that performance EEETER  ASBEDEE&ELER
obligation cannot be measured reasonably, but the Group ZANTEETRESN S R E R « KRR
expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the EREBEENKASERALA -
performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue BRI B EEEHNES BT AL ©

only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time
that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 19 WA (4&)

After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)

For performance obligation satisfied at a point in time,
the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at
which the customer obtains control of relevant goods or
services. To determine whether a customer has obtained
control of goods or services, the Group considers the
following indicators:

— the Group has a present right to payment for the
goods or services;

— the Group has transferred physical possession of the
goods to the customer;

— the Group has transferred the legal title of the goods
or the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods to the customer; and

— the customer has accepted the goods or services.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that it has transferred to
a customer when that right is conditional on something
other than the passage of time. The Group recognises loss
allowances for expected credit loss on contract assets
(see Note 111.8(6)). Accounts receivable is the Group’s right
to consideration that is unconditional (only the passage
of time is required). A contract liability is the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.
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(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

19 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
After 1 January 2018 (cont’d)
The following is the description of accounting policies
regarding revenue from the Group’s principal activities:

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred to the customers, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of
the product. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location (included shipping port,
designated delivery point within or without China etc.),
the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and the customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract.

If the customers perform quality inspection when they
use the products and pay the consideration at that time,
the products are delivered to the customers when the
customers use the products.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d)

20 Contract costs

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract
with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission.
The Group recognises as an asset the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer if it expects to
recover those costs. Other costs of obtaining a contract
are expensed when incurred.

If the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer are not
within the scope of inventories or other accounting
standards, the Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract only if those costs meet all of
the following criteria:

— the costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract, including
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of overheads
(or similar costs), costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the contract.

— the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future; and

— the costs are expected to be recovered.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St

estimates (cont’d) (#)

20 Contract costs (cont’d) 20 ERMKA(4E)
Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining SRIEEBKANERNEEME R
a contract and assets recognised for the costs to fulffil BHKANERNEE(ATEE
a contract (the “assets related to contract costs”) are [EARKAGEAEE|)RAHE
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with % & E R P Gk AR TS Uk R
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to RIER M EEITEE 5T AE
which the assets relate and recognised in profit or loss for EREZS - EESHEAPR TR im — F Al
the current period. The Group recognises the incremental EEERGTAZHIEE

costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred
if the amortisation period of the asset that the entity
otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss BEHEASRKAEHEOEENIRE
to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset related BESA T MEHNZEERE - &
to contract costs exceeds: EFEYBE I I RMEEE

WHERSEERERX

- remaining amount of consideration that the Group - AEEFREZEEZEERBY
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or 75 m 2% AR 75 78 5 g S0 B A5 A9
services to which the asset relates; less BRET(E

— the costs that relate directly to providing those goods - AEEZIEER GRS
or services that have not yet been recognised as 1B EZEA R o
expenses.

21 Employee benefits 21 B T 5B

(1) Short-term employee benefits (1) *ZREZT ol
Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security AREBER TIRMEARGH ST
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury i S ERBELANIZETSN
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund, HEMLEPIEHRABTIIE -
measured at the amount incurred or occured at the e B BERRE - TERR
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as BMESRBESHASRRE
a liability as the employee provides services, with a MEELES  BRREE
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in WEt A S HiE = oA i & E K
the cost of assets where appropriate. 7K o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

21 Employee benefits (cont’d)

@)

3)

Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
plan in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions payable are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets
where appropriate.

Termination benefits

When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit
or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw
the offer of termination remuneration because of
an employee termination plan or a curtailment
proposal;

— When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring
plan involving the payment of termination benefits
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting
to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

22 BFFRB

22 Government grants

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contributions from the
government in the capacity as an investor in the Group.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets.

Pursuant to the Accounting Standards for revised
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 16
— Government Grants (“CAS 16 (2017)”) which came into
effect on 12 June 2017, Government grants that exist on
1 January 2017 shall be dealt with by the Group according
to the prospective application method, and government
grants that are newly added from 1 January 2017 to
the date of effectiveness of these Standards shall be
adjusted according to these Standards. Therefore, the
difference between the Group’s accounting policies about
government grants before 1 January 2017 and after 1
January 2017 is as follows:
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

22 BUAFHEBY (&)

22 Government grants (cont’d)

Grants related to assets shall be recognized as deferred
income in the balance sheet by the Group before 1
January 2017, and evenly amortized to profit or loss
over the useful life of the related assets. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Grants related to assets shall be used to offset the book
value of relevant assets by the Group after 1 January
2017. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses
to be incurred in the future is recognised initially as
deferred income, and released to the other income or non-
operating income in the periods in which the expenses
are recognised. A grant that compensates the Group for
expenses already incurred is recognised in profit or loss,
or recorded in the other income or non-operating income.
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(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

22 Government grants (cont’d)
Where the Group obtains an interest subsidy for policy-
related preferential loans, the accounting treatment is
as follows:

— Where the government appropriates an interest
subsidy to the lending bank, allowing the latter to
provide loans to an enterprise at a preferential interest
rate, recognizing the loan amount received as the
book-entry value of such loans, and calculating the
relevant loan expenses according to the loan principal
and the preferential interest rate;

— Where the government directly appropriates an interest
subsidy to the Group, the Group shall use the interest
subsidy to offset relevant loan expenses.

23 Income tax
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

23 FRiSHL (&)

23 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of goodwiill.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured
based on the tax consequences that would follow from
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

23 FRiSHL (&)

23 Income tax (cont’d)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits
will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets;

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

24 Operating leases and finance leases

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24

25

26

Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)

(1) Operating lease charges
Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related
asset or as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policies described in Note IIl.11(2).
Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy described in Note lll.16. Income
derived from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss using the straight-line method over the lease
term. If initial direct costs incurred in respect of the
assets leased out are material, the costs are initially
capitalised and subsequently amortised in profit or
loss over the lease term on the same basis as the
lease income. Otherwise, the costs are charged to
profit or loss immediately.

Profit distributions

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

27 Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating
segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic
characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the
nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,

and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of the
actual transaction prices for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent
with those for the consolidated financial statements.

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future

periods affected.
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(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
Note V.10 and Note VIII contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of receivables

Before 1 January 2018, receivables that are measured
at amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
an impairment loss is recognised. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about loss events such
as a significant decline in the estimated future cash
flows of an individual debtor or the portfolio of debtors,
and significant changes in the financial environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor. If there
is objective evidence of a recovery in the value of
receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.

After 1 January 2018, the Group measures loss
allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. Therefore, where the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of
receivables and loss for the impairment of receivables
recognised in the period in which such estimates have
been changed.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
— Provision for impairment of inventories

As described in Note Ill.9, the net realisable value of
inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable values. When
making estimates of net realisable value, the Group
takes into consideration the use of inventories and
other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and related taxes may vary
based on changes in market conditions and product
saleability, manufacturing technology and the actual
use of the inventories, resulting in changes in the
provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.

— Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets
As described in Note Ill.16, assets other than
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of
the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its present value of expected future cash
flows. When a market price of the asset (or the asset
group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of
the asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount is calculated based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows. In assessing the present
value of estimated future cash flows, significant
judgements are exercised to estimate the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Ill. 11 and 14, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

(cont’d)

— Income tax
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates
Changes in accounting policies
(a) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies
The MOF issued the following revised accounting
standards and interpretations in 2017 and 2018:

— CAS No.14 — Revenue (Revised) (the “new revenue
standard”)

— CAS No.22 - Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement (Revised), CAS No.23 -
Transfer of Financial Assets (Revised), CAS
No.24 — Hedge Accounting (Revised) and CAS
No.37 — Presentation and Disclosures of Financial
Instruments (Revised) (collectively the “new financial
instruments standards”)
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and 20 TEEHHEK » B ATHNEE
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d) BEKREE (F)
(a) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting (@) EEMARNERE)

policies (cont’d)
— Notice on Revision of the 2018 lllustrative Financial
Statements (Caikuai [2018] No.15)

The Group has applied the above revised accounting
standards and interpretations from 1 January 2018
and adjusted the related accounting policies.

In addition, in accordance with the Notice of the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on
the Pilot Implementation of Measures for Assessment
and Deduction of Input Value-added Tax (VAT) on
Agricultural Products in Certain Industries, the input
VAT of pilot taxpayers who use agricultural products
purchased as raw materials in their production is
deductible in accordance with the assessment and
deduction method, instead of deducting in accordance
with VAT deduction vouchers. In order to simplify cost
calculation and better reflect the impact of input VAT
deduction on the financial statements, the Group has
used the method of assessment and deduction to
deduct input VAT from the operating costs during the
current period, instead of deducting it from production
costs from 1 January 2018 onward.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies

0)

New revenue standard

The new revenue standard replaces CAS No.14 —
Revenue and CAS No.15 — Construction Contracts
issued by the MOF in 2006 (the “old revenue
standard”).

Under old revenue standard, the Group recognised
revenue when the risks and rewards had passed
to the customers. The Group’s revenue from sales
of goods was recognised when the following
conditions were met: the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods had been
transferred to the customer, the amount of revenue
and related costs could be reliably measured, the
relevant economic benefits would probably flow to
the Group and the Group retained neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold. Revenue from rendering of
services and revenue from construction contracts
were recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet
date.

Under new revenue standard, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the promised
goods or services in the contract:
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
() New revenue standard (cont’d)

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
the performance obligation in the contract by
transferring the control over relevant goods or
services to the customers. The Group satisfies
a performance obligation over time if certain
criteria is met; or otherwise, a performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time. Where
a contract has two or more performance
obligations, the Group determines the stand-
alone selling price at contract inception of
the distinct good or service underlying each
performance obligation in the contract and
allocates the transaction price in proportion
to those stand-alone selling prices. The
Group recognises as revenue the amount of
the transaction price that is allocated to each
performance obligation. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The Group recognises
the transaction price only to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the contract contains a
significant financing component, the Group
recognises the transaction price at an amount
that reflects the price that a customer would
have paid for the promised goods or services
if the customer had paid cash for those goods
or services when (or as) they transfer to the
customer. The difference between the amount
of promised consideration and the cash selling
price is amortised using an effective interest
method over the contract term.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
() New revenue standard (cont’d)

— The Group have adjusted the relevant
accounting policies in accordance with the
specific provisions on specific matters or
transactions under new revenue standard,
such as contract costs, advance receipts, etc.

— Under new revenue standard, the Group
presents a contract asset or a contract liability
in the balance sheet based on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the
customer’s payment. At the same time,
the Group provides more disclosures on
revenue and related information based on the
disclosure requirements under new revenue
standard, such as relevant accounting policies,
information of contracts with customers, etc.

There are no significant cumulative effects of initial
application of new revenue standard. As a result,
the Group has not recognised the adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings and the
amount of other relevant items in the financial
statement at 1 January 2018, and comparative
information has not been restated.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and 20 TEEHHEK » B ATHNEE
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d) BEKREE (F)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d) b) BEENEZTEZE(E)
(i) New financial instruments standards (i) #re @ T AR

The new financial instruments standards revise
CAS No.22 — Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, CAS No.23 - Transfer of
Financial assets and CAS No.24 — Hedging issued
by the MOF in 2006 and CAS No.37 — Presentation
and Disclosures of Financial Instruments (collecting
the “old financial instruments standards”).

The new financial instruments standards contain
three principal classification categories for financial
assets: measured at amortised cost, FVOCI and
FVTPL. The classification of financial assets
under the new financial instruments standards is
generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. The new financial instruments
standards cancel the previous categories of held
to maturity investments, loans and receivables
and available for sale financial assets under the
old financial instruments standards. Under the
new financial instruments standards, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset are never separated. Instead, the
hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed
for classification.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(i) New financial instruments standards (cont’d)
The adoption of new financial instruments
standards have not had a significant effect on the
Group’s accounting policies for financial liabilities.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1
January 2018.

The new financial instruments standards replace
the “incurred loss” model in the old financial
instruments standards with the ECL model. The
ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with a financial asset
and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under
the “incurred loss” accounting model in the old
financial instruments standards.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost; not apply to
investments in equity instruments.

There are no significant cumulative effects of initial
application of new financial instruments standards.
As a result, the Group has not recognised the
adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings and the amount of other relevant items
in the financial statement at 1 January 2018, and
comparative information has not been restated.
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and 29 TESHBEK - EHEHANEE
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d) DR EE (4E)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d) b) BEENEZTEZE(E)
(i) Changes in cost carry forward method of (iii) 1% 7E 30 B 3 TR A B A AN

assessment and deduction of input VAT

The assessment and deduction of input VAT is
applicable to Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the
Group since January 2014 and December 2014,
respectively. Upon the use of the assessment
and deduction of input VAT is approved by the
local tax bureau, the raw materials are recorded
in accordance with the VAT inclusive cost incurred
at the time the agriculture products are purchased.
Before 1 January 2018, the Group calculated and
allocated the inventory cost based on raw material
costs for which the approved input VAT amount
was excluded. This accounting treatment would
have impact on the operating cost for the relevant
years and inventory at the end of the relevant
reporting period. From 1 January 2018 onward,
in order to simplify cost calculation, the Group
directly deducted the approved deductible input
VAT amount from the operating costs for the
current period.

The Group has adjusted relevant items in the
comparative financial statements retrospectively.
For the impact on comparative financial statements,
refer to Note 111.29(d).
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Il Significantaccountingpoliciesandaccounting = AFEE®HEE - St
estimates (cont’d) (#)
29 Changes in significant accounting policies and 29 TESHBEK - EHEHANEE

accounting estimates (cont’d)

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

(iv) Presentation of financial statements

The Group has prepared financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 in accordance
with the presentation format of the financial
statements specified in Caikuai [2018] No.15.
The Group has applied the new presentation
requirements retrospectively.

The following table provide the effect of
adjustments:

Affected assets and liabilities items in the
consolidated balance sheet and company balance
sheet as at 31 December 2017:

BiREE ()
b) BEENTEZE(E)
(iv) BAT5 ¥R 51

AEEREY 2[2018] 15
SRR E MR RS AR
BI2018FEMBHE « I
KABPAELET T H
RIS HREK TR o

HERAS SRR EM T

2017512 A1 R EH
AEHEEABRMNE QA

Before

adjustments

AR

Bills receivable eSS 9,003,656

Accounts receivable FEUL AR 3R 192,554,256
Bills and accounts FEUE IR &

receivable FEMER X -

Interest payable FERFE 643,783

Other payables H b e 3R 11,802,159

Total A&t
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29 Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (cont’d)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(iv) Presentation of financial statements (cont’d)

Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Bills and accounts
receivable
Dividends receivable
Other receivables
Interest payable
Other payables

Total

RS
& U R
e IR K
& I AR 3X
& W s )
HoAth & UK
ANEAINSN
H At FE AR

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

ANEERHER « FHHEH
()

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE
(#&)
BiREE (B)
b) BEENTEZE(E)
(iv) AR5 R (&)

The Company

b 3/
Before After
adjustments  Adjustments adjustments
HER HER AR
6,026,975 (6,026,975) -
121,596,500 (121,596,500) -
- 127,623,475 127,623,475
53,699,658 (68,699,658) -
225,253,334 53,699,658 278,952,992
643,783 (643,783) -
211,114,835 643,783 211,758,618
2017 EXZEN S HFERM

Affected income and expenses items in the
consolidated income statement and company
income statement for the year ended 31 December

2017:

General and administrative
expenses

Research and development
expenses

Total

EEER

=R

FRAFERER

The Group
*EH
Before After
adjustment Adjustment adjustment
HEER AER mER
54,940,092 (1,855,651) 53,084,441
= 1,855,651 1,855,651
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(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Major impact of changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(iv) Presentation of financial statements (cont’d)

ANEERHER « FHHEH
()

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE
(#&)
BiREE ()
b) BEENTEZE(E)
(iv) BF R 7R (&)

The Company

ENF
Before After
adjustment Adjustment adjustment
AR AR AE%
General and administrative & 1% &
expenses 15,967,654 (1,610,144) 14,357,510
Research and development #f2%E A
expenses - 1,610,144 1,610,144
Total A&T =

178  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE



Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =

estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(c) Based onthe Group’s comparative financial statements (c)

which had been retrospectively adjusted in accordance

with Caikuai [2018] No.15 and changes in cost

carry forward method of assessment and deduction

of input VAT (Note Ill.29(b)(iii)-(iv)), the changes of

accounting policy in Note I11.29(b)(i)-(ii) which are not

applied retrospectively have the following impact on

the consolidated balance sheet and company balance

sheet as at 1 January 2018:

Liabilities:

Advance payments received
Contract liabilities

(%)

LAFEREATRE - FEHbs

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE

()
B BREE ()

RNEE LAE R 2[2018] 15
SRARTE A M A% E HABR i TR 45
R AN RS E B E(H
= 29(b)(ii)-(iv)) 18 B bt B2
IS TRR A ERE - B ke
=~ 29(b)(i)-(i) T B TR
GETHR B EH2018F 1 A1
HEHEEABRESARE
EREXRSHENZEELDN
-

The Group
350

Carrying Carrying
amount at amount at
1 January 1 January
2018 before 2018 after
adjustment Reclassification Remeasurement adjustment
AR nER
20185 20185
118 118
fifd ] ERE EfiE FEeR

Effect Effect

Effect of new Effect of new

of new financial of new financial

revenue instruments revenue instruments

standard standards  standard standards

FBA HemIR ML HemIR

EARE  EAEE  EIRE  EREE

fff:

kA 2,399,933 (2,399,983) - - - -
aREE - 2,399,933 - - - 2,399,933
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(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(c) Based onthe Group’s comparative financial statements (c)

which had been retrospectively adjusted in accordance

with Caikuai [2018] No.15 and changes in cost

carry forward method of assessment and deduction

of input VAT (Note Ill.29(b)(iii)-(iv)), the changes of

accounting policy in Note I11.29(b)(i)-(ii) which are not

applied retrospectively have the following impact on

the consolidated balance sheet and company balance

sheet as at 1 January 2018: (cont’d)

Liabilities:

Advance payments received

Contract liabilities

(%)

LAFEREATRE - FEHbs

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE

(80
B HFRE ()

RNEE LAE R 2[2018] 15
SRARTE DA M A% E HABR i TR 45
R RS B E(H
= 29(b)(ii)-(iv)) 18 B bt B2
IS TRR A ERE - B kR
=~ 29(b)(i)-(i) T B P TR
GETHR B EH2018F 1 A1
HEHEEABRESARE
EREXRSHENZEELDN
T (#8)

The Company
348

Carrying Carrying
amount at amount at
1 January 1 January
2018 before 2018 after
adjustment Reclassification Remeasurement adjustment
AR nER
20185 20185
118 118
fifd ] ERE EfiE FEeR

Effect Effect

Effect of new Effect of new

of new financial of new financial

revenue instruments revenue instruments

standard standards  standard standards

FBA HemIR ML HemIR

EARE  EAEE  EIRE  EREE

fff:

kA 1,520,786 (1,520,786) - - - -
aREE - 1,520,786 - - - 1,520,786
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(d) Impact of changes in accounting policies on
comparative financial statements
(i) The effects on the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
effect on the shareholders’ equity at the beginning
and end of 2017 are analysed as follows:

Shareholders’ equity at the 201 TEF R R =
beginning of 2017
Net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017
Shareholders’ equity at the

end of 2017

201 74 FE 5 A

201 7TEF R R

(i) Affected assets and liabilities items in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017 are analysed as follows:

Rf
R
A

Inventories

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

= ATUEEWHER « FRHEH
()

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE

()
B BREE ()

(d) BEHLBRIBERENTE

() EestlmREFTFHAE
2017 E 58 & 2017
FEY R FARREEZD

BELMT -
The Group
F5E

Before After
adjustment Adjustment adjustment
AR AR AEE
1,625,691,180 25,537,389 1,651,228,569
95,966,858 (9,541,635) 86,425,223
1,661,472,234 15,995,754 1,677,467,988

(i) EiesrBERER HAE
E2017F12 831 HAHE
EBEXRHPNEEEERN

EERLMT -
The Group
F5E
Before After
adjustment Adjustment adjustment
A AER AR
755,014,086 15,995,754 771,009,840
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

29 Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)
Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
(d) Impact of changes in accounting policies on
comparative financial statements (cont’d)
(iii) Affected income and expenses items in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2017 are analysed as follows:

Operating costs AR

The adoption of above accounting standards
have not had an effect on the Company’s income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017
and balance sheet as at 31 December 2017.
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= ATUEEWHER « FRHEH
()

20 FEETHE > SRAFNEE

(#&)

BiREE ()

d BEEHLERPBHRROTE
(%)

(i) bt BRESEHARE
E2017FEEM A St FI B X
FHRAERBENTE

EemT :
The Group
F%E
Before After
adjustment Adjustment adjustment
AR AEH xR

609,779,623 9,641,635 619,321,258

rit et BRETEH AR
A)2017 FEEMFER A K
Eﬁi§:2017¢12ﬁ31 HEE



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

IV Taxation g IR
1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates 1 FEBERBIE
Tax type Tax basis Tax rate
neE FHR K nE
Value-added tax (VAT) Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable 10%, 11%,
services revenue, based on tax laws. The remaining 13%, 16%,
balance of output VAT, after subtracting the deductible 17%
input VAT of the period, is VAT payable
RED BRERESERNHEEEMMER S BRASERGTE

AR - ENRE RAFERINERTRE - 28

BB R EIB (A

City maintenance and Based on VAT paid
construction tax

YA T A R A RR A R ESIBE R EHE

Enterprise income tax Based on taxable profits

RERFTISH RN TS FERTHE

Note: According to the Notice on Policies Related to the
Consolidation of VAT Rates (Cai Shui [2017] No.32),
VAT rates of 13% was canceled from 1 July 2017. From
that day, the taxable business which applied to VAT rate
of 183% was changed to 11%.

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on the Adjustment of the
VAT Rate (Cai Shui [2018] No.32), the taxable business
with VAT rates of 17% and 11% were changed to 16%
and 10% respectively from 1 May 2018.

1%, 5%, 7%

15%, 25%

i R AR R R G B
KR ) (M Bi[2017] 32%%) -
201767 A1 B  BITIEER
TR S - BUS13% B ER
o R E FEFA13%H K K g
TR BEEFR11% °

BE(CTEZ  BRFBELDE
RAREERERRERNBA) (5
[2018] 325%) - B201855H1H
BB ANER A B E R R X
% BEEHFEER17%M11%
DRIFAEE16% « 10% °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEEAS) » 2 FEE [ BARET)

IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% in 2018 (2017: 25%) except for
the following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries
of the Company which were taxed at the local applicable
income tax rates.

(@) According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued by
Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation,
General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No0.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax rate is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. from 2011 to 2020 and 15% for Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. from 2017 to
2020.

G5

During 2018, the produce and sale of fruit juice by
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. And the produce
and sale of fruit juice and bio-stuff by Baishui Andre
Juice Co., Ltd., Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Dalian Andre Juice
Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd., Liquan Yitong
Juice Co., Ltd, and Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd. are exempt from the PRC
income tax.
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M RE(E)

BRTM=Z=ZHMUBERDNTF QA
Gy KRB RBASFRAAE
FEERBMMSHEEB25%
(2017 : 25%) * N AR HIRINF
N ENEE HoE R R NS o

@ RECH B BRKH R

=

B BHEABEERAILKA
ERWEEREEENBA)
(B R [2001] 20258 ) ~ (B =R
MEBREANEERPARE
ERARWBRAREREERN
AN (EFi2£[2002] 479%)
BB R B EMEH
BEEBBRMBA) (HE
[2007] 395%) ~ (AR zE A R FEH
B 1 FTS BUENX A T 8 &
EMERE]D) REE GG
MCETERE - BRI ED -
HRIAE RN RAE M LA
7 25 B R 5 8 B AR B R RE Y
A (BIF[2011] 585%) 97
E - BKREZEMREABRA
7] 820114 220204 |- HifE
BIZ15% T Rt E G %
B TELEFEEEER
RARRAFB20174FE2020
F | HARERIR 1 5% B RET E 5
M EEFTSHRL ©

2018F ¥ * AL ZEA
RABRODBERARIAEEKEE
HEFERT » FRARIAKEZE
FREABRAT - HINEZE
FRBFTARAR « BEEED

REMNRTHRBERATE - K
BLEFRETBRAR ~ K
BREFREAARDA - 12
REBRIOTAERRARA - kE
ZRNBEREXMZBERAA
FERBENRERT R
B EXRAMGHOEER
& o



V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1

Cash at bank and on hand

[tem

Cash on hand
Deposits with banks

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

A H

BEHRE
RITHER

S

1

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
are no bank deposits with restrictions placed on the

Group’s ownership.

Bills and accounts receivable

[tem

Bills receivable
Accounts receivable

Total

(1) Bills receivable

Classification of bills receivable

[tem

Bank acceptance bills

5 H

L ES S
& W AR R

(ER

RITHAER

All of the above bills receivable were due within one

year, and were not pledged.

The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB4,328,596.
As at 31 December 2018, the remaining maturities of
the derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 4 months.

I SHMBERRAHER

ExESs
2018 2017
20185 20174
102,994 127,396
378,583,613 79,271,078
378,686,607 79,398,474

M2018%12 A31H k20174124

318 NEBEMBEX DR H

BRITIER -

W ZEE K EWERR
2018 2017
20185 20174
6,119,488 9,003,656
170,512,897 192,554,256
176,632,385 201,557,912
(1) EY 5
EWEES L
2018 2017
20185 20174
6,119,488 9,003,656

biiEERES S —FAE

Hi - BRRE

o

MR2018%F12HA31H * E &

EWCRIEHER

B R 2 H e

WEENEESBERARE
4,328,6967T ° 120184612 A
318 - RIEHERFRF KRR

BIE4ER -
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(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

2 Bills and accounts receivable (cont’d)
(1) Bills receivable (cont’d)

Classification of bills receivable (cont’d)

According to the Bill Law of the People’s Republic
of China, if the acceptance banks of bills receivable
that are discounted or endorsed by the Group refuse
to pay the bills, the bills holders has recourse to the
Group. The Board of Directors believe that the Group
had substantially transferred almost all the risks and
rewards of those bills which have been endorsed
and derecognized. Therefore, the Group derecognized
these bills in full.

As at 31 December 2017, there are no undue bills
receivable (with resource) that have been endorsed
and derecognized.

(2) Accounts receivable
(@) Accounts receivable by customer type are as

follows:

Customer type BPAER

Third Parties E=F

Related Parties E2kiia)

Sub-total NG

Less: Provision for bad and o AR
doubtful debts

Total =
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

2 BUREEREWRERR(E)
(1) ERER(E)

EKREE B (E)

REBEPEARANMBREZL
AKERAEENEEER
BOALIRITERNR - BE
ABAREERBERE - EF
RS HRRILEANDE
ERE  AKECEE LEE
TREREATHRANERM
WEY - Eit - AEEERELLE

ERELRRE -

R2017F12H318 » A&EH
EEEENARER(ER
MeaEeE ) M AR B HAR R IR IR -

©2) AR

(@) MR FIR % 1A 5 I
o :

2018 2017
20185 20174

170,568,056 190,711,288
7,973,345 6,909,230

178,541,401 197,620,518

8,028,504 5,066,262

170,512,897 192,554,256
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

2 Bills and accounts receivable (cont’d) 2 BEREEREWRIR(E)
(2) Accounts receivable (cont’d) 2) FEY IR (4E)
(b) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as (o) FEUBRFILERIR D ATAAT :
follows:
2018 2017
Ageing AR 20185 20174
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6fE A AR (& 61E A ) 133,249,902 182,193,438
Over 6 months but within 1 year 68 ZE1FE(E14)
(inclusive) 45,288,886 15,407,438
Over 1 year but within 2 years ~ 1EZ24(524)
(inclusive) 2,613 19,642
Sub-total NE 178,541,401 197,620,518
Less: Provision for bad and W AR
doubtful debts 8,028,504 5,066,262
Total CE 170,512,897 192,554,256
The ageing is counted starting from the date when IR B E W AR RFERR A 8
accounts receivable are recognised. FIRETE ©
3 Prepayments 3 FEMFIE
(1) Prepayments by type are as follows: (1) FETIEZLE RS T
2018 2017
Type Eehal] 20184 20174
Third Parties H=R 2,756,252 3,081,104
Less: Provision for bad and B RAREE

doubtful debts - -

Total aEr 2,756,252 3,081,104
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

3 Prepayments(cont’d)

(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:

3 FEMNREE)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

2) FETHIEIZRERS T -

2018 2017
Ageing BRHER 20184 20174
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
EE (%) R L1 (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 18R (E14F) 2,756,252 100% 3,081,104 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

prepayments are recognised.

4 Other receivables

ltem 5 H
Others Efb
(1) Others

(a) Other receivables by client are as follows:

Type E2ha]

Related parties ezl

Third parties E=F

Sub-total T

Less: Provision for bad and o AR
doubtful debts

Total AT
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ARk B TR SRR B RS

B

4 EftEYER

Notes 2018 2017
)= 20184 20174
U 728,620 42,047,494

(1) EAt

(a) HEFHEFNSTLT -
2018 2017
2018% 20174
- 801,363
728,620 41,246,131
728,620 42,047,494
728,620 42,047,494
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

4 Other receivables (cont’d)
(a) Other receivables by client are as follows: (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of the Group’s
other receivables comprises mainly outstanding
consideration relating to the disposal of 100% shares
of Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., which amounted
to RMB40,280,000. According to the share transfer
agreement, the receivables were settled in February
2018 and June 2018 respectively.

4 HEWRGE)

(a) BHEFEFSIT - (&)
20171231 H » KEH
WHEMERRBREFTEREE
Fr#s B 808 M 2 12 7 SRt 8kt
B PR 2 71100% A% 4 1 & LR
AR #40,280,0007T ° FIAL,
IR AR AR AE R 10 3R 43 E 9 B
201842 AM201846 A Uk[E o

(b) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

(b) EREDWTHAT

2018 2017
Ageing ARER 20184 20174
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1EAR(E1E) 706,252 41,924,494
Over 1 year but within 2 years 1EZE2E(525F)

(inclusive) 22,368 123,000
Over 2 year but within 3 years ~ 2FZE3F(&34F)

(inclusive) - -
Sub-total AN 728,620 42,047,494
Less: Provision for bad and o AR

doubtful debts - -
Total &5t 728,620 42,047,494

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

AR B H YR TE SR B A2 FE

AEtE -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

4 Other receivables (cont’d)
(c) Written-off of provision for bad and doubtful debts
during the year:

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

4 EAEUER(E)

(c) BRI ERBIEN

2018 2017
20184 20174
Balance at the beginning of the year & #]&:%8 - 4,132,565
Written-off during the year REZH - (4,132,565)
Balance at the end of the year FRERRE - =
5 Inventories 5 FE&
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) ZFES#E
2018 2017
20185 20175
Provision for Provision for
impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying
Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
Item FEES REEE BRER FEEE REHE HEER REEE
Raw materials and ~ EHE
packaging materials R EEY 28,754,267 - 28,754,267 32,033,062 - 32,033,062
Finished goods Ekm 470,537,493 (4,965,230) 465,572,263 742,649,394 (3,672,616) 738,976,778
Total Ch 499,291,760  (4,965230) 494,326,530 774,682,456  (3,672,616) 771,009,840

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no
inventories were pledged as securities by the Group.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

5

Inventories (cont’d)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

2018

Item
Raw materials and packaging

materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment of
inventories

Total

2017

ltem
Raw materials and packaging

materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment of
inventories

Total

#RER
BRI
B
EiR
Nt

W FEREER

BRI
BRI
Bt
EA
Nt

W FEREER

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

5 FE(#)
Q) FEXRFZHFERITUT -

2018%F
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FORE FERME FERIE FXREBR
32,033,062 450,791,359 454,070,154 28,754,267
742,649,394 537,835,617 809,947,518 470,537,493
774,682,456 988,626,976  1,264,017,672 499,291,760
3,672,616 2,505,468 1,212,854 4,965,230
771,009,840 986,121,508  1,262,804,818 494,326,530

20174

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FARE REEINE RERDHE EREAEE
30,827,020 509,482,901 508,276,859 32,033,062
787,157,399 603,855,566 648,363,571 742,649,394
817,984,419  1,113,338,467  1,156,640,430 774,682,456
231,058 3,441,558 - 3,672,616
817,753,361  1,109,896,909  1,156,640,430 771,009,840

—Z—\FF#H Annual Report 2018

191



Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

5 FE(&E)
B) FEE(BER

5 Inventories (cont’d)
(3) Provision for impairment of inventories

2018 2018
Balance at
the beginning Additions Balance at the
of the year  during the year Written back during the year  end of the year
ltem FaRR 2013 FEAm FERIEE FXBE
Provision Reversals Written-off
it #E LLE
Finished goods ERX 3,672,616 2,505,468 (92,689) (1,120,165) 4,965,230
2017 20174
Balance at
the beginning Additions Balance at the
of the year  during the year Written back during the year  end of the year
Item FHER ERE REEM AERD SR ERAHE
Provision Reversals Written-off
it &M 8
Finished goods ERm 231,058 3,441,558 - - 3,672,616

The Group recognized provision for impairment of
inventories after determination of the net realisable
value of its finished goods with reference to the current
market price and the actual sales of its finished goods.

The estimated selling price used to determine the
net realisable value of inventories varies depending
on whether a sales contract has been concluded.
Where a contract has been concluded, the estimated
selling price of inventories is recognised based on the
contract amount, otherwise, it is determined based
on the average contract price of recently concluded
contracts and the market selling price of similar
products.
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(cont’d)

6 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable
Prepaid income tax

Total

7 Fixed assets
(1) Fixed assets

Item

Cost
At 1 January 2017
Additions during the year
- Purchases

- Transfers from construction in progress

Reductions during the year

- Disposals or retirement
- Offset government grants
against the book value

- Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
- Purchases

- Transfers from construction in progress

Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement

- Transfers to construction in progress

- Offset government grants
against the book value
- Other deductions

At 31 December 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

6 HitRBEE
2018 2017
EL 20184 20174
R BT IR 28,741,897 51,194,764
SEECGCiRES 101,423 153,856
AFF 28,843,320 51,348,620
7 BEEE
(1) BlEEEIFN
Plant &  Machinery & Office & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
EER N |
L] BN BEEE  REMRE ERIR &t
e
20171 B18 577,658,735 895880433 22,200,618 9900403  1,505,640,189
REEN
-2 225,167 9,451,587 990,397 4937 10,672,088
-HERIREA 3537478 1251283 - - 4,788,761
KERSD
-RENHE - (2542,088) (133,469) (131892)  (2,807,447)
~HREERE
- (3127500) - - (3127500
-RETATF (41582,273)  (4512.241) (741,182) (715000 (47,550,69)
WTFOASIE  SOEMIO BBAIA 203 G0BME 1476153
201851518 53,839,107 806401476 22,316,364 9,058,448  1,467,615,395
REEN
-BE 15,788,067 6,031,579 2,119,988 1,406,449 25,346,083
-HRIEEA 2,660,881 26,105,590 572,486 191,551 31,530,508
KERSD
-REUHE (65,235 (4,931,098) (548359)  (1,046,700) (6,611,302
-BAERIR - (50,216,073) (42,288) - (50,259,21)
~BRREeERE
- (600,000) - - (600,000)
—EHE - (196,719) (58,875) - (255,594)
20185120318 558,202,820 874503855 24,359,316 9,609,748 1,466,765,739
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BF 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

7 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d)

ltem

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement
- Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018

Charge for the year

Reductions during the year
- Disposals or retirement
- Transfers to construction in progress
- Other deductions

At 31 December 2018

Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

EE

2ithe
0171 /1A
RESHR
KERSD
-RENHE
~RETATA

20175128318
2018F1 718
REGHR
KERD
~REGHE
-BAERTR
~Efri
2018F12A318
AR
20171718
AEGHE
2017F127A310

2018F1A18
REGR

20185127318

SHEE
20185127318

20175128318

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

7 BEEEE)
(1) BIEEERER ()

Plant&  Machinery & Office & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
EER MR
B BERE  REMSE ERIR ait
(145,893,706) ~ (601,034,024)  (17,216,221) (7,932,430)  (672,076,381)
(12522,421) (27,421,744 (1,099,768) (221,218)  (41,265,151)
- 1,023,534 118,904 118,703 1,261,141
12,420,396 1,766,316 480,756 639,122 15,306,590
(145,995,781)  (525,665,918) (17,716,329 (7,395,823)  (696,773,801)
(145,995,731)  (525,665,918)  (17,716,329) (7,395,823)  (696,773,801)
(10,242,675)  (29,198,381) (1,261,732) (350,546)  (41,043,334)
16,712 2,342,393 477,280 935,465 3,831,850
- 37,489,353 30,148 - 37,519,501
- 97,627 26,527 - 124,154
MSEnen) (k) et SO (el
- (480,787) = = (480,787)
(16,731,276)  (15,207,024) - - (31,938,300
(16,731,276)  (15,687,811) = - (32,419,087
(16,731,276)  (15,687,811) = - (32,419,087)
NS Madnen T s 41908
385,309,850 343,971,118 5,925,210 2,798,844 738,005,022
377,112,100 355,047,747 4,600,035 1,662,620 738,422,507

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
there are no fixed assets with restrictions placed on

the Group’s ownership.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEFZEFRTROBRAF

7K2018F 12 A31H K 20174F
128318 @ NEBEATA R
ZRREINEEEE °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

7 Fixed assets (cont’d) 7 BEEE(E)
(1) Fixed assets (cont'd) (1) ElEZER (&)
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the 7K2018F12H31H * B &
Group’s fixed assets includes the property and land ERAEERPRSAEER
ownership which were purchased in USA in 2018. 2018FEHEERBENEER

HA B -

(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (2) EFFEERETEEEIBT
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the 7R2018F 12 A31H K& 20174F
Group's temporarily idle fixed assets are as follows: 12A318 - "&EENUTEE

BEEERHE -

31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Accumulated  Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
Item B RERE RHHE REE IRERE
Lemon processing line, accessory BENILES  WER
equipment and building LBE 114,750,644  (25,517,306)  (31,938,300) 57,295,038
Preserved fruit production line IHEER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
Total =) 116,000,478  (26,161,370)  (32,419,087) 57,420,021
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
Accumulated  Provision for Carrying
Cost  depreciation impairment amount
ltem A RHRE ZitiE B REEE
Lemon processing line, accessory BENTAES - [BXE
equipment and building REE 115,633,195 (23,387,795)  (31,938,300) 60,307,100
Preserved fruit production line RBEER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983
Total Bt 116,883,029  (24,031,859)  (32,419,087) 60,432,083
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

7 Fixed assets (cont’d) 7 BEEE(E)
(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (cont’d) 2) BEHEHERETEEESL (&)

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group assessed that the lemon production machinery
and equipment of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd. exists indications of impairment.
For the asset groups with identified indications of
impairment, the management compares the carrying
amount of each asset group with its recoverable
amount to determine the amount of the impairment.
The recoverable amount of an asset group is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its present
value of expected future cash flows. For the reason
that the Group can not reliably estimate the present
value of expected future cash flow of relevant asset
group, the Group determines the recoverable amount
of the asset group in accordance with its fair value
less costs to sell.

At the end of 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, the Group evaluates the recoverable amount of
the asset group and reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount and recognises an impairment
loss of RMB31,938,300 in 2017. No impairment loss
of asset is required in 2018. The recoverable amount
is determined by the amount of fair value less costs
to sell of the asset group. The fair value is calculated
using the cost method with reference to the full cost to
re-establish the same or similar assets at the current
price valuation date, after deducting the physical
devaluation, functional devaluation and economic
devaluation.

196  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

7K 20184F 12 A31H k20174
12A318 ' ZEEFHLE
ZEMNEEREEREARA A
MEENMTAEREENBR
#H BEGEBREDRR @ %
REZBFEREDRNEE
- EEESEEEEANE
HEEEEELARE S FEETLE
8 UEEREEESEE o 7]
B¢ e RAEEMANTERT
ARBERENIREEEEMR
MAREBEEREEEERERN
FREME CHARSEEE ° B
RAEEE L EAFTEEE
EANTETAKRRSRENR
B - AEERKREENEES
MAREBEREEEEREZEN
FREAHIKEISE -

7K2018F 12 31 H k20174
12A318 ' "EEHELESE
EAR AU B &R EH R E T
BB EERGELEERD
FEEERSEEATKE S
B R2017FETHIRE ER
B8k A R#31,938,3007T °
R2018FEEEBITIREE
AKX - Er A e FEE
EREEEEANAAEER
ZEEER c AN EBEEF
FARAE - 2B EEER
735 5 (E 4% E 37 I 2 AR R 5k AR
LUEENZIRANREEER
B~ e B E A R R Y
& -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

7 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

7 BEEEGHE)
Q) B BBEHEHALETEEE

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(4) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the
fixed assets leased out by the Group under operating
leases was RMB20,017,501 (2017: RMB23,254,119),
which include two office buildings, several commercial
stores and an apartment building located in Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai.

(5) Fixed assets pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
the Group’s fixed assets with pending certificates of

187

72018412 831 H & 20174
12A31H - A"&EEEMEMR
ERANETEE °

(4) BBACETHE L B E & E
MR2018F 12 A31H » &A%
ERegcElEaElmHME
EEERAEEARARKE
20,017,50170( 20174 : AR
#23,254,11970) + £ E 2
AV m$$%&@%5ﬂ%§@ﬂ@ﬁﬁ
BERAE  BETEREARNR
—BABIE o

(5) AP ZEEFENETEEER
i
7KR2018F 12 A31H & 20174F
12H31H ZISEIL\MTE

ownership is as follows: BERNZEREES
Reason why
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 .4 tificates of
Item Carrying amount Carrying amount pending
HH IREEE FERE FHREEEERE
Buildings of Liguan Yitong Juice Co.,Ltd. 50,062,960 51,331,130  The certificates have not
BREBRFTERAABEEE been dealt with due to
historical reasons
BrEZRRA @ mAIHE
Fresh fruit workshop of Anyue Andre 5,114,980 5,243,453  The certificates have not

Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
ZERENERERHRBRAF
B RER

been dealt with due
to the acceptance
standard have not
been met

REFRKAIBEE
e AR HHIE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

8 Construction in progress
(1) Construction in progress

8 HEIR
(1) EEIZIEX

2018 2017
2018% 20175

Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying

Book value impairment amount  Book value  impairment amount

Project i RS BEER IRERE REAE REER REEE

Plant renovation of Yongji  KELEHUELE 5403658 - 5,403,653 - - -

Production line BKIHEES

renovation of Baishui BETE 700,000 - 700,000 = = -
Boiler installation ENTHHRE

of Longkou YETR 160,000 - 160,000 - - -
Boiler online AR REN

monitoring project J5H = = = 120,000 = 120,000

Others 2t = = = 1,660 - 1,660

Total CE 6,263,653 - 6,263,653 121,660 - 121,660

201812 A31 H & 20174
12H318 @ "EBMERET
REFBERE o

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
no interest was capitalized in construction in progress
of the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

8 Construction in progress (cont’d) 8 HEIR(E)
(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress (2) EXEZETFEIEF ZE)EH
during the year

2018 20184

Percentage

Transfers ~ Additions A3t of actual
At1January fromfied duringthe Transfersto December  costto  Project Sources
Budget 2018 assets year fixed assets 2018 budget (%)  process of funds

TR

20185 F3 BEBL  N8E RASHE
Project JEE REE  1RIR WEEL  kEEM BERE AR UMW IREE Re%E
Plant renovation of Yongji KETHRETE 37,456,3 - 12739760 21542319 (8878426) 5403650 0% 9% Seltfunded
EFas
Boler instalaion of Liquen ~—~~ ERIEHRERIE 220069 - - 220690 (2.220690) - 100% 100%  Se-funded
BEES

Tota ait 30,676,022 - 12739760 23763009 (31,099,116) 540363
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

9 Intangible assets

[tem
Cost
At 1 January 2017

Disposals during the year
— Disposals of subsidiary

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
— Purchases

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals of subsidiary

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

HE
BRHE R{E
20171 H1H
KERF
—BRETAA
201712 A31H

201841 H1H
ARE N
— BB

201812 A31H
RETEEH
201741 H1H
REETIR
BREFAT
2017412 A31H

20181 H1H
AFEHE

2018412 A31H

fRmEE
20185 12H31H

2017412 H31H

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

9 EBREE
Land use right
=it {5 FH 48
134,032,445

(20,395,501)

113,636,944

113,636,944

2,901,039

116,537,983

(23,900,663)
(3,167,902)
2,660,012

(24,408,553)

(24,408,553)
(2,500,195)

(26,908,748)

89,629,235

89,228,391
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

9

Intangible assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all of
the Group’s land use rights are on medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group has no intangible assets used as mortgage for
bank loans.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
the Group did not have land use rights which pending
certificates of ownership.

10 Goodwill

(1) Changes in goodwill

Note

Name of investee WIREEMZTE
Book value RERE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry ZERZENERESR
Technology Co., Ltd. RERERAR
Yongji Andre Juice KEBREMRHT
Co., Ltd. BERAH
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice AEARENRT
Co., Ltd. FKRBR R
Sub-total gt
Provision for impairment REEE
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry RERBHEGES
Technology Co., Ltd. REARAE
Sub-total NGt
Carrying amount FEER

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

9 EEEEE)
MR2018%12 A31H k2017412 A
31H - AEEMELMFERES
FREFFRAT o

MR2018%12 A31H k2017512 A
318 ' AEEEFEEREEE
B AR EFRF 8 o

R2018F12 431 A K&2017F 12
318 - AEEEAFNELEE -

M2018412 A31H k20174124
318 ' A"EBERNLEHEEE
ML RERER -

10 A&
(1) BEZE BT

Balance at Additions Balance at
1 January during 31 December
2018 the year 2018
2018F1A1H XE®IN 2018%F12A31H
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,653,575 - 8,653,575
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599)
5,586,976 - 5,586,976
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Goodwill (cont’d)

(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)

Name of investee

Book value
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd.
Yongji Andre Juice
Co., Ltd.
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice
Co., Ltd.

Sub-total

Provision for impairment
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co., Ltd.

Sub-total

Carrying amount

Note
HIRA BN AT i+

RERE
my’*ﬂf’%% (a)
BRARA
KE ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁfr (o)
ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂ
a%A *’*ﬂ% ©
THRERAR

FEEE

(@) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB52,120,000 in 2014. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

202  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEHZEFR

STROBRAF

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

10 ﬁiﬁ*

Balance at Additions Balance at
1 January during 31 December
2017 the year 2017
2017F1 518 AEEM  2017F12731H
3,066,599 - 3,066,599
4,566,293 - 4,566,293
1,020,683 - 1,020,683
8,663,575 - 8,663,575
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599
(3,066,599) - (3,066,599
5,586,976 - 5,586,976

(a) M2014FE - AEBEXZ A

R#52,120,0007T 47 88 Ak AN 4k
BT RERENEBREERX
BRARAER - YREK AR
B FIERN T ELETE
BEERHEAR AR HRE
E BEAREENEREAR
ﬁmﬁﬁﬂf%?%ﬂ&ﬁ@
NAEENEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

10 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)
(b) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji Andre

Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash consideration of
RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The goodwill represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003. The goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s interests in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd.

(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill

recognised are Anyue Andre Lemon

Industry

Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

10 HE(E)

(o) R2011FE - AEEZ A

R¥56,201,585 T W B A A UL
BT KEBELZENRETERA
AR - WEKABERIZL
RS H OB R BN RETHE
RABAHKREE - BERAR
BEMNEZESEERERR
FOTERARIERENEE -

MR20083FE  AEEZ A
R#32,035,810 T 48 88 Ak AN 4k
BT HEREDRZENE; SRR
BRARAER - WIEK AR
BIZLL OISR AN ZE
PR B AR AR Al R E
E AEAREBEENEREAR
A& 5 O R ERRA KRB B R
ARIBENEE -

@) BEREER
REERE R B AR
BEMAEARTERBNER

EXMBRERAT

S R O /e
C KB TR

NMNREABERARRMAEER
LN HEERAT -
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

10 Goodwill (cont’d) 10 R (#|)
(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill (cont’d)) 2) EEREERE ()

The recoverable amounts of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. are
determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows. The present value of expected future
cash flows was projected based on the next five-year
financial forecast approved by management and a
pre-tax discount rate of 10.86% (2017: 10.52%). The
cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period were
assumed to be stable.

Key assumptions used in estimating the present value
of expected future cash flows of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. include
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance
and expectations on market development, and stable
sales volume, which were determined by management
based on past performance.

204  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itA R EFRTROERLF

TEREMNEREEREER
AR KERZEFRETHE
RAaMAEEOREIRT
ERRHE IR A B H) AT U (8] 4 58 A
B RRR S RERENH A
BE  AEEREEEEH
BRI R RS F B #5 T8 & N
10.86% (2017 £F : 10.52%)
FLATITIR RIBT i B EAAN R
KBS MERME - BBSFY
BREZZFHHRESREY
BRRFBETE -

HRELBNERERMNE
RAR]  KBREHNRGEAE
RAmMEEEORBMNRT
KB BR AR B RKIR SR
ERENAERATREES
REBRHMSERAANNEES
ENRAMHEREBRFRBEE
REARRBR - EEEREBERE
F 2 B HO R S AR L e RE 5 e
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

11 Deferred tax assets 11 EEFEREE
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets (1) R HEFEIE BT 13 7% & EE B AT
2018 2017
ltem BH 2018% 20174
Deductible tax losses A& E 42,953,152 52,171,875
(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in () BB E= - 23FTH A 25
Note 11.23, the Group has not recognised deferred BE ARAEETIEETRE
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of EETARENAEBERN &
RMB42,953,152 (2017: RMB52,171,875) as it is not RIEFRFIE - B ANERE R
probable that future taxable profits against which the gt AR #42 953,152t (2017
losses can be utilised will be available to the Group. F£: AR®52,171,8757T ) 1Y
The deductible tax losses can be deducted from future SR EINEEERIELEFRE
taxable income within 5 years from the year when such THEE - IBEBERITHE - 5L
losses were incurred under current tax laws. AEINEEEEEEELR - 0]

AT BB 5 F 1) HfE A+
RFEHAE o

(3) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised (3) 7K #ERRAE L AT 18 7 B K A 15
deferred tax assets HIE1E B 2l BT 17
2018 2017
Year F 2018% 20174
2018 20184 - 5,494,795
2019 20194 576,342 576,342
2020 20204 11,844 11,844
2021 20214 - -
2022 20224 41,567,922 46,088,894
2023 20234 797,044 -
Total &t 42,953,152 52,171,875
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEEAS) » 2 FEE [ BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

12 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
are no assets with restrictions placed on the Group’s
ownership.

13 Short-term loans

[tem IEH
Guaranteed loans IREBEEFR
Guaranteed loans IREBEIEFR
Total =)
[tem EH
Credit loans ERER
Guaranteed loans REBER
Guaranteed loans REBER

Total =X

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group did not have short-term loans past due.

Information for guaranteed loans is set out in Note X.6.

206 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

12 FiERSFEREZIRGHNEE
MR2018%12 A31H k2017412 A
31H @ AEEEMBESEIR
HEEE °

13 JEHIfERK

2018
20185
Annual
interest rate Currency RMB
FEFF ®E AER%<#
4.44% RMBAR®# 20,000,000
4.35% RMBARE®% 30,000,000
50,000,000
2017
20174
Annual
interest rate Currency RMB
R = BE AREKSH
4.35% RMBAR®E 100,000,000
4.35% RMBAR 30,000,000
4.39% RMBAR® 40,000,000

170,000,000

M2018%F12 A31H Kk2017F12H
318 » A"EEEE FHKREEZED
KIHRfESK o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

14 Bills and accounts payable 14 FENEERENERR
(1) Accounts payable by supplier type are as follows: (1) FETBR S H HE JE B 28 51121 7 %
T
2018 2017
Supplier type HrEm R 2018% 20174
Third parties ENE= 38,174,800 83,277,765
Related parties FE RAEE T 14,694 3,091,850
Total Bt 38,189,494 86,369,615
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on (2) FETERFIZ N E H B2 2|89 87
the date of receipt of goods, is as follows: B0 -
2018 2017
Ageing BREe 20185 20174
Within 1 year(inclusive) 1EARN (B14) 35,095,445 81,583,480
Over 1 year 1904 F 3,094,049 4,786,135
Total At 38,189,494 86,369,615
15 Contract liabilities 15 ERAE
The contract liabilities mainly represent advance payments EREBEFEPRAKERE
received from the customers according to sales contracts EEPHHEESR R KEIAE
with the amounts equivalent to 20% to 100% of the WK B KE S R 2 F]
considerations. The contract liabilities are recognized KRN 2B RAERABEEN
as revenue after the Group satisfies its performance 20%~100% ° % & [FIE AR B4 A
obligations to the customers. HEREERBITRARBEER o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

16 Employee benefits payable
(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits %8 HAZF B

Post-employment benefits BB B 1R A
— defined contribution plans — R ERFAE
Total =)

Short-term employee benefits 72 Ei%

Post-employment benefits FEBR B A
~ defined contribution plans —RERFHE
Total G

208 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLD T

16 FE {58 T 57 B
(1) E1TBTEH NG T -

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2018 the year the year 2018
20185 20184
1A1H FEB/M FERD 12A31H
21,065,744 51,817,247 51,943,147 20,939,844
209,923 4,397,980 4,607,903 -
21,275,667 56,215,227 56,551,050 20,939,844
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2017 the year the year 2017
20174 20174
1A1H ARELIN AERHD 12A31H
21,574,064 50,488,482 50,996,802 21,065,744
- 4,306,647 4,096,724 209,923
21,574,064 54,795,129 55,093,526 21,275,667
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

16 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 16 FE{SHR T 5rEM (&)
(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) %% B
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2018 the year the year 2018
2018 20185

#£1R1H FEBM XERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances I & - #% -

and subsidies LR AL 9,865,194 48,596,493 47,898,409 10,563,278

Staff bonus and welfare fund Bk T 2881 &
BHES 10,727,074 - 355,680 10,371,394

Social insurance HeRkE
Medical insurance BERRE 78,581 1,646,303 1,724,884 -
Work-related injury insurance  L5RKRE 12,124 254,001 266,125 -
Maternity insurance EERBE 5,613 235,186 240,799 -
Housing fund FEELES 377,158 720,129 1,097,287 -

Labour union fee and staffs’ TEEEM
education fee BI#EKLE - 365,135 359,963 5,172
Total &t 21,065,744 51,817,247 51,943,147 20,939,844
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

16 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(2) Short-term employee benefits (cont’d)

Salaries, bonuses, allowances I & - #% -

and subsidies 23 gkl

Staff bonus and welfare fund BT HE&
BRES

Social insurance HeRkheE

Medical insurance BERRE

Work-related injury insurance ~ L/5RK &

Maternity insurance EERBRE
Housing fund FEAES
Labour union fee and staffs’ TELEA

education fee BIHELE
Total G

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

16 FEATER T 57 mM (48)
2) XGHIF B (&)

(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

Basic pension insurance EAREERR
Unemployment insurance RERRE
Total A

210  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&aitH R EFRTROERLD T

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2017 the year the year 2017

20174 20174

1A1H AR RERD 12A31H

9,991,335 47,500,137 47,626,278 9,865,194

11,582,729 - 855,655 10,727,074

- 1,612,114 1,683,633 78,581

- 248,726 236,602 12,124

- 115,151 109,538 5,613

- 789,459 412,301 377,158

- 222,895 222,895 -

21,574,064 50,488,482 50,996,802 21,065,744
(3) BEHL 15T —REIEFFATE]

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2018 the year the year 2018

20185 20184

1A1A FEEM FERD 12A31H

202,064 4,233,350 4,435,414 -

7,859 164,630 172,489 -

209,923 4,397,980 4,607,903 -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

16 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

16 FEEE T 5 (&)
(3) BEBL L 17 7| — R EHE 7t &)

(cont’d) (&)
Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
the year the year 2017
20174 20174
1818 AEREH RERD 12H31H
Basic pension insurance EREERR 4,145,436 3,943,372 202,064
Unemployment insurance RERBRE 161,211 153,352 7,859
Total =) 4,306,647 4,096,724 209,923

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its
staff. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at certain percentage or
certain amount of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its staff of last year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payables to retired employees.
The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with these
plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.

MR2018F 12 A31 H k20174
12H3818 * AEBEEMET
Hri B R E R FRIE o

REFEBEGD - AEES
HBT2EMTHRFZHZ
BB EEHFENRTE - KK
BB LR N SR B TR 2
REBDLREESEELMR
R o HEM T R R
MRAKEENZEERAREE -
AREBB Eat FZHKEAS -
BALE L 5T S A E AR
BRAXNERENEREL -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

17 Taxes payable

ltem IEH
Value-added tax HEF
Land use tax T AR
Property tax FEER
Others Hib

Total =

18 Other payables

ltem HH
Interest payable FERTFE
Other EAth
Total &t

(1) Interest payable
There is no significant overdue interest payable as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(2) Others
ltem a5
Third party F=5

212  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itHZEFRTROERLD T

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

17 EXHE

2018 2017
20185 20174
5,981,963 8,792,448
597,506 595,590
515,534 552,970
2,677,665 1,062,241
9,772,668 11,003,249

18 HERR
Notes 2018 2017
3 20185 20174
(1) 66,990 643,783
@) 17,882,203 11,802,159
17,949,193 12,445,942

(1) FETFE

MR2018F12 A31 H k20174
12A818 ' AEBEESER
BEHRZFAFE

@) Afth

2018
20184

17,882,203

2017
20174

11,802,159
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)
19 Share capital 19 KRR

Changes during the year(+/-)

FEEEER
Balance at the Balance at
beginning of  Issue of new Share  Purchase of the end of the
the year shares consolidation ~ own shares Sub-total year
)] BTHR R et BB it FXBH
2018 20185
Total number of shares HR{pH#% 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
Amount (RMB) N4 358,000,000 - - - - 358,000,000
2017 20175
Total number of shares RS 368,000,000 - - (10,000,000  (10,000,000) 358,000,000
Amount (RMB) ARESH 368,000,000 - - (10,000,000  (10,000,000) 358,000,000

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 25 May
2017 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased a total of 10,000,000
H shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
at prices ranging from HKD4.34 to HKD5.33 per H share,
for a total consideration of HKD45,793,341 (equivalent to
RMB39,744,040) (including the consideration for shares
repurchase, stamp tax and commission) from 5 June
2017 to 23 June 2017. The repurchased shares had been
cancelled and deregistered, and the Company’s issued
share capital was reduced by the amount equivalent to
the par value of the repurchased shares. Excess of the
repurchase price over the par value of the repurchased
shares were charged against the capital reserve. After the
capital reduction, the total number of shares was changed
from 368,000,000 shares to 358,000,000 shares with a
par value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered
capital was changed to RMB358,000,000.

RIEFR2017F5 H258 A FH A%
HAFARE RARA ZH
BABRBEAZEIBRERNS A
BRBRN B AT 2 it
A B2017F6A5HE6A23H
IE ARARREBHAERSE
& 2 &) [2] B8 10,000,000 f% & A% A
R¥1.00tEEZHE » B#HERZ
OB (& A 4.3425.337 T © 40
B8 545,793,341 B L(HER
AR #39,744,0407T) (BRI
REHE  NEHRAESE) -
FrEl D 2 Eil © ARRIE %
TR AR 5% E It W A B AR FE U8
B BIEEERBBERAR I D
BT EARTE - BER + AAF
fi% 15 42 2k i 368,000,000 A% J& =
358,000,0000% * FHEEARKE
1.007T * FMELREERERE B A
R #358,000,0007T °
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(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements kol

(cont’d)

20 Capital reserve

2018

ltem

Share premium

Foreign currency translation difference

Total

2017

Item R

Share premium BABE

Foreign currency translation MR
difference

Total Ch

214 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itHZEFRTROERLD T

J5H
RARE
IERAFE =
Aif
Note
V.19
FEES

AHMBEERFEZERGE)
20 EXQE
20185
Balance at the Additions Reductions Balance at
beginning of during the during the  the end of the
the year year year year
)] FERm FERYD FXBE
17,281,789 - - 17,281,789
9,926 - - 9,926
17,291,715 - - 17,291,715
20174
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the  the end of the
of the year year year year
i3 ENeRE REEM RERD ERRE
h19 47,025,829 - 29,744,040 17,281,789
9,926 - - 9,926
47,035,755 - 29,744,040 17,291,715




(cont’d)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

21 Other comprehensive income

ltem
Items that may be reclassfied to proftt or loss
Including: gain or loss arising from changes

in fair valug of available-for-sale
financial assets

ltem
Items that may be reclassified to proft or loss
Including: gain or loss arising from changes

in fair valug of avalable-for-sale
financial assefs

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

21 HiiRa s

Movements during the year 2018

NERER
Balance at the Net-of-tax  Balance at the
beginning of the amount end of the year
year attributable attributable to  attributable to
to shareholders Before-tax  Less: Transfer ~ Less: Income ~ shareholders of ~ shareholders of
of the Company amount toprofitorloss  taxexpense  the Company  the Company
] #HERA BERBLT
BRBRMRS KERRR  AfRRNE HERE BREMEMGS
i BEENRE AREE  EMEARE W :HARER RBAR  REEFEE
NkpENBERR
WAt G - - - - - -
i AHHESHAR
v S
Moverments during the year 2017
NITFELE
Balance at the Net-ofax  Balance at the
beginning of the amount end of the year
year attributable attributableto  atfributable to
o sharefolders Before-fax  Less: Transferto ~ Less: Income~~ shareholders of  shereholders of
of the Company amount orofit or loss taxerpense  the Company  the Company
BENEAT W HIEA BENEAT
RRaAtGE REfEH  AftGRkaE WhEE  RRNEMGR
1R WHENHE HRER BE\BR W AETER RORE  WBEREE
NkpENEERR
it a ke 2,041,764 - 2,041,764 - (2,041,764) -
i qthESHAR
MEEEDER
2,041,764 - 2,041,764 - (2,041,764) -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

22 Surplus reserve
2018
ltem HH
Statutory surplus reserve EERBRATE
2017
ltem THH
Statutory surplus reserve EERBBRAIE

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

22 BERARK

20185
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the the end of
of the year year the year
Fmes *F2m FXRirEE
107,111,132 470,841 107,581,973

20174
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the the end of
of the year year the year
AR RN FRERER
105,794,859 1,316,273 107,111,132

Pursuant to the requirements of the Company Law in the
People’s Republic of China, appropriations to statutory
surplus reserve were made at 10% of after tax profit until

such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

216  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&aitH R EFRTROERLD T

REBE(PREARKEMBRRE)E
167158  FRAAKESZ AR HDEE
FEREFEE - EERDRA BN
10% 5 ARBEERBRTE o A
AEAEAES 25t EAFMER
HI50%F + AJ ANEBIZER ©
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

23 Retained earnings 23 R EFIE
Appropriation or
Note Amount  distribution rate
ltem 5 i & RERSERLA
At 1 January 2017 2017F1A18 1,128,356,191
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AEEBREAT
to shareholders of the Company RRAEHE 86,425,223
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B REHAE 1,316,273 10%
Dividends payable to ordinary shares e LA 1) 18,400,000
At 31 December 2017 20174124318 ¥ 1,195,065,141
At 1 January 2018 2018F1A18 1,195,065,141
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AERBRE AT
to shareholders of the Company REAEHE 137,335,846
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RREBAR 470,841 10%
Dividends payable to ordinary shares JER SRR (1) 35,800,000
At 31 December 2018 2018%12831H 2) 1,296,130,146
As at 31 December 2018, the distributable reserve of 7R2018%F 12318 + A A& Al &
the Company amounted to RMB308,933,776 (2017: KTARBIRR 2 HEESEAA
RMB340,496,213). R #308,933,7767T(20174 : A

R#340,496,2137T) °

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared (1) ZEE BT

during the year

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual BIE2018F 6 A26 HIE R A
general meeting on 26 June 2018, a dividend payable RIREE - A E) AR R
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMBO. 1 RER KA - RO
per share, totalling RMB35,800,000, was approved. H5+35,800,0007T °

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual BIE2017F5 B25 HR R RS
general meeting on 25 May 2017, a dividend payable R HEE + ANQ R AT B
to ordinary shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05 IKEIR S RA - §%0.057T -
per share, totaling RMB18,400,000, was approved. $#5+18,400,0007T °
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
23 Retained earnings (cont’d) 23 R EFE(E)
(2) Retained earnings at the end of the year (2) TR BOFE a9 a7 B

Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2018 and
attributable to the Company is RMB13,131,073 (2017:
RMB18,473,388).

As at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
retained earnings attributable to the Company
included appropriation to surplus reserves
made by the Company’s subsidiaries amounting
to RMB142,281,559 (31 December 2017:
RMB129,150,486).

FRAANFREMNEBR S
REIMBHBLATBEBAARK
18,131,0737L(20174F : AR
#18,473,3887L) °

R2018F 12 A31H » A&EE
FBRERARIMARD A EF
BE T ARRINTF R AR
BHpniE AR 142,281,559
Je(2017F12A318 : AR
129,150,4867T) °

24 Operating income and operating costs 24 BEEIWA - BERK
2018 2017
2018 20174

Income Cost Income Cost
ltem BHE KA 5% 3 WA B
Principal businesses FEEK 1,061,840,781 774,565,008 895,293,024 617,189,273
Other businesses HhZER 5,744,027 2,028,695 5,748,146 2,131,985
Total aEr 1,067,584,808 776,593,703 901,041,170 619,321,258
Operating income generated from principal businesses FEEBWARBREB /R
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and FARMEHEEMEERA - H
related products. Operating income generated from other HZEFE WA E BIEHE E MR
businesses represents primarily the sales of raw materials, A HEWAFE o

rental income and others.

For information about the group’s operating income SEEFXWARETFPHIE R
broken down by the location of clients, refer to Note XIV. DERENEE  2RKETM -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

25

26

27

Taxes and surcharges

[tem

Urban maintenance and construction tax
Education surcharges

Property tax

Land use tax

Others

Total

Selling and distribution expenses

[tem

Freight charges
Payroll and welfare
Others

Total

General and administrative expenses

[tem

Payroll and welfare
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Repair and motor vehicle expenses
Auditors’ remuneration

— Statutory audit services

— Other services
Other consulting services fees
Others

Total

HH

YT R TR AR
HEEM
FER
b fE R
Hitp

HH

TE®RH

FEBEMEHE

HIEBNMERE M

T 2
—AEENE
— Bt R% &

Hip ARG &

H Al

At

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

25 e K0

2018 2017
20185 20174
3,161,961 3,298,129
3,218,510 3,028,253
3,579,418 3,605,517
3,870,430 4,671,804
1,536,228 946,979
15,366,547 15,550,682

26 SHEEH
2018 2017
20185 20174
61,148,344 47,980,070
1,520,959 1,507,745
28,542,524 20,389,640
91,211,827 69,877,455

21 EEERA
2018 2017
20185 20174
21,972,380 21,663,691
6,257,385 7,221,826
679,494 708,235
1,480,000 1,480,000
2,360,000 1,680,000
3,393,624 2,173,023
25,325,055 18,157,666
61,467,938 53,084,441
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements kol

(cont’d)

28 Financial expenses

[tem 15 H

Interest expenses arising from borrowings ~ EZ A FIE 3 H
Government grants — interest subsidy BT B —BE B
Government grants — interest subsidy BB — 8RB

refunded AR[O
Interest income from deposits TR EF B A
Net exchange (gains)/losses RN (Wes) 1Bk
Other financial expenses H 0875 E
Total A&t

In 2018, Yantai Finance Bureau and Forestry Bureau
appropriated interest subsidy of RMB1,825,000 to the
Group, which offsetted against financial expenses.

In 2017, Anyue Economic and Technological Information
Bureau directly appropriated interest subsidy of
RMB350,000 to the Group, which offsetted against
financial expenses. In 2018, the interest subsidy was
refunded for the reason of not complying with the relevant
regulations of the subsidy policy.

29 Impairment losses

ltem 5H
Fixed assets BEEEE
Inventories T8
Accounts receivable FEUR R X
Total A&r

30 Credit losses

[tem 15 H

Accounts receivable FEURBR TR
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et ERREEEEE)
28 BIER

2018 2017
20185 20174
1,026,756 7,524,714
(1,825,000) (350,000)
350,000 =
(162,730) (425,062)
(15,502,375) 13,678,002
474,930 509,104

29

30

(15,638,419) 20,936,758

MR2018F E * MEmE TR K
E MEBEBRNAEASEMEE
AR R BF B AR BO& £ 1,825,000
TC  MERBMEER o

R2017FE - TEZEEREE
EREERNGASE I XM
E 7B B.350,0007T - #EFE AR B
HER - N2018FEE » ARN&%E
HEBETNFAEMERANARER
E 0 PLURME o

BEREBEERX
2018 2017
20185 20174
- 31,938,300
2,412,779 3,441,558
= 1,536,215

2,412,779 36,916,073

ERARERX
2018 2017
20185 20174
2,962,242 =




(cont’d)

31 Government grants

(1) Government grants related to assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The government grants related to assets of the Group

are as follows:

(a) Effect on assets

[tem

Offset against book value of
fixed assets
Subsidy for a research and
development project
Grant for production line
modification

Total

(b) Effect on deferred income
2017

ftem L

Grant for production line modification

REGHERY

wENIER

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

3 BAFHE
(1) BRI B
K g 8 5 2 A P Y BT B
T -

(@ HEEHBNFE

R B E B ERE EE

BT B B

HEARDUER B

Balance at the
beginning of
the year
BEKE
ENiE

3,127,500

2018 2017
2018 20174
600,000 -
- 3,127,500
600,000 3,127,500

(o) HIREWR A FZE

20174

Offset against Balance at
book value of the end of
Additions  fixed assets Others the year
SR hREE BEKE
#heH FERE ReH EXBE
- (3,127,500) - -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

31 Government grants (cont’d)
(2) Government grant related to income
The government grants related to income of the Group
are as follows:

ltem fHBhIE B

Research and development subsidies  Aff %% @& Bf)

Foreign trade subsidies IMEE B
Tax reward R EEE S
Industrial development fund TEZERES
Others EAth

Total A&t

In 2018, the Group received grants totaling
RMB2,313,133 from various government authorities,
which is directly included in other income. The Group
used the interest subsidy to offset against financial
expenses. For the information of interest subsidy,
refer to Note V.28.

In 2017, the Group received grants totaling
RMB1,474,788 from various government authorities,
which is directly included in other income. The Group
used the interest subsidy to offset against financial
expenses. For the information of interest subsidy,
refer to Note V.28.
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

31 BUFEEL(4E)
(2) E2US 25 FE B Y T 7 B
7 £5 5] 1 Uk 225 4R B8 O BT # B

U N
2018 2017
20185 20174
1,603,000 75,000
601,500 156,520
20,000 646,000
50,000 351,200
38,633 246,068
2,313,133 1,474,788

MR2018F E A% EIUE % (B
FF 26 P9 48 Bh £ 512,313,183 7T °
STAEMKE o AEERSHE
BB R BEER « 25K
T 28

R2017FE + AEBE WS % [
FF 20 P9 48 B 22 511,474,788 7T
STAEME o AEERSHE
BB R BER - 25K
T 28



V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

32 Investment income
Investment income by item

ltem

Losses from disposal of a subsidiary
Investment income from disposal of
financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Including: financial assets held
for trading
Investment income from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Including: transfers from other
comprehensive income
Investment income from disposal of
financial assets held for trading
Investment income from disposal of debt
investments

Total

33 Gains from changes in fair value

[tem

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Including: the amount which transfers
to investment income due
to derecognition

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

32

BHE

BEFARELNAR
BELAL EEHEARE
HARBBENSRAZR
BN
b B ERAE

EEAHLESREERSEN
kB W=
Hep - Hitira WamB A

BRERXSUEEBEERSH
REW R
RERERERGHRE RS

33

EH

URnBEAERLHLZS
AAAEHERNEMEE
Hep : A& ERERMEH

EREWEN

-t

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

BRE W=
RE Yzt 5 H B g
2018 2017
2018 20174
= (2,916,477)
= 2,347,734
= 2,347,734
= 3,371,066
= 2,041,764
6,231,559 =
1,153,260 =
7,384,819 2,802,323
AREEEER
2018 2017
20185 20174
= 79,304
= 79,304
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

34 Non-operating income

Non-operating income by item is as follows:

ltem 5 H

Others EA

35 Non-operating expenses

[tem

Losses from scrapping of fixed assets
Donations

Fine and penalty

Others

Total

36 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for the year
estimated in accordance with the
tax law and regulations

Difference between tax fillings and
assessments

Total

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

34 EEIRA
BEINIASBE BRI
2018 2017
Note 20184 20174
7,888 514,069
35 BT H
2018 2017
18 B 20184 20174
B E B EMEEIRR 2,507,399 -
BRE S 894,977 =
SR F0R 20,000 100,000
EAh 87,419 185,696
=X 3,509,795 285,696
36 FriEHiEHR
2018 2017
HB 20185 20174
EHERABEEETER
BEEEH
12,570 82,670
EEEHE=R
124,984 52,973
&5t 137,554 135,643
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

36 Income tax expenses (cont’d)

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit is as follows:

[tem

Profit before taxation

Expected income tax expenses at tax
rate of 25%

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of different tax rates applied by
certain subsidiaries

Effect of unrecognised deferred tax
asset for deductible losses for the
current year

Effect of utilised deductible losses for
which no deferred tax asset was
recognised in previous years

Difference between tax fillings and
assessments

Effect of non-deductible costs,
expenses and losses

Income tax expenses

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 15 BlERE )

3% FEHEM(E)

P REREBARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

RS & M ES A B REN

—F :
2018 2017
IHH 2018 20174
IR IES 137,473,400 86,560,866
B FE25% 5T 8 T8 B
FriSHi 34,368,350 21,640,217
%mﬁﬁ (34,658,905) (46,679,666)
REEATRARENTE
276,946 10,393,803
INF EARERBEIEFTSR
EEMAIKISETE
119,557 11,522,224
{5 A3 A B R T SR A A
Fr{S 1 & E /) AT K 40
EEnTE (1,378,804) (981,756)
EEEHER
124,984 52,973
TRAMHEIRR A ~ &R
BRHTE 1,285,426 4,187,848
NEFEHE R 137,554 135,643

—Z—N\FEF3H Annual Report 2018

225



Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

(cont’d)
37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 37 EEREERMS
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are EENREEMES BN
as follows:
Directors’ and Salaries, allowances and  Retirement scheme
supervisors’ fees benefits in kind contributions Total
ERRES ExEg Bt
Name i2 fig AR EAEH HEER ait
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
N18E N7 NM8F  N7F  0M8F N7 0M8F  017%
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AER ARE IN: ] ARE  AER ARE IN: ] ARE
Executive Drectors: EEEE
Wang An Iz 50,000 50,000 34,606 17,067 - 1,186 84,606 68,23
Zhang Hui e 50,000 50,000 406,392 271468 15,274 14182 471666 335,600
Wang Yanhui 1% 50,000 50000 143888 120432 15,274 14182 209162 184,564
Non-exective Directors: FHNES:
Liu Tsung-yi fRE 50000 50,000 - = - - 0000 50,000
Independent non-executve Directors; ~ BUZETES :
Li Tongning e 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000
Jiang Hongg E 50000 50,000 - - - - 0000 50,000
Li We 3 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000
Supenvisors: gz
Wang Chuntang 15 15000 30,000 - - - - 15000 30,000
Dai Liying il 30000 30000 163865 118557 15204 14132 200139 162689
Wang Zhiwu IER 30,000 30000 167,655 147426 15,274 14182 212929 191558
Wang Kun* T 15,000 - 192677 124430 15,274 18359 222951 137,789
Total it 440000 440000 1,109,083 799,380 76,370 7,073 1,625,483 1,310,458

*  On 26 June 2018, Mr. Wang Chuntang resigned and Mr.
Wang Kun was appointed as supervisor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, no emoluments were paid to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)
(cont’d)

38 Individuals with the highest emoluments B BEFAL
For the year ended 31 December 2018, of the five #HZE2018F12A31HILEEE ' A
individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2017: four) NERmHALH » AA20174F :
are executive directors or supervisors whose emoluments AA)BHRITEEHES - £
are disclosed in Note V.37 above. The aggregate of the SERKER « 37 FLAHE -
emoluments in respect of the other one individual in 2017 2017 Efh— A Z F BN NPT

was as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20174

Salaries and other emoluments e MEMI S - 155,765

Retirement scheme contributions BRIREREH IR - 20,171

Total =X = 175,936

The emoluments of the one individual with the highest 2017 F &z = 3 A T M E B A
emoluments in 2017 was within the following band: THEZR :

2018 2017

20185 20174

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AER

HKD Nil-HKD1,000,000 FBHE T — 8% 1,000,0007T - 1
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEEAS) » 2 FEE [ BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)

(cont’d)

39 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per 39

share

(1) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable SFBRAR R EBEAAR
to ordinary shareholders of the K& BHF A
Company

Weighted average number of ordinary N2 &) B1TIESNE BA% A

shares outstanding hniE 9
Basic earnings per share ARG

(RMB/share) (AR¥TT/BR)
Diluted earnings per share wEERKE

(RMB/share) (AR¥T /1)

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the FYIBE BT L BAARE
peginning of the year
Effect of repurchase of own shares EIfie g a0}

Weighted average number of ordinary 4 7 & 358 A% BY Hn#EE 15
shares at the end of the year
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EXERUENHESREEN

STEBRE

(1) EAXFR W 7

ERFGHRWEARERARE
B RIRBCRE A GHF FERR A
AR B EEITAESNE B A

FHEETE
2018 2017
20185 20174
137,335,846 86,425,223
358,000,000 362,379,110
0.384 0.238
0.384 0.238

AEBEMIIRHOERERB TR
BB BE T B -

2) BB IE-FGE B

2T
2018 2017
20185 20174
358,000,000 368,000,000
= (5,620,890)
358,000,000 362,379,110




V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(cont’d)

40 Supplement to income statement
Expenses are analysed by their nature:

[tem

Operating income
Less: Changes in inventories of finished

Add:

goods

Raw materials and packaging
materials used

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

Financial expenses

Impairment losses

Credit losses

Other expenses

Other income

Investment income

Gains from changes in fair value

Gains/(losses) from asset disposals

B H

E L UN

Do

n

ERmNFEES)

FER YR B2
BR

BT HEE S

WENSHER

M5 ER
BERERKX
ERRERRK
Hi &M

: B e

RE W
N BEZYER

BERERD

40 FBRBERER
HMBERTFOERREE N

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

Operating profit

BT

2018 2017
20185 20174
1,067,584,808 901,041,170
272,111,901 44,508,005
454,070,154 508,276,859
56,215,227 54,795,129
43,543,529 44,433,053
(15,638,419) 20,936,758
2,412,779 36,916,073
2,962,242 =
120,852,496 107,676,441
2,313,133 1,474,788
7,384,819 2,802,323
= 79,304
222,456 (1,622,774)
140,975,307 86,332,493

4 BEHRERBEEITE
(1) W E ft 848 & )% B) 7 B 1)

41 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement
(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities:

B

2018 2017
20185 20174

Proceeds from the lease of buildings EEHEE&HERMEE
and the sales of raw materials W B3R & 5,744,027 5,748,146

Receipts of government grants IEgaR G E Eofrkn

and others 2,913,133 1,878,512
Total CE 8,657,160 7,626,658
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 EHRBEHEERRESEE)

(cont’d)
41 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement 4 BeREREETRE)
(cont’d)
(2) Payments relating to other operating activities: Q) 1T H #t HAE &% B) 7 B 7Y
HE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Payments for period expenses SNWEIBHREER 124,925,040 108,302,828
(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities: (8) U | E fit £ 1 & )% B) A [ 7Y
HE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Receipts of interest income on W B B9 77 5851 B A
deposits 162,730 425,062
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Notes to the Financial Statements

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

42 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

42 RERERMEAER

(1) B mEkibnEr

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities:

[tem

Net profit
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment losses
Credit losses
(Gains)/losses from disposal of
fixed assets
Losses from scrapping of
fixed assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Gains from changes in fair value
Decrease in gross inventories
Decrease/(increase) in operating
receivables
(Decrease)/increase in operating
payables

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

b. Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

HH

e glNE
m: BEEEENE
B AESH
BERERRX
ERREEX
REBTEEEN
(Yegs) /R

BHER

K& W

DR EEEE RS

FEHRD

R EIOR B K
B/ (Em)

REHRNERDN
(R), /0

REFHELNRERE
e

HH

RekReEEYN
FRBE
B RE kR FEYN
FHERR

a. #FENEHASLEED
BERE

2018 2017
2018 20174
137,335,846 86,425,223
41,043,334 41,265,151
2,500,195 3,167,902
2,412,779 36,916,073
2,962,242 =
(222,456) 1,522,774
2,507,399 =
(6,054,931) 13,174,671
(7,384,819) (2,802,323)
= (79,304)
274,401,969 42,007,230
45,517,280  (88,280,459)
(47,454,589) 2,439,099
447,564,249 135,756,037

b. RERREERMIE

R -

ReRBESEWFEM/

OB )8

2018 2017
2018 20174
378,686,607 79,398,474
79,398,474 110,178,784
299,288,133  (30,780,310)
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

42 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(cont’d)

(2) Information on disposal of a subsidiary during the year:

Consideration for disposal of a
subsidiary

Cash or cash equivalents received
for disposal of the subsidiary
Less: Cash or cash equivalents
held by the subsidiary

Net cash received for the disposal
of a subsidiary

(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand

Including: Cash on hand
Bank deposits available

on demand

Closing balance of cash and
cash equivalents

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

42 BERBREBIFR (F)

(2) BEE T4 FlEE1 =8

2018 2017
2018%F 20174
BETARIRNEIE
= 84,800,000
BEFAFIWER
REMRSZEED 40,280,000 44,520,000
B TRARFERIREH
HEeFEY - 75,301
BEFATIXAE
I 4 %5 40,280,000 44,444,699
(8) B I 2 Z1BYHIIEHK
2018 2017
IHE 20184 20174
B 378,686,607 79,398,474
Hep o BEFRE 102,994 127,396
AT e B A S 5T |9
RITERK 378,583,613 79,271,078
ERBERIBESH
EYersE 378,686,607 79,398,474

232  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLD T



Vi
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Change of consolidation scope

Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposal of investments in subsidiaries through a single
transaction resulting in loss of control

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

N SftEERERE

BETRA
BEREEHF AR E IR

Difference Investment
between income or loss
consideration transferred
received and from other
the related  comprehensive

share of net income
assets in related to
Basis for consolidated previous equity
Shareholding  Shareholding Date of losing determining date financial  investments in
Entity name being disposed being disposed Disposal method control of losing control statements subsidiaries
(%)
EERRHRE
REHENAH HETLARE
HEBEEDE REEANEM
B ARTLRRE GREREAR
Rfi%# REEERR  REEERD REAESS  REDVENER  BROREGE EREMER  HRENEN
(%)
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. 84,800,000 100% Transfer 21 December 2017 Industrial and (2,916,477) =
EMZEHRAHERAR LE 2017512A218 commercia
registration of
changes

On 21 December 2017, the Group disposed 100% equity
interest in Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. for a total
consideration of RMB84,800,000. Upon completion of the
disposal, Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group.

MR20175E128218 » NEBE A EH
&84,800,0007T {1 & FTiF A KB M %
BRI R F R A F100%[ & -
REETRE - BINLER R SR
ERABTHBEALEEZTAA °
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

VIl Interests in other entities +t EHtEREPHES
Interests in subsidiaries EF AT FHRERE
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment (1) BiBR TR EZE 7 B 1Z BT
2 A]
Closing balance

of other Group
items that in share- Group

Place of substance form ~ holding voting rights
Registration Registered- Year-end actual net investment percentage percentage Consolidated  Organisation
Full name  Type and operation Business nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
EiLundT SERR SExM
MR ATEREN i) i) &E
20 L ERME  RERE ifEs #EEE EXRRHEE RMRRRE (%) () Ri#E HABRRE
Baishui Ancre  Company Limited Shaanxi, PRC~ Manufactre ~ USD17,125,000 Manufacture of juice, frut and  USD17,125,000 - 100% 100% Y 732664478
Juice Co,  (Sino-foreign and sele of vegetable beverage, and
Ltd. joint venture) condensed juice related products, and ron
packaging; and sale of own
products
BARENR FRAMAR MEREE  RERMEE  11500ET AEREARE REK 171500%T - 0% 100 B 130664478
WrERAT (Poak) it HRERERAESRAR
0 HEEREn -
Yantai Longkou Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufactre ~ USD12,235,000  Manufacture of juice and sale  USD12,235,000 - 100% 100% Y 787209715
Andre Juice  (Sino-foreign and sale of of own products
Co, Ltd. ~oint venture) condensed juice
MeRNZEN AREADR  WEUFE  BARME  0500ET LERET UEEAE  120500ET - f0% 100 B 191209715
FHMER (PoaR) it Ene
A7
Xuzhou Ancre  Company Limited Jiangsu, PRC~ Manufactre ~ USD10,000,000  Manufacture of juice, it~ USD10,000,000 - 100% 100% Yo 743134253
Juice Co,  (Sino-foreign and sale of and vegetable beverage,
Ltd, joint venture) condensed juice and related products; sale
of own products; and
manufacture of ron barrel
for juice outer packaging
CHZERR AREFAR  WELEE  RARMEE  1000000ET ERET HHREAE  10000000%% - 0% 100% B 4313453
BrERAR  (RaE) it m HEEEED iR
Bt asas -
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

+t ERMERPHERGE)

EFATPHER(H)
(1) BERTHREFL ARFHF

percentage percentage Consolidated  Organisation

(%) (YIN) code

it &
(%) &iE% EREURE

00% Y =
00% = =
00% Y =
00% = =
00% Y 959942487
00% 7 950040487

(cont’d) NE] ()
Closing balance
of other Group
items that in share- Group
Place of substance form ~ holding voting rights
Registration Registered- Year-end actual net investment
Full name  Type and operation Business nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%)
EiLundT SERR SExM
MR ATEREN i)
20 L ERME  RERE ifEs #EEE EXRRHEE RMRRRE (%)
Andre Juce  Company Limited Briish Virgn -~ Investment USD50,000  Investment holding USD1 = 100% 1
Co., Ltd. [slands holding
ZEHRT ERAAAA  RBERARR RARK 000ET RERR 1% - 0%
BRAR
North Andre ~ Company Limted The United  Sale of condensed  USD1,900,000 Sale of condensed juice USD1,900,000 - 100% 1
Juice (USA) States of juice
Inc. America
EhRENR ARARAD XA RERTHE  1O000ET RERTEE 1 900000%7T -0
(ZE)RN
BRAR
Dalian Andre -~ Company Limited Liaoning, PRC~ Manufacture ~ RMBB0,000,000 Manufacture and sale of al - RMBB0,000,000 = 100% 1
Juice Co,, and sale of kinds of frutt and vegetable
Ltd. condensed juice beverage; biological
comprehensive Utization of
apple essence, vegetable
and pomace; and purchase
of agricultural and sideling
products (excluding grain);
and manufacture of iron
packaging; imports and
exports of goods and
technology.
REZENR RRAMAR EREE  RARIEE 80000000 EEHELERAAE 80,000,000 -
WHARAA e NRET  BRER AR RENE NRET
WratlR - REER(RE
BR)WE - #easas
i SR
B N\EER
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

(cont’d)
Place of
Registration Registered- Year-end actual
Full name  Type and operation  Business nature capital Business scope investment
MR
20 L ERME  RERE ifEs #EEE EXERLER
“Binzhou Andre Gompany Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture ~ USD12,100,000  Manufacture of beverage, high  USD12,100,000
Juice Co.,,  (Sino-foreign and sale of natural apple essence, and
Ltd. joint venture) condensed juice iron packaging; biological
comprehensive utization
of pomace, and other
extended products; winter
jujube storage; sale of own
products.
ENZENR ARERDT  RELRE  REETEE  I0000FT LERE BRRAEER 1210000051
AR (ReE) it 8 BEAEn  RE
Rl E%a%éﬂﬁ&%wﬂ@
i AREH - HERLT
ERe
Yantai Andre  Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture and ~ USDA,832,000  Manufacture and processing  USD4,832,000
Juice Co.,,  (Sino-foreign sale of fuit pulp of all kinds of fuit pulp and
Ltd. joint venture) related products, and sale
of own products; wholesale
and import and export of
juice and pulp
fazEliR AREFAT HELRE  RRUEREE  48000ET 4B NISEARRRRE 483200057
THRER  (PaE) flEm - WHERERn -
R SREDT Rk
fEtnER -
* Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd was disposed in December 2017, and *

was not included in the scope of consolidated financial statements
since then.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HTZERRTBRHERA A

+t ERMERPHERGE)

EFARPHERE(E)
(1) BBRLHREE S N RFHF
] (&)
Closing balance
of other Group
items that in share- Group
substance form ~ holding voting rights
net investment  percentage  percentage Consolidated Organisation
in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
EiLundT SERR SExM
ATEREN i) i) &E
RRRRE (%) () Ri#E HABRRE
- 100% 100% Y 151757338
- 100% 100% & 151757338
- 100% 100% Y 73066788-6
= 100% 100% & 130667886
BN ZENRAFH B R AT R2017F12

ARE  REERTBHAGHERE -



VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not

under common control

Place of

Registration Registered
Full name  Type and operation  Business nature capital

#MR

20 L ERME  RERE s

Yongj Ancte  Company Limted Shanxi, PRC~ Producion 1SD12,960,000
Juice Co.,,  (Sino-foreign and sale of
Ltd, joint venture) condensed juice

KEREMR RREMARA MEWAE  RERMEE  12060000%T
HrERAT (PoaE) it

Anyue Andre - Company Limited  Sichuan, PRC Production RMB50,000,000
Lemon and sale of
Industry condensed juice
Technology
Co,, Ltd.

RERENRE ARAANA  tEDNE  R4RteE 50,000,000
ExHAR it ARET
27l

Liquan Yitong  Company Limited Shaandi, PRC  Production RMB100,000,000
Juice Co., and sele of
Ltd, condensed juice

ERRARAT AREEAR  DEDEE  RERIEE 100000000
ARA it AR¥T
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+t ERMERPHERGE)

EFARPHERE(E)
(2) FER—1#EH TR F & GFRIFH)F
A=)
Closing balance
of other Group
items that in share- Group
substance form ~ holding voting rights

Year-end actual net investment
investment in a subsidiary
REL#RaT
DFBREN
KHERRE

Business scope

#ERE FXRRLRE

Manufacture and sl of frit - USD12,960,000 =
and vegetable Juice and
Deverage, high natural apple
gssence, and biological
comprehensive Utization of
pomace

E HERRRAT
#H - BERMERER
FRNEMFAAR -

12960,000%T0 -

Manufacture and sale of
lemon juice, orange juice,
lemon o, orange o, lemon
£55ence, Orange essence
and pomace

SErERET BT
s B BEER
B R85

RMB530,000,000 =

50,000,000 =

ARHR

Manufacture and sale of fruit - RMB100,000,000 -
and vegetable Juice and

Deverage
FE BERERET 100,000,000 =
5 o ARET

percentage percentage Consolidated

(%) (o) (YN
KRR SERAN

/N & N
(%) () ei#R
0% 100% Y
0% 100% =
0% 100% Y
0% 100% =
0% 100% Y
0% 100% =

Organisation
code

ELE LI

79638415-X

79638415-X

569715%-9

56971696-9

586962759

56696275-9
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments I\ H&RT AERRY RS
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use AEBEAREHTEEGSESHT
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s BERE » TEaE

operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk - ERREE

- Liquidity risk - mENIEE PR

— Interest rate risk - PR

— Foreign currency risk - EXEE

— Other price risk - HEMmMERRRE

The following mainly presents information about the Group’s TXEEsmiall EutERg A &EFK
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their RENRERFEENE L « BERE
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies B EHEZE - BERMERFUAMGTZERERA
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their FAEAREFERFHEANE(LE o

changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between AEBKERREEN R IESERAR
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments Mz BESEE R FE - kB
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial 1K & = e 35 2N £ (B B 75 S AR A9 T A
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance. FE HNZEREIERE »r KNEFH
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management 2 &I 7F B b B IR BUSE DA 3 B A0 A AN
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced SEEERER @ ZTEEE /R
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and A] 32 27K S 5% 51 48 FE B A 3B | 52
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management FF AEEZEARSERRRKFE - &
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes SEerHENEEREEERRR X
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal BREARNEIEH Z4 - DUEEMSIER
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and s AREBKLEEHNE - KREBR
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures. A 2P 25T 20 Pt 7E HA Bk BE # i 25 (A 2
EHIZFRAITRE KA R E R
% o
(1) Credit risk (1) EARE
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument ERER  EESBMIAN—7F
will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing TEEBITER @ ERKS — %4
to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is FEEANER - AEBEMEA
primarily attributable to cash at bank and receivables, Rl ERAEKE S MEKE
etc. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by RE BEESE ST L=
management on an ongoing basis. RO o
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I\ BEeRT R4ERMaY S ()

VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) EREK(E)

The Group generally invests only in securities (excluding
long-term strategic investments) and trust products with
active markets and trades in good credit. In view of this,
the management of the group does not expect that the
counterparty will not perform its obligations.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions may
default and cause losses to the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet. The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Accounts receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, 26% (31 December 2017: 55%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the five largest customers of
the Group. In addition, the debtors of the Group that
are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

AEE-—RASKRERBERD
BES(RERERERINM
SREEMER  MAXZHITH
ERARRL - ERL - ARE
EEEYTERRZE T EE
BITET °

AEERBRENINEBESE
ZEHREARIOS BEE
EEERRETFEEANER
R - BHTERASHTENM
MR ANREERIER ©

LR B P A SR B OKAE R LR R
NOREERBRTEHESREE
MERETE -  ANREREGRHET
A g NEBARE R RERS
iR -

JEYER L
AEBEARREZERZEMAE
FERBFENZE MIERF
FREMIT B RFE - Bt
EAEARBREFNBERLEZR
BEASEEGFEEENEFEMNER
FEURBREZR - 72018512 A31H &
2017128318  AEBE/AI R
RE P e R 3L 78 5 B pE Uk
BRARMREE D R 526% ~ 55% : It
AN o N5 B R i HR R OB (B D B
IR EE BT HII HIE AR
BHWREZEF RN -
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VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)
Accounts receivable (cont’d)

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under which
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
to determine the credit limit and terms applicable to the
customers. These evaluations focus on the customers’
financial position, the external ratings of the customers
and their bank credit records where available. Due dates
of receivables vary from 15-240 days from the day of
issue. Debtors with balances that past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

(@) Credit risk exposure and expected credit loss

assessment

The group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

group’s different customer bases.
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VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)
Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(@) Credit risk exposure and expected credit loss
assessment (cont’d)
The following table provides information about the
group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018:

31 December 2018 B ZE2018F12H31H
Current (not past due) AR Ef

1-30 days past due BHIBOR A

31-60 days past due #EI315]60K

More than 61 days past due #EI61RIA L

Total =k

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

N

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

HempT RHEMA R ()
(1) SRR E)
JEY AR (#E)
(@) ERRER A RIEH{EREX
Al (48)
NERYR T H£20184 12 A 31
B AEEREKEZRNERAR
Bt O &% 78 HA{E AR R RO 1B
Year-end
gross Year-end
Expected carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance

% %

EHRRE MREERE W EER

0.81% 144,034,492 1,162,479

6% 21,427,783 1,285,667

26% 10,133,469 2,634,702
100.00% 2,945,657 2,945,656

178,541,401 8,028,504

BHBRREENBENERE
RBXAERAE  AREBEES
RS RGBSR - B
A ) A TR 5 B 7 = 8L P 58
IR FER AN BRI =
BEZENERETHE -
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ He&mpT AHERAY RS ()

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) EREK(E)

Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(b) Movement in the loss allowance account is as

FERFER (48)
(b) RAEE S

follows:
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185 20174
Ageing ARER 12A31H 12H31H
Balance under the original financial B4 gt T B8 N H &858
instruments standards 5,066,262 2,553,740
Impact on initial application of the B X#ITHI & A T A%ER|A
new financial instrument standards AL & - =
Adjusted balance at the beginning  FAE& N FEVIHEE
of the year 5,066,262 2,553,740
Reversals during the year which VAR [EAZ S AN S 8 o)
was written-off in previous years - 976,307
Written-off during the year NEZIH = -
Reversals during the year ARFEEE - (976,307)
Additions during the year REFHE 2,962,242 2,512,522
Balance at the end of the year =0 8,028,504 5,066,262
(2) Liquidity risk (2) REIMERE R

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

242  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ He&mpT AHERAY RS ()

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d) (2) BN B ()
The following tables set out the remaining contractual rEEREERBERENEREA
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s BiRATENERE S EE(BE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual cash EARFIR(NRZF B8 FI = BIi%
flows (including interest payments computed using 12831 BMIRITH R )G E R F
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current E)RNRIGE QHRE - LAREEK
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group YRHEFERENT :

can be required to pay:

2018 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

WIBERARMERALTE
More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or on less than less than More than balance
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  sheet date
15£R8 HEAR
Item R ERfEE 1552% 25 F55 5L &t =EERE
Financal liabilties ERER
Short-term loans e 50,884,065 = = - 50,884,065 50,000,000
Bills and accounts ERZER
payable IR 38,189,494 - - - 38,180,494 38,189,494
Other payables EfERIF 17,882,208 = = - 17882203 17,882,203
Long-term payables REERT 90,000 90,000 629,840 1,111,000 1,920,840 1,687,458
Total &t 107,045,762 90,000 629,840 1,111,000 108,876,602 107,759,155
2017 Contractual undiscounted cash flow
WITERTTRNEAREE
More than More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or on less than less than More than balance
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total Sheet date
155 BERR
ltem BB EREE 1EZF 2FR5E SEME ai  REEEE
Financial liabilties EHAE
Short-term loans RHER 172,284,427 - - - 172,284427 170,000,000
Bills and accounts ERZER
payable FE(TERR 86,369,615 - - - 86360615 86,369,615
Other payables HfERIF 11,802,159 - - - 11802159 11,802,159
Long-term payables RBERR - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 840,584
Total s 270,456,201 - - 1,111,000 271,567,201 269,012,358
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(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(@) As at 31 December, the Group held the following

interest-bearing financial instruments:

Fixed rate instruments:

ltem R
Financial liabilities TRAR

- Short-term loans ~BHfE R
Total At

Variable rate instruments:

Item B

Financial assets SREE
- Cash at bank ~$iER

Bl &t T RAERRAYE PR (1)

(3) Fl==J=psx

Bl EMEMFBNENE ST B
TASRIEAKEEEERAEBE
MEEBREBEERENRRAR -
AREBERBEMHRRAORE B E
MEREFENH R T A - A
BATHEHNEERERESN
BEMIBMNETAES - K&
B R IADT A & B T B S A =X
[\ o

(a) AEER 12831 HiFHEIETE
EHITAMT

BEEFIFE&MTA :
2018 2017
20185 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
f {45 &f BRI x|
4.35% ~ 4.44% (50,000,000) 4.35% ~ 4.39% (170,000,000)
(50,000,000) (170,000,000)
FRFESMTIA :
2018 2017
2018% 2017%
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
EflE &f % Ex ]
0.01% ~ 0.30%
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VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s equity and net profit by RMB 1,419,689 (2017:
RMB297,267).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
impact on the net profit and equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and payable, short-term loans and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I\ BEeRT R4ERMaY S ()

(8) =@M (&)

(b) SRNES T
MR2018F 12 A31H » EHEM
BETEHNBERT - BEF X
EASOEER S B AER
[ B A 2 A ARG N A R
1,419,6897C (20174 : #ANA
R #0297 2677T) °

HRNEBERBRAFANEAR
SEEER R BENXRREN
TRTHE - EASRESTH
HEMBERRERNRZER
BREEERBERANEREZLE
'''''' HE) - WA RE Ft S R
TEETEMFIEROTE -
HRNEEREREFKAN - &
AEEE RS RENERER
HUFBRIRIEDTAET A - bt
SURME DT B3R R BCR
BRNTER DA RSB
REEGLENMEERIEA
MEE - L—FENITER
R RERFITA

(4) E=mE b
HRTEUAREA I BFHENE
MES - ERFRIEMNENRIE
EHERFIINEEENEE  ©@
EHEEHENREER A&
EerENBEREMBERE I
W DAREIR A5 5 EL B it O #E 45 1E
AR AKE o
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ He&mpT AHERAY RS ()

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

(@) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi,
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date.
Differences resulting from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements and the description of
other exposure items that are excluded.

(4) ERRRE)
(a) N"EER12 A31 B H &N
AEAEEE EXRK D0
T o HRZIREE - RO
SHEUARKEIIR - LWEESR
BEXRBAHERTE - JhEER
RIMEZMABEENRN -

2018 2017
20185 201746
Balance Balance Balance Balance
at foreign at RMB at foreign at RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
" ic
Item Y| SEERE  ARWRH INESE ARWHE
Cash at bank and on hand ~ §#&4
usD Xt 28,372,585 194,726,723 4,571,418 29,870,561
HKD B 851,421 746,015 372,819 311,639

Bills and accounts receivable JEYIZ1E & fEUBR X
usD xT 22,999,288

Bills and accounts payable  FERZiE K ERMERR
UshD ETT (1,054,866)

157,848,717 26,585,660 173,716,019

(7,239,756) (745,120) (4,868,766)

Net balance sheet exposure ZE B BRI D F 58
usD ETT 50,317,007
HKD ot 851,421

345,335,684 30,411,958 198,717,814
746,015 372,819 311,639
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VIl Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ He&mpT AHERAY RS ()

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (4) EXmEk(E)
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi (b) KB E A A RGN Ay
against foreign currencies applied by the Group: FER MR -
Reporting date
Average rate mid-spot rate
FHEE & ARRESE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018% 20174 20185 20175
HKD Pt 0.8561 0.8652 0.8762 0.8359
usb e 6.6987 6.7356 6.8632 6.5342
(c) Sensitivity analysis (c) BBESIT
Assuming all other risk variables remained constant, 12 TE Bk B 2= DA S i) L At [ ez 58
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US ENE - AEEMN12A31H
dollar and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would A R 8 32 T RN A Y B S g
have decreased the Group’s equity and net profit by B A R¥EEFES5% 158 BUR
the amount shown below, whose effect is in Renminbi B AF A AR A 1B S 1A
and translated using the spot rate at the year-end T o B REEAGERBR
date. HEXITE R ARKIIR -
Equity Net profit
BERER BFE
As at 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H
UsbD ETT 12,950,088 12,950,088
HKD B 27,976 27,976
Total &t 12,978,064 12,978,064
As at 31 December 2017 2017%12H318
usD ETT 7,451,918 7,451,918
HKD poa s 11,686 11,686
Total At 7,463,604 7,463,604

—Z=—\&E£3{ Annual Report 2018 247



Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

VIlI Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)
A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US dollar
and Hong Kong dollar at 31 December would have
had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.
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IX Fair value disclosure

The following information presents the fair value information
and the fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current
reporting period, of the Group’s assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date on a
recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which fair value
measurement is categorised is determined by the level of the
fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined

as follows:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets that are observable at the
measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities;

inputs other than Level 1 inputs
that are either directly or indirectly
observable for underlying assets or
liabilities;

inputs that are unobservable for
underlying assets or liabilities.

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value at the end of the year
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
is no financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 on the Group’s ownership.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

LRREMEE

NTRASEESEEERBERAR
BNFEREARABEAENEEN
BERABRERRNAABEEER
HERABEENER - AAEBER
RBRFTEERBURNE QA BER
EMEABEREEMNREERX

&
i

T

F—ERWAE: 5= HEHI
FHMEEEEK
BEEERTS
bR AR B B R
=

E_EBRBAE: BRE-—BR@A
BEIBRRAEE
BEEENEE
AN AE:
FEZERBAE: HAEEHBEE
CORINEIE:ZE=-3 TN
& -

1 AREETE

M2018%12 A31H k20174124
318  AEBTHEURAERE
AENERMTA -

2 HtEMITANAREBE(ERE
RNAREBESENER)
201812 H31 H K%2017412H
318 ' AEERETHEENS
BEENEFEEAEEREARBELZ
ﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁ°
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

X Related parties and related party transactions + RABAREABRES

1 Ultimate holding party of the Company
The ultimate holding party of the Company are Mr. Wang

An and Ms. Wang Meng.

1 AATNRKRESHER
RABHRRIEGE T BEEARAAT
RHEAEMERHELZL o

2 Information about the subsidiaries of the Company 2 AEQATWFATER

For information about the subsidiaries of the Company,

refer to Note VII.

3 Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties

RmBs 28

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEEBRAR

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
S—rE(RE)REERAR

Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
BNG—ERRAAF

Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
KBH—rERRBERLA

Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.
WEESELENERNERAT

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
MezENEtEREERAR

Yantai Andre Property Management Co., Ltd.
WERENNRERERAT

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
MazEHRBRAERAR

Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd.
BaTRATERAA

Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
BREBRNERAF

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
HeERATERAR

Yantai Hengda Cement Co., Ltd.
MaFEIRRRLA

Yantai Hengli Contrete LLC.

BaZz hERTEREALH

Yantai Xinping Jian'an Co., Ltd.

e TRz IRER A

Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)
ReBRZREDL(BRER)

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

ARATMFRAEMERS M
Ht o

3 HAEHALRER

Related party relationship
B RE

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HAREEREAZENEE()

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)

HAREEREAZENEE()

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

SR—ERMERR AN FAA

A subsidiary of the President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

B—ERMERR AN FAA

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

X R R %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

EhesaS et pel 0k 3

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RXREEH R %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RX R TR %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RX R TR %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RX KRR TR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RX KRR TR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RXREEH TR E

Under significant influence of the same ultimate holding company

REEEHREAZENDE

Under control of a close family member of the Company’s key
management personnel

REEHTAEENREK S EHNAE

Under control of the Company’s key management personnel

TEEERERASEHINME

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

AR EREHI AR E

Under control of the same ultimate holding company
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3

Information on other related parties (cont’d)

Name of other related parties

il )k )

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited

Yantai Andre holiday Hotel Plaza Limited

BazENEREEERA

Yantai Andre construction and Installation Engineering
Company Limited

MezEHEERETRER AT

Kunlong Spring Resort Ltd

HeERRxERAR

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Mitsui Foods Inc.

Mitsui Foods Inc.

Bussan Food Materials Co., Ltd.

Bussan Food Materials Co., Ltd.

(i) Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant
influence over the Company through their representation
on the board of directors of the Company.

(i) Mitsui & Co., Ltd. owns more than 5% of the shares of the
Company. Mitsui Foods Inc. and Bussan Food Materials
Co., Ltd. are the subsidiaries of Mitsui & Co., Ltd. These
entities are regarded as related parties in accordance with
the Measures for the Administration of Information Disclosure
of Listed Companies promulgated by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out as follows.
Apart from the items disclosed in the Report of the
Directors under the section “Connected Transactions”,
all the material related party transactions disclosed below
did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

+ BELRABZS(E)

3 EftEgE SR (&)

Related party relationship

RIXREEH R %
Under control of the same ultimate holding company
X REEH TR %

Under control of the same ultimate holding company

RIX SR E B AR5

Under control of the same ultimate holding company
RIX SR EHI AR

Own more than 5% of the shares of the Company
HARDFS%A ERDEI R )

Under the control of Mitsui & Co., Ltd

Mitsui & Co., Lt 2] E 1 2 i)

Under the control of Mitsui & Co., Ltd

Mitsui & Co., Lt 2B 2 i)

0 WREEHNEEERADNG 1
E(hE)REARAVRBER
BRANKDAEFRORETE
BRERE - LTYAR AL
BAYE -

(i) Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (ZH¥EK
EHIFBEARRTSRIA LRMD
Mitsui Foods Inc.#1Bussan Food
Materials Co., Ltd.% Bl A H %%
FAA - REPEEFESHMA
(ETRRERREBTEMRE)
WG E RE SRAEE T o

4 BEEIXBER
HZE2018F12A31HIEEE @ &
EEEREH S ETI MR
25  BEBERESSHRE
WIEERS |—&5h - Fre Tt
WEZEABBE AR TEEK
B EmRBIE14ATRTE A TER
RRIER FRIFEMERS °
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Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

X Related parties and related party transactions +
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(1) Related party transactions

RBARABRES ()

4 BBZZER(R)
(1) B 5

The Group The Company
b3 0] . NG|
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
i 20185 20174 20184 20174
Sales of goods and HERmR
service 12k as 66,762,076 81,488,503 83,284,548 100,131,204
Purchases of goods and BERmR
service EELK 18,436,938 18,735,406 438,889,489 419,242 833
Purchases of assets BEEE ) - 1,469,935 280,700 14,718,274
Sales of assets HERE - - 14,450,213 -
Storage incomes BERBRA 336,600 152,477 336,600 152,477
Rental income A& KA (i) 978,220 765,230 642,220 765,230
Advance money received W B BAFIE - - 86,833,523 128,623,954
Fund received BZhES 20,000,000 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Fund returned EEES 20,000,000 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Dividend distribution BRFI D B 25,053,600 12,526,800 25,053,600 12,526,800

(i) The purchases of assets mainly represent the amounts
paid for purchasing equipments from Yantai Andre Pectin
Co. Ltd in 2017.

(i) Rental income represents the rental generated from
leasing part of the Group’s office building located at
889 Xincheng Street, Muping District, Yantai to Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)
(cont’d)

4 BBZZER(R)
2) FBREEABMNFE

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors

MREEABRREEINE
TERAMEERS - FEMNE
HIREEEBIAR - BEAN
SENEENES - HHERE

and supervisors. Remuneration for key management BABWERMT ¢
personnel of the Group is as follows:
The Group x5H
2018 2017
ltem HE 20185 20174
Remuneration of key RA B IE A B IR
management personnel 3,331,561 2,846,992
The Company FaH
2018 2017
ltem IHE 20185 20174
Remuneration of key R EIE A B 3R
management personnel 2,455,324 1,718,596

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017, no emoluments were paid to the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss
of office. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, no fees or any other emoluments
were waived by directors or supervisors.

#HZE2018%12 A31H &2017
F12A31BILEE A& H
NARBWRAEEREES
SRS ATE ARSI E A
NN A RSB SR BE B (E - A
£2018F12 A31H &20174
12A31HIEFE - EFHE
EMEREASHEMBE -
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

X Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties

Bills and accounts receivable-
accounts receivable

Other receivable-dividends
receivable

Other receivables-others

Bills and accounts payable-
accounts payable

Other payables-others

6 Guarantee

R ESE RYL T
— FRMURS

A it YR
— RIS

At G- E ity

ENRIEREMNRR
— R

H it AR —E Aty

(1) The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd.

Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd.

Total
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ER7

IWRZENEE
BRAT

LWRZ BRI EE
BRAE

+ BELRABZS(E)

5 BAMSEWENRE

120,000,000

280,000,000

The Group The Company

%M EY/N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
20184 20174 2018% 20174
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
7,973,345 6,909,230 42,096,010 18,495,485
- - 25,699,658 53,699,658
- 801,363 119,058,112 205,891,635
14,694 3,091,850 5,244,670 10,584,774
- - 441,389,335 207,379,085

6 BEER

(1) REEIERHER,

2018 2017

20185 20174
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BEREEE EREEE
EReE BETEER EresH KLETZE
N N
50,000,000 & 70,000,000 o
Y Y
70,000,000 & 210,000,000 b
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d) 6 PBAEEIER(E)

(2) The Company as a guarantee (2) AR EIERHEEERT

2018 2017

20185 20174
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BREREEFE ERESE
Name of guarantor BRA BRReE BETxE ERredE KRITZEE
Shandong Andre IR EHEE N N
Group Co., Ltd. BRAT] 50,000,000 & 70,000,000 &
Shandong Andre IR ZEHEE Y Y
Group Co., Ltd. BRATA] 70,000,000 & 210,000,000 P

Total Sh 120,000,000 280,000,000
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEEAS) » 2 FEE [ BARET)

Xl

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed
terms of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The balances of related party transactions are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes short-term
loans and long-term payables) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less related-party loans with no fixed repayment
terms and cash and cash equivalents.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2017, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FRIEEAS) » 2 REE [ B ARET)

Xll Commitments and Contingencies +-AEREEESR
1 Significant commitments 1 BEERHEE
(1) Capital commitments (1) B #E
2018 2017
ltem HH 2018% 20174

Signed contracts for acquisition of B IR IETES BT

fixed assets being or to be executed HIETFEEEHRES R 1,670,668 120,000
(2) Operating lease commitments (2) HELHEAE
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, 7R20184F 12 431 H & 20174
the Group and the Company had no non-cancellable 12A31H » AEBERARTA
operating leases. BAEDTAIHENKEEER
# o
2 Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding 2 RRFBHABEANIBEBER
litigations and arbitration and related financial impact Hugsa
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the 2018912 A31H &k2017412A
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from 31H » REERE RIRFATE
outstanding litigations and arbitration. IS AE alE o
3 Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees provided 3 RHMBENRMAEEEREAN
for other entities and related financial impact REEERAEMELE
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the 72018912431 H k2017412
Group did not provide guarantees in respect of the bank 31E - AEERBER/EMENIR
loans of other companies. HEBER -
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

Xl Subsequent events T EERARFTAESER
Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date EEABRAAF B BB RSB
2018
ltem IEH 2018$
Dividends proposed 5 Be B % A 35,800,000
On 22 March 2019, the Board of Directors proposed the EEERN2019F3A22B IRE AR A
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMB0.10 per share AR EE2018EE RS IRF) - %
to the Company’s shareholders for 2018. The proposal is IREEIRAARB0.107T © L IBIRZE M
subject to approval by the shareholders’ general meeting. FREAEHE REEAGBXRARE
Such cash dividends are not recognised as a liability at the HERENIREERITRKEEEEE
balance sheet date. KHERBAE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XIV Other significant items

Segment reporting

The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, and provision
of juice processing services, therefore the Group has not
disclose any further information with respect to reportable
segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income
from external customers is set out as follows:

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

TH EtEESEIR

7B E

AEETIZEE-—KRENHALE -
A EHEREST RAAEER - A
REHFITIMTRY - FAARKER

BRBEZEEDHESR -

AT R—AEBEZREFPEIIRAE:
WA

Geographical location

China

North America

Asia (excluding China)
Europe

Oceania

Africa

South America

Total

&R

F

M

M (R EILASM)
BM

RAEM

FEM

mEM

2018 2017

20184 20174
240,873,341 211,892,298
408,497,782 291,847,730
157,120,674 150,091,833
112,841,327 125,585,508
51,451,203 32,936,028
96,401,274 88,573,670
399,207 114,103
1,067,584,808 901,041,170

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of non-current
assets located overseas is RMB12,806,254 (31 December
2017: RMB291,871).

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, the Group has no customer the operating income from
which is over 10% of the Group’s total operating income.

MR2018F 12 A31H » "EBEEE
INEBNERBDEERTEAAR
# 12,806,254 JL(2017F : AR
291,8717T) °

2018F E K2017FE  EAEFRE

Fa  AEEEFFERE-FFWA
EAREEBKRAI10%TIA ENES -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 E¥ES
2018 2017
ltem IHE 20184 20174
Cash on hand EFRE 67,204 77,410
Deposits with banks RITER 300,915,953 57,455,813
Total AFF 300,983,157 57,533,223

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
are no cash at bank and on hand with restrictions placed

on the Company’s ownership.

2 Bills and accounts receivable

EVERITER o

2 BURBREVRR

M20184%12 A31H k20174124
318 @ KNRARIEREEXER

Notes 2018 2017

ltem IH B i 20185 20174

Bills receivable JE i (1) 6,119,488 6,026,975

Accounts receivable JE L BR TR 2 150,898,112 121,596,500

Total A&t 157,017,600 127,623,475

(1) Bills receivable (1) ERKERER

Classification of bills receivable FEWER D4R

2018 2017

[tem 1EE 20184 20174

Bank acceptance bills IRITHENIES 6,119,488 6,026,975

All of the above bills receivable were due within one year, BREES A —FARE - BR
and were not pledged. WE o

M2018F12HA31H ' EXEWE
AR TSR ) oK Bl HA B M R IR A BR
&5 AARE4,028,5967T ° A
201812 A31H » KRIFFERERE
FIAHIR B1E4EA -

The carrying amount of undue bills receivable that have
been endorsed and derecognized are RMB4,028,596. As
at 31 December 2018, the remaining maturities of the
derecognized bills ranged from 1 to 4 months.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

2 Bills and accounts receivable (cont’d)
(1) Bills receivable (cont’d)

Classification of bills receivable (cont’d)

According to the Bill Law of the People’s Republic of China,
if the acceptance banks of bills receivable that are discounted
or endorsed by the Company refuse to pay the bills, the
bills holders has recourse to the Company. The Board
of Directors believe that the Company had substantially
transferred almost all the risks and rewards of those bills
which have been endorsed and derecognized. Therefore,
the Company derecognized these bills in full.

As at 31 December 2017, there are no undue bills receivable

(with resource) that have been endorsed and derecognized.

(2) Accounts receivable
(@) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows:

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

2 BUREEREWRERR(E)
(1) EWZIR(E)

MR IE S ()
REPEARENMBEREE - @
ZUNCIE eS0T E S IS
SARITEENT - HFEAHAR
REBERE BEFERR Y
RRILEERANEEERE AR
REEE LEB T RERBETH
R R ARE - Fitk - AR F
ERRUIERELRE -

R2017F 128318 * AR E/EE
EEBEE(NEREESR)
A B ZIE -

2) EYERL

(@) EWERFIRET PRI M
T

Customer type X FER
Subsidaries FRA]

Other related parties EH {th BEESE A A
Third parties F=7
Sub-total N

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

2018 2017
20185 20174
41,464,465 17,888,149
631,545 607,336
116,830,606 108,167,277
158,926,616 126,662,762
8,028,504 5,066,262
150,898,112 121,596,500
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
2 Bills and accounts receivable (cont’d)
(2) Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(b) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

2 BUREEREWRERR(E)
2) RN (E)

(o) FEUERFIZERERDATIAT

2018 2017
Ageing BRER 20185 20174
Within 6 months (inclusive) 6 A AR (Z6(EA) 117,492,619 111,254,289
After 6 months but within 1 year 6fE A E1F(E16)

(inclusive) 41,431,384 15,405,410
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEE2F (F24F)

(inclusive) 2,613 3,063
Sub-total aN 158,926,616 126,662,762
Less: Provision for bad and B RERAE

doubtful debts 8,028,504 5,066,262
Total aat 150,898,112 121,596,500

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

(c) Addition, reversal or written-off of provision for bad and

BRi B EUOR TR B AR 1A

Sy e
=1
al= °

(© AMEPAZFEF e - HEO

doubtful debts during the year: AR SHAY SR BR B
2018 2017
20185 20174
Balance under the original financial R&m T AR T AEREE
instruments standard 5,066,262 2,553,740
Impact on initial application of the BRI SR T AZERIA
new financial instruments standards B - =
Adjusted balance at the beginning FRIEHFIRREE
of the year 5,066,262 2,553,740
Reversals during the year which was AR 1% $5 AR 4 88 [E]
written-off in previous years - 976,307
Written-off during the year NEZEH = =
Reversals during the year R0 - (976,307)
Additions during the year REFTR 2,962,242 2,512,522
Balance at the end of the year FRERER 8,028,504 5,066,262

262  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLDF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMBERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
3 Prepayments 3 FEMNAFIE
(1) Prepayments by type are as follows: (1) FEITHIEIZAB RS R AT -
2018 2017
Type 5 2018% 20174
Third parties F=5 28,477 594,527
Less: Provision for bad and RS
doubtful debts - -
Total A&t 28,477 594,527
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: (2) T IBEIRERE SR Z0 T
2018 2017
20185 20174
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Ageing IR 4] E (%) G| e (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive)  1FEAR(E14) 28,477 100% 594,527 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR#EC B TR SRIERERR B 15
prepayments are recognised. FTE o
4 Other receivables 4 HREWER
Notes 2018 2017
ltem HA at 2018% 20174
Dividends receivable JE U A% R 25,699,658 53,699,658
Others HAh (1) 119,294,470 225,253,334
Total A&t 144,994,128 278,952,992
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables (cont’d)
(1) Others

(a) Other receivables analysis by type are as follows:

Type =Rl
Subsidiaries AR
Related parties B2yl
Third parties EF=F
Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad and A EERR A

doubtful debts

Total &5t

(b) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing ARHe

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1EAR(E1F)

After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEE2F (52%F)
(inclusive)

Sub-total INE

Less: Provision for bad and w EAREE

doubtful debts
Total BET

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.
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11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#8)

4 EAEUER(E)
(1) Eft

(@) IHEPBEFIZHLT

2018 2017
20185 20174
119,058,112 205,106,730
= 784,905
236,358 19,361,699
119,294,470 225,253,334
119,294,470 225,253,334
(b) HZERE TR -
2018 2017
20185 20174
119,294,470 225,153,334
= 100,000
119,294,470 205,253,334
119,294,470 225,253,334

ARk B H YR HE R B R R

aEt -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

5 Inventories

(1) Inventories by category are as follows:

Item FEES
Raw materialsand ~ BHE R
packaging materials ~ B5
Finished goods B
Total At

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#)
5 #&
(1) 7EZ4E
2018 2017
20185 20174
Provision for Provision for

impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying

Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
RESE BR%ER RERE RESE KBRS REEE
6,919,067 - 6,919,067 6,497,977 - 6,497,977
96,528,931 (,791,174) 93,737,757 127,456,603 (2,038,055) 125,418,548
103,447,998 (2,791,174) 100,656,824 133,954,580 (2,038,055) 131,916,525

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no
inventories were pledged as security by the Company.

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

2018

[tem
Raw materials and packaging

materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment
of inventories

Total

FRER
RITHE
%
B
Nt

W FERERRE

7201812 A31H K& 20174F
128318 * AR®EE AR
BEROFE -

@) X RE]FREEEER S

-

20184
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FORE EERAME FERIER FREHE
6,497,977 73,521,492 73,100,402 6,919,067
127,456,603 512,365,226 543,292,898 96,528,931
133,954,580 585,886,718 616,393,300 103,447,998
2,038,055 764,492 11,373 2,791,174
131,916,525 585,122,226 616,381,927 100,656,824
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

5 Inventories (cont’d)

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows: (cont’d)

2017

[tem

Raw materials and
packaging materials
Finished goods

Sub-total

Less: Provision for impairment
of inventories

Total

6 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable

Total
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FRER
RHHE
B
B
Nt

W FERERE

B

FFEAIB ETE RN

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#&)
5 FE(&E)
2 XRe]FEZEIER DT
T (&)
20174
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FERE RELME KERDE EREE
7,425,786 69,610,007 70,537,816 6,497,977
122,823,452 490,838,580 486,205,429 127,456,603
130,249,238 560,448,587 556,743,245 133,954,580
- 2,038,055 - 2,038,055
130,249,238 558,410,532 556,743,245 131,916,525
6 HttRBEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
26,349,155 41,289,336
26,349,155 41,289,336




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BATIMEREZEEREHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
7 Long-term equity investments 7 RERERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) REIRERE SR -
follows:
2018 2017

ltem R 20185 20174
Investments in subsidiaries HFRAHRE 465,462,159 465,462,159
Less: Provision for impairment B OREZEE 34,867,415 30,554,482
Total A&t 430,594,744 434,907,677
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, 7R2018F 12 A31H K20174F
the Company recognised impairment provisions of 12A31H » ARAHFRA
RMB34,867,415 and RMB30,554,482, respectively ZELZENESREEREBR
for the long-term equity investment in Anyue Andre ARERERERETIRE
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. = R 1B % 534,867,415 7T &

30,554,4827T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE
(#8)

7 RERERE(R)
2) RERIERE R FEEER D

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

7 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

year are as follows: LT -
2018 2018
Book value of long-term equity investment
RERERERERE
Balance of
provision for Voting
impairment  Shercholding rights Cash
Investment A Inorease/ A Provisionfor attheendof percentage percentage  dividend for
cost  lamary  Decrease 31 December impaiment  the year ) (") the year
SRR WERR GRNERM mENEEG 3%
Inestee fiREn RRAs AR ERED AR WEER  FRBO AREAw) EREMAN)  medd
Cost method-Subsidares HkE-T47
Baishui Andre Juice Co, Lid. ~— AKEEMERTARDE 106010 11063010 110630130 T 44% T 44%
Vanta Lorghou Andre ice ~ RAEOZERZ M
Co, Ltd BRA7 80,622,696  80,622,6% - 80,622,6% T4.41% T4.41%
uzhou Andre dice G
Go, Ltd BRA7 58,645,418 58,645,418 - 56645418 T5% 15%
Andre Juice Co, Li. REHRTARAT 8 § - § 100% 100%
Dalan Andre Juie Co, Lt REFENRETERDT 56,000,000 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 0% 0%
Vanta Andre Juice Co, Lt AeZEHRrERAT 30000000 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 5% 5%
Yongj Andre Juice Co, Ltd. AEREHRA AR TTAR0T 7443007 - TI007 5% T5%
Anyue Ancre Lemon sty 7
Technology Co, Lt ‘ 52,120,000 52,120,000 - 52120000 4312983 34867415 100% 100%
Tod &it 465,462,159 465,462,159 - 465462159 4312933 3 f6T 415
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B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

financial statements (cont’d)

7 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)

2017

Investeg

Cost method-subsidaries
Baishui Andre Juiog Co., Ltd.

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co,, Ld.

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid.
Andre Juice Co,, Ltd.
Dalan Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Vanta Andre Juice Co, Lt

Yongji Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry
Technology Co, Lid.

Totd

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

(B 15 BlERE )

(#8)

7

REBRERE(E)

P REREBARET)

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

2) RERIERE R FEEER D

WrEaw c(48)

20174
Book value of long-term equity investment
RRERAEARE
Balance of
provison for
impaimentat  Sraing
vestment A Increase/ A Proisonfor theendofthe  peventae
of 1 Januay Decrease 31 December —— impaiment Jear M
RHREE
REHR  NEER  LhRl
RAED HENA MR 589  0RYR HEER  FREE )
WAE-1A7
EM HRATERA 110600130 11063010 110,630,130 = - A%
NZEMRTAHERLT 80626% 8062269 80,622,6% - - T4I%
%J‘(‘\!@W%?‘I%\}fﬁﬁ&ﬂﬂ 58645418 BB4541B 56,645,418 = = 1%
REHRTRRAT 8 8 8 - - 100%
REREHRAARAT 56000000 56000000 56,000,000 - - 10%
ENRENRIARERDT 10700488 107803488  (107,808489) = = =
RRZENRIAHERDT 30000000 30000000 30,000,000 = = 1%
KEREHRAIARAD  7a3000  TTAL307 17443907 = = 1%
REREHREERHRERAT
52,120,000 52,120,000 52120000 (27,601,535)  (30,554,462) 100%
&it 573,305,647  S73.300,647 (107,898,466 465,462,150 (27,601,535)  (30,554,462)

The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out

in note VII.1.

ARRTFRABRMARELES

e+ -~ 1

Voting
rights
percentage
)
EfiREE
TEy A
fil

T444%
T411%
7%
100%
10%

15%
7%

100%

Cash
clvidend for
{he year

LS8
Gl

84,000,000

84,000,000

12

\\
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BF 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BS9S] - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Fixed assets

(1) Details of fixed assets

Item

Cost
At 1 January 2017
Additions during the year
- Purchases

- Transfers from construction in progress

- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals

- Offset government grants against the

book value
At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
- Purchases
- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
- Internal transfer

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017
Additions during the year

- Charge for the year
- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
- Charge for the year

- Internal transfer

Reductions during the year

- Disposals
- Internal transfer

At 31 December 2018

Provision for impairment
At 1 January 2018

At 31 December 2018

Garrying amounts
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#)
8 EEEE
(1) BEZERBR
Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BER BARGER
1 B BERG Rt 61 At
R
%0%71%;)%15 121,357,616 136,280,168 5,994,175 3178232 266,810,191
)
Gl
-EZ - 3,985,235 93,010 - 4,078,245
~ERIEEA 3,537,478 - - - 3537478
— AR - 53104614 537,620 - 53,642,134
RERD
“BE - (75,000) (97,220) (209,773) (381,999)
- B RARE
- (525,000) - - (525,000)
20175127318 124805004 192,770,017 6,527,485 2968459 327,161,055
ggg%gma 124,805,004 192,770,017 6,527,485 2968450 327,161,055
£
B
-BE - - 219,799 1,209,461 1,429,260
1(?3%]&;% - 672,215 27% - 675,010
i
“RE_ - - (76,840) (752,196) (820,030)
LR - (53,590,879) (824,699) - (54415578
WEFRASE ARSI 5SSO 45T Z4mT
ZihE
%)mma (34441380  (71343996) (4889522 (2,770,333  (113445239)
£
B
—RNER (2482124 (5,169,399 (154,136) [3714)  (7,829,367)
zk—mﬁﬁsﬂﬁé - (38500,119) (423,741) - (38,923,860)
o
-RE - 67,500 87,502 188,796 343,668
MPERGIE @GS (G0N  B9EN)  RES) (50854572
%1%1)%15 (36923506  (114946008)  (5379.807) (2,605,251  (159,.854572)
£
B
~RER (2618,667) (4,792,735 (424,160) (143764)  (7,979,326)
—MElER - (391,795) (2,519) = (394,310)
KERD
“RE_ = - 69,156 676,976 746,132
UL R - 30274805 690,560 - 39,965,365
WEFRASE  (05RM @51 YT 0l (78611
TEER
201851 A1A - (480,787) - - (480,787)
wieFRANE o e T . eoTsn
L
20185128318 85352921 58,514,833 801,774 1353685 146,023213
20175128318 87071588 77,343,222 1,147,678 363208 166,825,696

REEFZEFRTROBRAF



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMBERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
8 Fixed assets (cont’d) 8 BEEEE(H)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont’d) (1) BlEEERL(E)
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, R2018F 12 H31 H &20174F
no fixed assets were with restrictions placed on the 12HA318 * KRQRIEFTAE
Company’s ownership. ZEIRGEEEE °
(2) Temporarily idle fixed assets (2) EHFEERETEEEIBL
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the 7K2018F 12 31 H k20174
Company’s temporarily idle fixed assets are as follows: 12HA318 » "2al A TEE

BEEERHE -

Accumulated Provision for Carrying

Cost depreciation  impairment amount

Item AR IRERE REHAE iw E R IRERE
Preserved fruit production line ~ RBEER 1,249,834 (644,064) (480,787) 124,983

(3) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(4) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the fixed
assets leased out by the Company under operating
leases was RMB14,662,125 (2017: RMB17,751,317),
which include office buildings located in Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai.

(5) Fixed assets pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
no fixed assets were with pending certificates of
ownership.

(8) BAMEHEHAANETEE
1B
72018412 A31 H & 20174
12A31H A" rlEEMR
ERANETEE °

(4) BBACETHE A B E & E
MR2018F 12 A31H + AR
AERCERERALENE
EEERAEEARARE
14,662,12570(20174 : AR
#17,751,81770) + EE 2
MR & i 22 T 487 B [ /O 9
NI

(65) R ZEEFEEZLNETEE
=0
R2018% 12 A31H k20174
12A318 * "RAERMZ
EEZENETEERBNR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMBERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d)

9 Intangible assets

(#8)
9 EIEE

Land use rights

ltem HE TihfE g
Cost RERE
At 1 January, 31 December 2017 and 2017F1H18 +12A318 X
31 December 2018 2018%12/431A 40,8_97,2?2
Accumulated amortization RETHEE
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1 A (8,628,781)
Charge for the year REFHE (994,284)
At 31 December 2017 2017#12/318 ( 96_23,0_65)
At 1 January 2018 201841 A1H (9,623,065)
Charge for the year REETR (994,284)
At 31 December 2018 2018%12/431@4 (10,617,349)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 30,279,883
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 31,274,167

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all of
the Company’s land use rights are on medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Company has no intangible assets used as mortgage
for bank loans.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the

Company did not have land use rights with pending
certificates of ownership.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

10 Deferred tax assets

(1)

@

(3

Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem IEH

Deductible tax losses AIHE I 1B

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note I11.23, the Company has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB41,567,922 (2017: RMB46,088,894) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the Company.
The deductible tax losses can be deducted from future
taxable income within 5 years from the year when such
losses were incurred under current tax law.

Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognized
deferred tax assets

Year Fip

2022 20224

11 Short-term loans

ltem TEH
Credit loans =AfER
Guaranteed loans IRFBIEFR

Total

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Company did not have short-term loans past due.

(#8)
10 BEMSHEE

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(1) REEZAEAL T35 A A

2018 2017
20185 20174
41,567,922 46,088,894

(2) IBBHI = 23 E M & st

BE - ARARBNRRARE
ERRAREHNERERNR

RERFE -

ESJL AN S

AR 41,567,92270(2017
F: AR¥46,088,894 7T ) &)
ZE AR BEERRELEMS
MEE - REBERITRE @ Bl
AENBERREFER @ 7
VATE A~ 68 38 5 4F /9 B Al R 48 40
RIRFERLFE o

(3) A IEFELATIFHEER ATHA

HIE 18 9 2B 157
2018 2017
20185 20174
41,567,922 46,088,894

1" EHER

2018 2017
20185 20174
= 100,000,000
50,000,000 70,000,000
50,000,000 170,000,000

M2018%12 A31H k20174124
318 » AARIEEEHKREEZED

B3 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BATIMEREZEEREHEE

financial statements (cont’d)

12 Bills and accounts payable
(1) Accounts payable by supplier type are as follows:

Supplier type HEEEE R
Subsidiaries FEF R E]
Related parties JE A< EL A BB A 7
Third parties ERE=7

Total A&t

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on
the date of receipt of goods, is as follows:

Ageing AR S

Within 1 year(inclusive) 1FELUAR(E1F)
Over 1 year 1FA E

Total Xl

274 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLD T

(#8)

12 ENRBREMIRRK

(1) FETERFA IR B B AR 551 T 20

T
2018 2017
20185 20174
5,244,670 9,380,053
= 1,204,721
12,523,411 25,003,392
17,768,081 35,588,166

2) BRI ZIKE B B2 51695

B -
2018 2017
20185 20174
17,117,990 33,050,538
650,091 2,537,628
17,768,081 35,588,166
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMBERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
13 Employee benefits payable 13 FESHS T 5 Bp
(1) Employee benefits payable: (1) JERTB T35
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during the during the 31 December
2018 year year 2018
20184 20184

1R1B &8 EERm FERY 12A31HREH

Short-term employee benefits 5 %A 2,674,709 14,903,010 14,210,436 3,367,283
Post-employment benefits B2 R

- defined contribution plans ~ — R E R 2 - 1,413,359 1,413,359 =

Total A&t 2,674,709 16,316,369 15,623,795 3,367,283

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during the during the 31 December

2017 year year 2017

20174 20174

1 B1B5%E AELN AERD  12A31B4F

Short-term employee benefits & Hi 2,927,239 13,518,875 18,771,405 2,674,709
Post-employment benefits BRA R

~ defined contribution plans  — R ERRFATE - 1,408,930 1,408,930 -
Total =) 2,927,239 14,927,805 15,180,335 2,674,709
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5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

13 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(2) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, 1% #%%-
allowances EREA AR
Staff bonus and welfare fund B T2 RAEFIES
Social insurance HERBRE
Medical insurance BERRE
Work-related injury insurance ~ T/8{R& 2
Maternity insurance EERRE
Housing fund FRARS
Labour union fee, staffand L& B
workers’ education fee BIYELE
Total At
Salaries, bonuses, I% %% -
allowances SRR ANAEEY
Staff bonus and welfare fund BT REI KEFES
Social insurance HeRRE
Medical insurance BERRE
Work-related injury insurance ~ LI{RK &
Maternity insurance EERBE
Housing fund FRNES
Labour union fee, staff and I2LER
workers’ education fee BI#HELS
Total A&t
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11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#8)

13 BB IHM (&)
2) R2E % B

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during the during the 31 December
2018 year year 2018
2018% 20184
1R10 8§ EEEBM FERYD 12B3108E
1,964,516 13,970,840 13,278,266 2,657,090
710,193 - - 710,193

- 529,065 529,065 -

- 81,627 81,627 -

- 75,581 75,581 -

- 244,277 244,277 -

- 1,620 1,620 -
2,674,709 14,903,010 14,210,436 3,367,283
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during the during the 31 December
2017 year year 2017
20174 20174
1R1E%%8 REHEN RERD 12831 HHE
2,167,101 12,399,822 12,602,407 1,964,516
760,138 - 49,945 710,193

- 527,407 527,407 -

- 81,371 81,371 -

- 37,671 37,671 -

- 249,709 249,709 -

- 222,895 222,895 -
2,927,239 13,518,875 13,771,405 2,674,709
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMBERREERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
13 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 13 FBEH T 5B (&)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans (3) BER1Z 157 — R EIefraTEl
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during the during the 31 December
2018 year year 2018
2018% 2018%

1R1B &8 EERm FERY 12A31HREH

Basic pension insurance BEAREZRE = 1,360,453 1,360,453 =
Unemployment insurance LERRE - 52,906 52,906 =
Total &Er - 1,413,359 1,413,359 -
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during the during the 31 December

2017 year year 2017

20174 20174

1A1B%%E AELN AERD 128318845

Basic pension insurance BEAREZRE - 1,356,189 1,356,189 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 52,741 52,741 =
Total G - 1,408,930 1,408,930 -
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, MR2018F12 A31H K20174F12
there were no payment in arrears included in the A3818 - AR A ERERTEHENF
balance of employee benefits payable. EHR BRI FRIE o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

14 Other payables

ltem =]
Interest payable FE R B
Other Efh
Total BFF

(1) Interest payable
There is no significant overdue interest payable as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(2) Others
ltem ZFEER
Subsidiaries /AN
Third parties F=7
Total BEr
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11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#8)
14 EHAENR

Notes 2018 2017
& 20185 20174
(1) 66,990 643,783
©2) 445,432,584 211,114,835

445,499,574 211,758,618

(1) ETFIE

MR2018F12A31H k20174128
318 - AEBEEENE B X

TAHFE o
(2) AHft
2018 2017
20185 20174
441,389,335 207,379,085
4,043,249 3,735,750
445,432,584 211,114,835




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

15 Capital reserve

2018

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

2017

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

HE

BB
INERAYTHZE

HH

B (&
SNERAT EZE

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#])
15 EXDE
20185
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
3] EFEBM TERD FREBE
43,524,487 - - 43,524,487
9,926 - - 9,926
43,534,413 - - 43,534,413
20174
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
FRE NS RERD ERBE
73,268,527 - 29,744,040 43,524,487
9,926 — — 9,926
73,278,453 - 29,744,040 43,534,413

—Z—\FF#H Annual Report 2018

279



Notes to the financial statements

5t 35 ¥R AR B A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(R SIFPBI - 2B AARMT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

16 Surplus reserve

2018

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2017

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

A H

EEBBAE

17 Operating income and operating costs

ltem

Principal businesses
Other businesses

Total

HH

Hio X%

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#&)
16 BEARAE
20184
Balance at the Additions Balance at
beginning of during the the end of
the year year the year
FWeriE FFERM FXRERE
107,111,132 470,841 107,581,973
20174
Balance at the Additions Balance at
beginning of during the the end of
the year year the year
FHIERER AREEIE N FREREER
105,794,859 1,316,273 107,111,132
17 EEWA ~ EEK

2018 2017

20185 20174
Income Cost Income Cost
A (573 WA BEN
612,300,096 548,566,586 565,060,158 494,614,203
9,121,165 7,305,922 11,643,918 9,127,733
621,421,261 555,872,508 576,704,076 508,741,936

Operating income generated from principal businesses
represents primarily the sales of condensed juice and
related products. Operating income generated from other
businesses represents primarily the sales of packaging
materials, rental income and others.
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

financial statements (cont’d)

18

19

Financial expenses

[tem

Interest expenses arising from borrowings
Government grants-interest subsidy
Interest income from deposits

Net exchange (gains)/losses

Other financial expenses

Total

Investment income

[tem

Income from long-term equity investments
accounted for using cost method
Investment loss from disposal of long-

term equity investments
Investment income from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Including: Transfer from other
comprehensive income
Investment income from disposal of
financial assets held for trading
Investment income from disposal of
debt investments

Total

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(48)
18 B EHR
2018 2017
IHE 20184 20174
BERNF BT T 989,725 7,487,681
BT B) —BE B (1,825,000) =
7R F B A (133,550) (401,328)
SRIE W (M) 1Bk (8,613,400) 10,896,056
H %5 E R 264,559 285,009
A&t (9,317,666) 18,267,418
19 REWKZ
2018 2017
IHB 20185 20174
BRAE X E R R ER
RS & W as - 84,000,000
BERARERE
EAMBL - (44,293,488)
BEEAHHESMEE
SRR B s - 3,354,496
He: iR s
W A - 2,041,764
BEXZHUHSREE
BRI E Wt 6,231,384 =
BB EESEDREN
& W 1,087,260 =
=X 7,318,644 43,061,008
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

20 Income tax expenses
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and
accounting profit is as follows:

ltem IBH

Profit before taxation

- IENIDE

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(#8)

20 FRSHEA
RS & M ES A B REN

™

Expected income tax expenses B R25%TE R
at tax rate of 25% TEERFTIS A
Effect of non-taxable income RS

Effect of unrecognised deferred tax
asset for deductible losses
Effect of utilised deductible losses for

RERERRLEMSRHEE
WA ENEBERNEE
158 P A AR FE SRR AT P S 3

which no deferred tax asset was
recognised in previous years

BEMABHNBERNZE

2018
20185

4,708,404

1,177,101
(1,573,801)

(1,130,243)

1,526,943

2017
20174

13,162,722

3,290,680

11,622,224

(14,812,904)

Effect of non-deductible costs, AR EHIR AR -
expenses and losses BRMBRNZE
Income tax expenses NEFSHER
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEA) 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

21 Supplement to cash flow statement

(#8)
21 REREBRBEAER

(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating

activities:

[tem

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss for assets
Credit impairment loss
Gains from disposal of fixed assets
Losses from scrapping of fixed assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Decrease/(increase) in gross inventories
(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

Net cash outflow from operating activities

(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

A H

e
i EEBENE
B ARSI
BERERE
ERRERR
RE BT AENF
BB EREERL
BHER
RE& ek
FaaRD/ (B
K RYCER M
(&), w
AEMRNBERR
i/ (i)

RERHELNRESREFH

HH

BehReEEYN
FRERER
W R RREEEY
B F AR

RekReSEWF
2,/ Ol )58

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE

(1) FOFEFIE T RACEE B 3 2
TRE
2018 2017
20185 20174
4,708,404 13,162,722
7,979,326 7,829,367
994,284 994,284
5,066,052 31,196,465
2,962,242 -
(181,894) -
2,207 -
(4,119,225) 12,265,285
(7,318,644) (43,061,008)
30,506,582 (3,705,342)
(16,019,890 13,340,112
233,215,224 (95,626,774)
257,794,668 (63,604,889)

Q) ReRELFEYWFEEE

//% :
2018 2017
20185 20174
300,983,157 57,533,223
57,533,223 84,468,206
243,449,934 (26,934,983)
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BF 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

21 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d)
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents:

11 BRFIMBRREIEREEE
(#8)

2 BeHRBRBAEH ()
(3) B AH S ZEYHER -

2018 2017
ltem IHE 2018 20174
Cash at bank and on hand ke 300,983,157 57,633,223
Including: Cash on hand B BFRS 67,204 77,410
Bank deposits AIBERS AR SZ A9
available on demand RITER 300,915,953 57,455,813
Closing balance of cash and FRRE KRB ZEWRE

cash equivalents

XVI COMPARATIVE FIGURE

The comparative figures of 2018 represent figures for the
twelve months period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017. Certain items in these comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation to
facilitate comparison in 2018.
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